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March 1, 2012

Christiane Schmenk, Director

Local Government Innovation Council Chairperson
77 South High Street, P.O. Box 1001

Columbus, Ohio 43216-1001 U.S.A.

Dear Director Schmenk:

On behalf of the Advanced Innovative Management Solution (AIMS) partnership, |
respectfully submit this application for a grant to accomplish a feasibility study for shared
services. Seven partner political subdivisions envision collaborating to achieve efficiency in the
delivery of the core service of document storage and retrieval. Further, the foundation of shared
services with document management sets the stage for future shared services.

Collaboration and creativity are needed so that public entities can provide critical services
to constituents during tough economic times. From workload statistics and budget projections, it
is apparent that the long term demand for public services exceeds the long term revenue curve of
local governments. This tremendous challenge inspires leaders to envision the potential of
joining together and establishing the right partnerships to aggregate strength and accomplish
things that could not be accomplished separately. Recognizing this basic philosophy, the AIMS
partnership embraces creative solutions to find new paths to success. The project AIMS high to
achieve public value across multiple political subdivisions.

Fairfield County is serving as the lead applicant for the AIMS partnership. County
leadership has actively pursued collaboration since its budget retreat held in September 2011. To
build consensus for the partnership approach, it was important to embrace collaboration from the
top down. Leaders wanted the value of collaboration to become part of the local government
culture, where every employee knew that leaders valued innovation and expected new ideas and
solutions. Within multiple political subdivisions, the AIMS partnership has the enthusiastic
support of elected officials and department heads, as well as managers and employees on the
front lines.

By approving this grant application, the Local Government Innovation Council rewards
the partnership for its value of collaboration and furthers a project designed to move local
government into modern administrative and management methods. The AIMS partnership
provides substantial in-kind contributions, demonstrating its conviction in shared services. Also,
the project return on investment is an encouraging 83.48 %. The AIMS partnership looks
forward to the Council’s review of this grant application and anticipates serving as a model for
other partnerships desiring to collaborate in similar ways. Thank you for your time.

Kind regards,

(oM BMWN
Carri Brown, Chair

Fairfield County Collaboration Group




Advanced Innovative Management Solution
Lead Applicant: Fairfield County
Table of Contents

Executive Summary

Tab 1: Contact Information

Tab 2: Seven Collaborative Partners

Tab 3: Project Information

Tab 4: Financial Documentation and Feasibility Study Details

Tab 5: Supporting Documentation

Appendix A
Detailed Descriptions of the Initial Phases of AIMS

Appendix B
Executed Partnership Agreement, Resolutions of Support, Letters of Support

Appendix C
Contributions of the AIMS Partnership and Certifications

Appendix D
U.S. Census Information

Appendix E
Self Score Assessment

Appendix F
Lead Applicant Financial Information, Demonstrating Stability
Three Most Recent Years Basic Financial Statements

Appendix G
Lead Applicant Popular Annual Financial Report, 12.31.2010

19

23

23

25

39

66

77

82

191




Advanced Innovative Management Solution
Lead Applicant: Fairfield County

Executive Summary

The Fairfield County Advanced Innovative Management Solution (AIMS) is an extensive,
integrated project designed to move government into modern administrative and management
methods. Fairfield County has already implemented the first steps of this project. With its six
partners, the County is now eager to implement the next critical step: a document management
and disaster recovery system that will complement existing systems. The next step is perhaps the
most important one because it will bring several political subdivisions together to improve
efficiency. The feasibility study that is proposed for grant funding will investigate how to best
implement electronic document management systems across multiple political subdivisions.

This project AIMS high to achieve public value. By coordinating document storage and
retrieval for all partners through a shared electronic document management system, the
feasibility study will demonstrate how to replace current costly, manual practices with modern
ways to handle documents by converting them to electronic form and making them electronically
available to the appropriate people. Specifically, AIMS will produce these benefits:

1. Public services will be delivered more efficiently because time will not be wasted
traveling to document storage facilities or searching for lost documents.

2. Documents will be able to be viewed by many people simultaneously without having to
make additional copies, increasing staff efficiency.

3. The formal document retention schedule will be revised to identify documents where the
electronic document can be the document of record, and therefore the paper document
will not need to be retained, further reducing the need for storage facilities.

4. Space currently devoted to storage of documents will be freed up for other uses,
providing for better utilization of physical spaces.

5. Overall costs associated with records retention and retrieval will be reduced in the long
term, and a “greener” environmental approach will be used because less paper will be
required.

AIMS includes two phases relating to electronic document management, one focused on
processes common to a financial management system and one focused on broader services. Both
phases will include elements of disaster recovery services. Major benefits of the project are that
it can be replicated and scaled for more than 20 other political subdivisions in its initial phase
and for even more political subdivisions in its second phase. Replicating and scaling the project
can be accomplished with limited additional costs. The partnership expects to include other
political subdivisions who desire to meet similar project goals and join the partnership. For
example, adding townships to the partnership is a natural progression and expected result.

The AIMS partnership provides substantial in-kind contributions, demonstrating its
conviction in the importance of shared services. Also, the project return on investment is an
encouraging 83.48%. With historical successes and project leadership ready to go, the
partnership is eager to conduct a useful feasibility study. With project implementation, the
AIMS collaboration expects better public services, enhanced business environments, and
superior community attractions.
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Fairfield County Advanced Innovative Management Solution
Local Government Innovation Fund Grant Application

Tab 1: Contact Information

Name of Main Applicant, Grantee:
Fairfield County

First Point of Contact:

Carri Brown

Fairfield County Collaboration Group Chair
239 West Main Street

Lancaster, OH 43130

740-652-7602

740-687-7182 (fax)

browncl12@ odjfs.state.oh.us

Fairfield County Population:

The 2010 U.S. Census population for Fairfield County, the lead applicant for the
partnership, was 145,156, a 19.1% increase over the prior census. Fairfield County is one of the
fastest growing counties in the state of Ohio. With population growth, there is increased demand
for public services of all types. From workload statistics and budget projections, it is apparent
that the long term demand for public services exceeds the long term revenue curve of local
governments. This tremendous challenge inspires leaders within the county to envision the
potential of joining together and establishing the right partnerships to aggregate strength and
accomplish things that could not be accomplished individually.
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Tab 2: Seven Collaborative Partners

Fairfield County (the county of Fairfield)
210 E. Main Street, Room 310
Lancaster, OH 43130

740-652-7090

740-687-6048 (fax)

Fairfield County Historical Parks District
407 E. Main Street

Lancaster, OH 43130

740-681-7249

740-681-4719 (fax)

Fairfield County Soil and Water Conservation District
831 College Avenue, Suite B

Lancaster, OH 43130

740-653-8154

740-653-4561 (fax)

Fairfield County Regional Planning Commission
210 E. Main Street, Room 104

Lancaster, OH 43130

740-652-7110

740-681-4713 (fax)

Fairfield County Department of Health
1587 Granville Pike

Lancaster, OH 43130

740-652-2806

740-653-6626 (fax)

Fairfield, Hocking, Licking, and Perry Joint Juvenile Detention District
923 Liberty Drive

Lancaster, OH 43130

740-652-1525

740-652-1527 (fax)

City of Lancaster
104 E. Main Street
Lancaster, OH 43130
740-687-6600
740-687-6698 (fax)
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Partnership Population Data:

Fairfield County, the lead applicant, is a county with fewer than 235,000 citizens. The
2010 U.S. Census population for Fairfield County was 145,156. For the majority of the
partnership, including the Historical Parks District, the Soil and Water Conservation District, the
Regional Planning Commission, and the Department of Health, the service area is that of the
county of Fairfield. However, Fairfield County approached smaller entities to encourage
participation in the collaboration. For example, the county seat, the City of Lancaster, is a
partner of the approach. The 2010 U.S. Census population for the City of Lancaster was 38,780.
Further, another partner, the Fairfield, Hocking, Licking, and Perry Joint Juvenile Detention
District, provides services to four counties. The 2010 U.S. Census populations for Hocking,
Licking, and Perry Counties were 29,380, 166,492, and 36,058, respectively. Two of these three
counties are smaller than Fairfield; all counties served by the partnership entities have a
population of fewer than 235,000 citizens.

The goal of the collaboration is to involve as many entities as possible for efficiency and
effectiveness, as well as for future replication and scalability. Including the City of Lancaster,
while a city with a population above 20,001, was important to leadership so that the project could
be replicated and scaled within the county and throughout the state. The partnership respectfully
requests that the lead applicant of Fairfield County be considered for the population criteria as
not to penalize the partnership for including more political subdivisions (and more types of
subdivisions). Including the City in the application process was a more efficient approach, as
compared to including the City at a later point in time which would have increased project costs.

Advanced Innovative Management Solution (AIMS) — The Partnership:

The Fairfield County Advanced Innovative Management Solution (AIMS) is a project
designed to move government into modern administrative and management methods. While
Fairfield County has already implemented the first four phases of this project, the county is now
looking to implement the next phases with its partners. The feasibility study that is requested
through the Local Government Innovation Fund is a critical step to further the partnership.

Fairfield County will provide professional information technology services as in-kind
contributions to the project and will serve as the grantee or fiscal agent for the project. Fairfield
County will ensure that all reporting requirements for the grant are met accurately and timely.
While no new staff members will be added to accomplish the project, a project manager from
Fairfield County will be assigned to the feasibility study portion of the project. Each of the
entities will provide subject matter experts and participate in the feasibility study for the
electronic document management solution. Each of the entities will assign a point of contact for
the project. All partners will meet monthly for a progress report and update once the grant has
been awarded. With consensus of the full partnership, Fairfield County will develop a
communication strategy so that employees within the partnership and the public will continue to
be informed and have input into the project development. Resolutions of support and the
executed partnership agreement are found in the supporting documentation section of this
application.
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Tab 3: Project Information
3.1 Project Name
Advanced Innovative Management Solution (AIMS)

3.2 Project Description

The Fairfield County Advanced Innovative Management Solution (AIMS) is an extensive,
integrated project designed to move government into modern administrative and management
methods. Fairfield County has already implemented the first four steps of this project and with
its partners, is now looking to implement the next critical phase, a document management and
disaster recovery system that will complement existing systems. The next phase is perhaps the
most important and innovative phase because it will bring several political subdivisions together
to improve efficiency. The feasibility study that is proposed for grant funding will investigate
how to best implement electronic document management systems.

The first steps of AIMS included the implementation of a common financial management
system, a court information and process management system, workflow and document
management solutions for child support enforcement, and a web-based system to track Board of
County Commissioners’ resolutions. Each of these four initial phases is discussed in more detail
in Appendix A. These four steps were necessary in developing AIMS because they set the
foundation for electronic document management. Each of the steps reduced paper, improved
workflows, and increased efficiency — but there is more work to be done.

While the first steps were specific to program areas, the next phase for an electronic
document management and disaster recovery system will utilize existing technological and
human assets to build a strong foundation for additional partnerships and efficiency. The initial
phases focused on specific program areas and did not always include document imaging or
disaster recovery. This project “AIMS” to provide these missing, essential pieces in order to join
county and partner systems in new ways. The next step for AIMS is to coordinate document
storage and facilitate document retrieval for all partners involved through a shared electronic
document management system. Many of the partners would not be able to modernize without
the collaboration.

Document storage and retrieval is a core process of government. Services rendered, taxes
collected, and information made public all begin with a document that must be created,
processed, stored, and later retrieved. Current practices, which continue to center on paper
documents and files, require that local governments invest heavily in staff time devoted solely to
physically moving the documents from where they are stored to where they are needed as well as
to storage facilities to house the documents in secure, climate-controlled conditions. To replace
these current practices, AIMS modernizes the handling of documents by converting them to
electronic form and making them electronically available to the appropriate people.

Technological enhancements will include hardware and software upgrades and installations
to manage documents electronically and coordinate connections to servers and database solutions
already in place. These technological enhancements will foster important changes in workflow
processes. Current processes concerning how to store and retrieve documents from a variety of
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physical locations will be replaced with more efficient processes, allowing employees to spend
more time solving problems and serving the needs of the citizens. Specifically, AIMS will
produce these benefits:

1. Public services will be delivered more efficiently because time will not be wasted
traveling to document storage facilities or searching for lost documents.

2. Documents will be able to be viewed by many people simultaneously without having to
make additional copies, increasing staff efficiency.

3. The formal document retention schedule will be revised to identify documents where the
electronic document can be the document of record, and therefore the paper document
will not need to be retained, further reducing the need for storage facilities.

4. Space currently devoted to storage of documents will be freed up for other uses,
providing for better utilization of physical spaces.

5. Overall costs associated with records retention and retrieval will be reduced in the long
term, and a “greener” environmental approach will be used because less paper will be
required.

AIMS includes two phases relating to electronic document management, one focused on
processes common to a financial management system and one focused on broader services. Both
phases will include elements of disaster recovery services.

AIMS Feasibility Study, Phase I: MUNIS Partners

MUNIS, the commonly used financial system, provides a natural foundation for the next
phase of AIMS. All of the collaborative partners use MUNIS, at least partially for financial
processes. (See Appendix A for more details about MUNIS, an initial phase of AIMS.) There is
no non-proprietary document management solution connected with MUNIS, and Phase | will
focus on developing the most appropriate electronic document management system to support
the partners and their use of financial and administrative functions within MUNIS. Once Phase |
has been established, the partnership’s infrastructure can be utilized to support Phase 1. Also,
throughout the state of Ohio, there are more than 20 political subdivisions now using MUNIS,
making Phase | of AIMS attractive for its ability to be replicated for those subdivisions.

AIMS Feasibility Study, Phase 11: Beyond MUNIS (Broad Scope)

All the collaborative partners have document management needs beyond financial
processes. Phase 11 will explore how to service those broader needs. As evidenced by multiple
presentations at association conferences, reports from performance audits, and various
networking opportunities, document management needs for local governments are ubiquitous.
Any system designed to meet local government needs can reasonably be replicated and/or scaled
for an estimated 75% of the state’s political subdivisions. This makes Phase Il an important part
of the study. The partnership expects to reach out to other political subdivisions in this effort.
AIMS Feasibility Study, Pan-Phase: Disaster Recovery

Both phases of the AIMS study will incorporate disaster recovery plans. Under the
current paper system, a disaster, such as a fire, in one of the storage facilities would destroy the
paper record, with no back up for that record. AIMS will allow for implementation of
appropriate backup and recovery plans of all documents. The feasibility study will also
investigate disaster recovery systems that would provide backup options for existing systems,
such as CourtView.
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3.3 Project Type
The project type is a feasibility study, a critical next step for AIMS. Without the study to
inform decisions, the project will not move ahead as it should.

3.4 Problem Statement

Currently, the political subdivisions within the partnership are experiencing costly
retention of records; costly use of space to store active and inactive files; a lack of workflows for
electronic documents; difficulty in locating documents for public records requests and for
operational purposes; overdue purging of documents; a lack of useful, archived information to
inform decision making; and a constantly growing information environment. The longer a
solution is not implemented, the worse the problem will get - and the more expensive the
solution will be. Annually, more than $56,088 is spent on rental of off-site storage space.

More significantly, the partners have the opportunity to increase efficiency and reduce
risk with the project. Employees do not have a way to create, edit, route and approve documents
without using paper. Employees experience stress and frustration in retrieving historical records.
The current manner in which current documents are stored leaves partners vulnerable in various
ways, including risks associated with fire, water, light, and rodents. There is no backup in place
for restoring damaged or destroyed paper documents. The feasibility study meets the project
need by informing leadership of the next appropriate steps for shared electronic document
management services. The approach is innovative because it integrates the strengths of seven
political subdivisions, accomplishing more together than what can be accomplished apart.

3.5 Identification of Targeted Approach

The targeted approach for the project is shared service. The seven partners envision
working together to achieve efficiency in the delivery of the core government service of
document storage and retrieval. The partnership envisions beginning the shared service with
records associated with the MUNIS financial system and then broadening the service to other
government documents. The foundation of shared electronic document management services
sets the stage for future shared services, as well.

3.6 Return on Investment

The current environment in which the seven partnership entities operate is document-
laden. There are many document-intensive, repetitive business processes that are performed
daily. Due to these circumstances, each entity is forced to heavily invest time and money into
filing, storing, searching, retrieving, and copying of paper documents. In addition to these
burdens, each partner faces threats of various types of disaster.

As the next step in AIMS, the project partners would like to conduct a feasibility study
for a shared electronic document management system. This study will give direct insight to each
entity’s current environment. The information gathered throughout the study will pinpoint
inefficiencies, allowing changes to be applied in the most needed and appropriate areas. Upon
completion of the study, an electronic document management system should be implemented. A
new system will be beneficial due to its magnitude of functionality. Not only will it alleviate the
majority of document management challenges, it will allow the seven entities to work together in

10
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MUNIS and customize solutions to serve individual needs of each entity. The following nine
factors influence the return on investment calculation, derived from the project budget.

1. The most significant part of any local government budget is related to personnel because
of the heavy reliance on employee provided services. The percentage of total employees
IS a reasonable approach for determining the percentage of the total costs of managing
documents for the partnership.

Government Entity Percentage Breakdown

Fairfield County 59.79%
Fairfield County Historical Parks District 37%

Fairfield County Soil and Water Conservation 1.12%

District

Fairfield County Regional Planning Commission .22%

Fairfield County Department of Health 2.24%
Fairfield, Hocking, Licking, and Perry Joint Juvenile 5.23%

District

City of Lancaster 31.02%

2. Ten percent of employees work full-time filing, storing, searching, retrieving, and

copying paper documents.

3. The average project cost for full time employees is $25 per hour, including benefits.

4. There are several storage means for paper documents throughout the county.

5. The cost for the main off-site storage facility is $56,088 per year.

6. The minimum cost of managing documents per year is estimated at 10% of County
employees working full time (80*2080 hours * $25) annually, plus storage costs for the
off-site facility. Partner costs were calculated based on percentages in the above table,
for employee costs alone. Figures are rounded.

Government Entity Minimum Cost

Fairfield County $4,216,088
Fairfield County Historical Parks District $26,000
Fairfield County Soil and Water Conservation $78,000
District

Fairfield County Regional Planning Commission $15,600
Fairfield County Department of Health $156,000
Fairfield, Hocking, Licking, and Perry Joint Juvenile $364,000
District

City of Lancaster $2,158,000
Total $7,013,688

11
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For comparison, the total budget of the combined entities exceeds $125 million for all
governmental fund types, and the costs estimated above are less than 5.6% of the aggregate
budget. The minimum cost is a conservative estimate of costs associated with the challenges of
document management.

7. In addition, a single department shreds 17,376 pounds of paper annually at a cost for
shredding of $2,469.
a. One (1) box of clean paper is 25 pounds and costs $30.
b. The paper cost of the shredded documents is $20,851.
c. The minimum cost of shredding annually is $20,851 + $2,469, or $23,320. This
cost will be eliminated with the electronic options.

8. The total cost per year of document related challenges for the seven entities is estimated

below:
Activity Associated Cost
Minimum Cost of Managing Documents $7,013,688
Cost of Documents Shredded $23,320
Total $7,037,008

9. To put modern processes in place, the AIMS project costs over the past two years and
going forward are:

Hardware,

Software & Contractual,

Maintenance, Professional

In-Kind Paid within | Total Services/

AIMS Project Costs, Contributions, | the past two | Partnership Grant
within the past two years | Services years Contributions | Request Total
Consensus
Building/Collaboration
Education and LGIF
Research and Analyses 10,875 0 10,875 0| 10,875
CourtView 3,194 85,887 89,081 0| 89,081
MUNIS 0 44,651 44,651 0| 44,651
MAPSys and Initial
Scanning 23,554 60,901 84,455 0| 84,455
Feasibility Study to build
upon existing systems
and include additional
partners 16,640 0 16,640 96,688 | 113,328
Project Total 54,263 191,439 245,702 96,688 | 342,390
Percent of Project Total 71.76% 28.24%

12
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More details about the project budget are described in Tab 4. Also, Appendix C provides
support and justification for all costs of the partnership contributions.

Currently, the seven collaborative partners involved in the initiative are suffering from
document management challenges, which are costing approximately $ 7 million dollars per year.
By conducting a feasibility study and implementing an electronic document management system,
these costs can be reduced between 35 and 75 percent, based on industry cost benchmarking
obtained from experts within the private and public industries. (Internet search of multiple
vendors, 2012) For conservatism, the point of savings is estimated at 35 percent.

The cost reductions will be found in a variety of areas. For example, ten percent of full
time employees will no longer be filing, storing, searching, retrieving, and copying paper
documents. This will allow employees to be more efficient with customer service. The amount of
paper actually used will be reduced, as will costs of copying and shredding. Storage costs will be
reduced due to the decreased use of paper. There will no longer be a need for an off-site secure
storage facility. Further, security is built into the expected electronic system helping all of the
partnership organizations to manage risk.

Retrieval costs will be reduced because employees will no longer spend large amounts of
time searching for documents or driving off-site to store and retrieve documents. Also, the
majority of document-intensive processes will be accomplished electronically, thus increasing
efficiency. Due to the number of entities involved in this initiative, it is estimated that an
appropriate solution, one that will address each entity’s specific needs, will cost approximately
one million dollars. This estimate is based on projects of similar size in the industry. (Internet
search and conversations with subject matter experts, 2012)

Based on the information outlined in this document, the estimated return on investment
for the implementation of the solution, following the feasibility study, is estimated at 83.48%.

($2,462,952)-($1,342,390) = $1,120,562 = 8348 *100 = 83.48%
$1,342,390 $1,342,390

3.7 Probability of Proposal’s Success

AIMS has strong advantages to predict its success. Leadership and employees across
multiple political subdivisions support the project and desire to see it succeed. There has been
proper planning and investment with the project, and the feasibility study will bring together
assets of the partnership. Significant resources have been dedicated to the project. There is
clarity in the project purpose for how it will create a strong foundation for shared services of
electronic document management.

In addition, Fairfield County has successfully implemented large scale database and
document imaging projects with success. As the lead applicant, the county will dedicate a project
manager to the partnership to build upon these successes. The first four steps of AIMS provide
good examples of projects accomplished recently. A brief mention of them is made here; more

13
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details of these projects can be found in the supporting documents and in the Identification of
Past Success on Innovation section of this application.

1) MUNIS is the common financial management information system for the partnership.
Planning for the project began in 2005, and it was successfully implemented in 2007.
The most recent enhancements were implemented in 2011.

2) CourtView is the court information management system and includes document imaging.
It was upgraded with major enhancements in 2011. CourtView contains more than a
million scanned images, and Court information and imaged documents are accessible by
all appropriate parties.

3) Compass Suite is the document management system used by the Fairfield County Job and
Family Services child support agency. It was implemented in 2008. Since then, nearly all
documents of current cases have been scanned into and indexed by the system. The
agency now uses Compass exclusively for case workflow management.

4) MapSys is the Fairfield County Board of County Commissioners’ web-based resolution
management system, implemented in 2012. Key benefits of the system include
consistency in format, searchable online records access, and less time spent on
preparation of agendas, resolutions, and supporting documentation, which improves
organizational efficiency. Further, using less paper translates to cost savings and a
greener environment. Any partner seeking Board action will benefit from the web-based
system.

The feasibility study will take into account the actions accomplished thus far and the
available assets of the partnership entities. From the feasibility study, insight into partnership
practices will be gained immediately. It is important to note that the cost of the study itself is
much lower than it would be if it was accomplished individually by each of the partner
organizations. If accomplished individually, the costs would exceed an estimated $175,000.
One way to evaluate savings is to consider the more than $78,000 of savings achieved by
conducting the study with collaboration.

Another way to consider the savings is consistent with the return on investment calculation.
Once the electronic document management solution is implemented for the partnership,
document management costs will be reduced an estimated $2,462,952, or 35 percent of related
costs. The needs of the partnership, while identified further by the feasibility study, will be met
with the implementation of the phases outlined in the study.

The partnership desires to compete for a Local Government Innovation Fund loan for a
portion of the implementation costs, especially because of the scalable and replicable nature of
the project. The feasibility study will take approximately four months to complete, and this
gives the partnership time to work on the loan application and prepare budget documents for the
January 2013 budget year.

Implementation of the recommendations expected within the feasibility study will reduce the

costs of manual storage and retrieval of government documents; reduce costs of space to store
active and inactive files; create workflows for electronic documents to increase staff efficiency;

14
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improve the existence of useful, archived information to inform decision making; and help all
partners manage a constantly growing information environment. More significantly, the partners
have the opportunity to increase efficiency and reduce risk with the project. The feasibility study
meets the project need by informing leadership of the next appropriate steps for shared electronic
document management services and disaster recovery plans.

3.8 Plans and ability to replicate or scale the proposal

AIMS will serve as both proof of concept and infrastructure development for future
replication and scaling of the project. Completion of Phase | (MUNIS partners) will provide the
infrastructure for Phase 11; completion of Phase Il (beyond MUNIS) will demonstrate how to
scale the project to include other county systems and other political subdivisions. Once both
phases are completed, nearly 75% of the political subdivisions in Ohio could replicate AIMS.
Leadership is prepared to share information and spend time with other political subdivisions so
that others can benefit from the effort, too.

3.9 Consolidation Efforts

While AIMS is not specifically part of a consolidation effort among the collaborative
partners, the project does provide a basis for additional collaboration, shared services, or
mergers. With the project, each political subdivision will maintain control over their portion of
the documents imaged in the system.

3.10 Identification of Past Success on an Innovation

The first steps of AIMS provided the foundation of success for the future innovations that
AIMS will provide. For example, beginning in 2005, discussions began between County
departments about updating or replacing the financial system, which involved heavy duplication
of effort. MUNIS was a significant departure from the previous centralized model because it
removed multiple data entry steps. MUNIS also provided departments with the ability to
research and report on their funds without having to rely on Auditor’s Office staff to produce and
distribute that information. The accessibility of information and the realization that the County
needed a more dynamic, flexible system were the deciding factors to move forward with
MUNIS, with efficiency as a goal.

The County installed MUNIS as the financial management information system for AIMS
partners: Fairfield County Historical Parks District, Fairfield County Soil and Water
Conservation District, Fairfield County Regional Planning Commission, Fairfield County
Department of Health, and Fairfield, Hocking, Licking, Perry Joint Juvenile Detention District,
and the City of Lancaster (Municipal Court). The system went live at the beginning of 2007. The
departments worked in a collaborative manner to secure the funding for MUNIS. Also, the
partners went through an extensive vetting process to evaluate available systems prior to
awarding the contract. Since 2007, no new financial administrative employees have been added
in spite of a 25% or more increase in workload. In fact, the number of financial administrative
staff members has decreased through natural attrition.

The County has also implemented CourtView. This innovation focused on efficiency.
CourtView was first implemented in 1996 as a way to manage court information, but document

15




Advanced Innovative Management Solution
Lead Applicant: Fairfield County

imaging was not a significant part of the project until 2005. Since then, additional modules, such
as eAccess and eDocket, have been added to allow greater access to all court information. With
over one million scanned images and all case files available to the court system electronically, it
has allowed the staff to focus their efforts on the ever increasing case load.

In 2012, the county initiated a web-based resolution tracking system to increase
standardization of format, improve access to public records, and reduce costs associated with
paper and time in manually providing Board of County Commissioner resolutions. While this
part of AIMS is just now being introduced, increased efficiencies are expected across multiple
departments who desire formal approval or action of the Board. Investment in the web-based
system helps to keep employee costs down, as well, as there is a reduced need for clerical staff to
file, store, or retrieve documents.

Further, for child support enforcement processes, the County implemented a specialized
electronic document management system with workflows in 2008. This innovation focused on
efficiency. Since implementation, all new case documents have been put directly into the system
for this program, and no paper documents have been maintained. Additionally, the child support
agency has worked on scanning old files and documents into the system, allowing destruction of
the original paper. This project has produced benefits:

A) The system allows for a larger caseload for each employee. The caseload for enforcement
staff since the implementation of the project has increased by more than 74%, from 538 cases per
worker to 938 cases per worker. The agency has reduced its number of employees. In the past
year alone, the child support agency reduced the number of full-time positions from 44 to 32
(27% reduction), mainly through attrition. The increase in caseload per employee was possible
because of the technology and innovation of the electronic document management system for the
program.

B) Because child support casework involves information that comes from the Internal Revenue
Service (IRS), the agency is required to meet Federal Tax Information Safeguarding standards.
Using the electronic processes to meet these standards avoided costs associated with building a
special file room to meet the federal standards.

C) A room that at one time was full of physical files is now being used more efficiently as office
space for workers from another department.

After four years of using the technology, the agency employees cannot imagine doing their jobs
effectively without it.

3.11 Response to Changes in Demand for Services

Collaboration and creativity are needed so that public entities can provide critical services
to constituents during tough economic times. From workload statistics and budget projections, it
is apparent that the long term demand for public services exceeds the long term revenue curve of
local governments. This ubiquitous, tremendous challenge inspires leaders to envision the
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potential of joining together and establishing the right partnerships to aggregate strength and
accomplish things that could not be accomplished separately.

Recognizing this basic philosophy, the AIMS partnership embraces creative solutions to
find new paths to success. The project AIMS high to achieve public value across multiple
political subdivisions. The project will save costs and allow for employees to be focused on
tasks of customer service, rather than document storage and retrieval. Further, by collaborating,
the seven partners are able to accomplish higher quality with the project, as compared to work
accomplished apart. Ultimately, the project will help to contain employee related costs.

Within the partnership, multiple departments have experienced increases in workload. In
spite of the realities of state, local, and federal budget cuts, the work must get done. Some
workload measures have more than doubled. In all of the measures, there are public documents
which need to be stored, filed, and retrieved in order to provide direct services to the public. A
few examples of workload increases over the past five years are listed in the next table.

Percentage
Workload Measure 2005 2010 | Increase
Board Resolutions Passed 1,311 1,558 18.84%
Number of Checks Printed 26,146 | 27,655 5.77%
Criminal Cases 445 541 21.57%
Civil Cases 1,932 2,436 26.09%
Abuse/Neglect/Dependency
Cases 198 286 44.44%
Foreclosures 617 963 56.08%
Coroner Cases, Investigated 171 295 72.51%
Sheriff Prisoners Booked 4,197 4,667 11.20%
Citations Issued 1,291 1,551 20.14%
Dog Tags Issued 21,320 | 26,136 22.59%
Early Intervention, DD 95 223 134.74%
Veterans Served with Financial
Aid 589 623 5.77%
Veterans Transported 1,023 1,424 39.20%
Food Stamp Clients 8,094 | 18,736 131.48%
Medicaid Clients 15,633 | 22,139 41.62%
Child Protective Services
Inquiries 3,446 | 4,960 43.93%
Child Support Cases 8,415 | 9,587 13.93%

In order to keep up with the demand for services, sharing services, especially services
that are common across political subdivisions, is a necessary approach for survival.
Modernization of document management and disaster recovery systems is a critical next step for
shared services of the AIMS partnership.
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3.12 Audit Recommendations

At this time, there are several performance audit recommendations on the Auditor of
State website which reference implementation of an electronic process to replace paper-based
processes. While none of the State Auditor recommendations are specifically for Fairfield
County or the AIMS partnership, the performance audit recommendations inform the partnership
decisions because they promote modernization of administrative and management functions.

3.13 Improved Business Environment and Community Attractions

The project will contribute to the state’s economy because of the anticipated contract for
professional consulting services with an Ohio company, 3SG Corporation. A minority-owned
business, 3SG is a leading end-to-end solutions provider that specializes in enterprise document
management engineering and solutions. The company’s project management methodologies,
based on tenets of the Project Management Institute, revolve around customization and
automation of business processes to facilitate increased operational efficiency and lower costs.

3SG is a certified vendor for the State of Ohio (State Term Schedule #777364C), holds an
Ohio State Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) Certificate, and has been given the EDGE
certification by the Ohio Department of Administrative Services’ Equal Opportunity Division.
Additionally, 3SG holds U.S. Government Services Administration Contracts (GS25F0038R)
and is a Small Business Administration certified 8(a) company. These certifications demonstrate
the exceptional level of government inspection the company has passed.

AIMS will also promote effectiveness and efficiency in the local government business
environment. The current paper system of document storage and retrieval causes a lot of wasted
time and effort in providing for the needs of the citizens. Government staffing levels will not be
increasing any time soon, but the needs of the citizens will continue to grow. The collaboration
will leverage technology to provide more effective and efficient government. Staff time will be
devoted to meeting needs of citizens instead of searching for documents before the needs can be
met. In addition, security of records will be improved. By providing effective services while
decreasing the cost of the service, community attraction is improved. Promoting AIMS is one
way the government partners can keep taxes low while meeting the demand for public services.
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Tab 4: Financial Documentation & Feasibility Study Details

4.01 Grant Request for a Feasibility Study

The AIMS partnership requests $96,688 as a grant to conduct a feasibility study to
implement electronic document management solutions across seven political subdivisions,
building upon existing systems and partnerships. The grant will be used to purchase professional
consulting services to conduct the feasibility study which will inform leadership about the best
way to modernize document management solutions. The study will serve as the critical next step
for the partnership. It will address both the business and the technical priorities of the entities.
The approach to strategic business information management will maximize existing investments,
minimizes future costs, and reveals revenue-driving opportunities.

For each entity, the initial study phase of the assessment will be completed within a few
days. Through a series of executive, business, and technically focused meetings, 3SG will work
closely with the stakeholders of each organization to extract focused information and incorporate
these findings into recommended solutions and strategies. After the initial discovery period, 3SG
will transition into an analysis and collaboration phase, which will require a detailed assessment.

During the next two (2) to four (4) weeks, 3SG will document each unique process and
line of business, applying practical experience and best practices to deliver recommendations in
line with the core strategies. The study will include a detailed road map allowing the AIMS
partners to make informed, balanced decisions regarding the records management initiative while
identifying budgetary considerations and conveying actionable strategies.

3SG will provide two (2) advisors who will be available onsite for the duration of the
study and will be responsible for the documented recommendations. The AIMS partnership is
committed to and focused on participation in the coordination of pre-engagement assignments
and ongoing analyses. The study will result in achieving the following objectives:
e Understand and document existing records management challenges

e Identify and document high-volume, labor intensive, repetitive transactions-based
processes for potential improvements

e |dentify data sources and data storages within departments or functional areas
e Provide a detailed study of each participating entity

The total hours of contracted technical services estimated for the project are 455 hours at a rate
of $212.50, the industry and state term contract standard for such services.
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onal Area OLad O otal Dolla
Project Initiation 75 15,937.50
Preliminary Discovery 125 26,562.50
Detail Discovery 150 31,875.00
Detail documentation of assessment 105 22.312.50
Total 455 96,687.50

Contractual terms between the lead applicant, Fairfield County, and the consultant, 3SG,
will include 20% payment upon execution of the contract, 50% payment upon receipt of the first
draft, and 30% payment upon the final deliverable. All reporting requirements and financial
accounting procedures will be managed by Fairfield County, who has experience with state grant
reporting requirements and contract monitoring. The project is expected to be concluded within
about four months.

4.02/4.03 Contributions from the AIMS Partnership and Percentage of Local Match

The AIMS project includes contributions from the partnership: professional services in
building consensus and conducting research and analyses for the partnership; implementing
Courtview upgrades; establishing improvements for the commonly used MUNIS financial
system; implementing a web-based resolutions tracking system and scanning services; and
providing leadership for the feasibility study. All partners will participate and cooperate with the
study as it progresses. As a match to the grant, the partnership provides (or will provide) more
than 71% of project costs. Consulting fees are reasonable, given industry standards. For each of
the contributions listed in the table below, Appendix C outlines the details and provides

additional justification and support of the Contributions of the AIMS Partnership and

Certifications.

Hardware,

Software & Contractual,

Maintenance, Professional

In-Kind Paid within | Total Services/

AIMS Project Costs, Contributions, | the past two | Partnership Grant
within the past two years | Services years Contributions | Request Total
Consensus
Building/Collaboration
Education and LGIF
Research and Analyses 10,875 0 10,875 0| 10,875
CourtView 3,194 85,887 89,081 0| 89,081
MUNIS 0 44,651 44,651 0| 44,651
MAPSys and Initial
Scanning 23,554 60,901 84,455 0| 84,455
Feasibility Study to build
upon existing systems
and include additional
partners 16,640 0 16,640 96,688 | 113,328
Project Total 54,263 191,439 245,702 96,688 | 342,390
Percent of Project Total 71.76% 28.24%
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4.04 Financial Projections and Anticipated Savings
Related to the scope of the project, operating budgets for the past three years and for the
three year period following the completion of the study and implementation of the
recommendations are shown below. Savings as a result of implementation of electronic
document management for the AIMS partnership is estimated as a cost reduction of $2,462,952
annually, with an additional savings of 5% in the sixth year. This financial information is used as

a cost basis to determine expected return.

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6
Project Service

Related Operating | Julyl 09- |Julyl 10- [Julyl  11- |Julyl 12- |Julyl 13- |Julyl 14-
Budget June 30 10 June30 11 |June30 12 |June30 13 June 3014 | June 3015
Income

General Revenue

Fund , All entities 6,422,487 6,576,470 6,736,817 7,037,008 4,574,056 | 4,395,353
Grant/Loan

Revenue 0 0 0 96,688 500,000 0
Partnership

Contributions -

Collaboration 0 0 10,875 16,640 500,000 0
Partnership

Contributions-

CourtView 0 0 89,081 0 0 0
Partnership

Contributions -

MUNIS 0 44,651 0 0 0 0
Partnership

Contributions -

MapSys 0 0 84,455 0 0 0
Total Income 6,422,487 6,621,121 6,921,228 7,150,336 5,574,056 | 4,395,353
Expenses

Cost of Managing

Documents 6,422,487 6,621,121 6,921,228 7,037,008 4,574,056 | 4,345,353
Feasibility Study,

Contracted

Services 0 0 0 96,688 0 0
Partnership

Employee Costs,

Feasibility Study 0 0 0 16,640 0 0
Purchase of New

System 0 0 0 0 1,000,000 0
Loan Repayment 0 0 0 0 0 50,000
Total Expenses 6,422,487 6,621,121 6,921,228 7,150,336 5,574,056 | 4,395,353
Difference 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Difference in

GRF

Contributions Dollar Percentage
Estimates Estimate Change Change

Year 1 6,422,487

Year 2 6,576,470 153,983 2.40% | (B)
Year 3 6,736,817 160,347 2.44% | (B)
Year 4 7,037,008 300,191 4.46% | (B)
Year 5 4,574,056 | -2,462,952 -35.00% | (A)
Year 6 4,395,353 -178,703 -3.91% | (c)
(A) Used for

Return On

Investment

Calculation

(B) General

Revenue Fund
costs increased in
years 2,3, and 4
based on salary
and benefit cost
changes

(c) A reduction of
5% based on
knowledge gains
and the loan
payment of
$50,000 is
anticipated

The project results in savings based on the reduced burden to general revenue funds.
Savings as a result of implementation of electronic document management for the AIMS
partnership is estimated as a cost reduction of $2,462,952 annually, with an additional savings of
5% in the sixth year as knowledge is gained about new options. (See 3.6, Return on Investment
for narratives of justification and support, including an outline of how the costs of managing
documents were derived. Also, please see Appendix C for additional justification and support of
partnership contributions.)
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Tab 5: Supporting Documentation

Appendix A
Detailed Descriptions of the Initial Phases of AIMS

The first four steps of the project, which have already been completed, include
implementation of a common financial management system, a justice information and process
management system for courts, electronic document management tracking for Board of
Commissioners’ resolutions and minutes, and workflow and document management solutions for
child support enforcement. Each step provided a foundation for individual departments to begin
electronic document management in some fashion, setting the stage for a more modern
environment. There is more work to be done to build upon the existing systems, improve
integration, and include more political subdivisions. Each of these four initial phases is discussed
in more detail below.

1) Implementation of a common financial management system, MUNIS

MUNIS is the financial management information system for Fairfield County and the
collaborative partners, with the exception of the City of Lancaster (although the City uses the
system for certain functions). A major upgrade for MUNIS occurred in 2011. MUNIS was a
significant departure from the previous system because it provided departments with the ability
to research and report on funds without having to rely on the Auditor’s Office staff to produce
and distribute financial information. The accessibility of information, along with the realization
that the county and its partners needed a dynamic, flexible financial management system, was the
deciding factor in the decision to implement MUNIS.

In addition to improving the quality and accessibility of information, MUNIS provided the
county and its partners the ability to implement an on-line applicant tracking module, an
employee self-service module, and an electronic process to distribute pay advice and W-2
information. These technological enhancements made it possible to meet increased demand for
services while budgets were flat or declining.

2) Implementation of a justice information and process management system for courts,
CourtView

The Fairfield County Court of Common Pleas, both the General Division and the Domestic
Relations Division, and the Clerk of Courts worked together to implement CourtView, which is a
court administration management system. CourtView has been upgraded to scan every court
document. Having scanned images available with the administrative information of the courts
has allowed Fairfield County to manage an increasing caseload. The Domestic Relations
caseload, for example, increased 67% from 2000 to 2010, and no additional staff members were
hired during that timeframe.

CourtView was updated in 2011 with two new modules: eAccess and eDocket. eAccess
provides web-based access to the live CourtView database and is accessible by anyone with an
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Internet connection. This provides easy access to court information. eDocket allows for wider
access to CourtView images to appropriate Fairfield County employees, at less expense than
providing full CourtView access. These upgrades and modules were necessary steps in
developing a less paper intensive environment in the court system.

3) Document management solutions for child support enforcement, Northwoods Compass
Suite

The Fairfield County Job and Family Services child support agency implemented the
Northwoods Compass Suite for workflow and document management in 2008. In addition to the
pressures of increasing caseloads and fewer staff members, the agency also had to address
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) guidelines for the safeguarding of Federal Tax Information
(FTI). These rules required that any document that had IRS-provided information, which could
include address information as well as income tax information, be used only for child support
enforcement purposes and not be disclosed in any manner to anyone not part of that process.
Continuing to keep physical documents would have required the expensive and extensive
modification of storage areas to provide the double-lock, double-barrier requirement of the IRS.
By investing in the Compass document management system, the CSEA was able to satisfy the
FTI safeguarding requirements electronically. In addition, this system has enabled the CSEA to
handle larger caseloads with fewer staff members; the effective caseload for CSEA has increased
74% from 2009 to 2012.

4) Electronic document management tracking for Board of Commissioners’ resolutions and
minutes, MapSys

In 2012, the Fairfield County Board of Commissioners sought to make submitting resolutions
to the Board of Commissioners easier. The Board wanted to eliminate the voluminous amount of
paper necessary in a manual system while increasing access to information for the public. To
accomplish this goal, the Board implemented a web-based resolution management system,
MapSys. Key benefits of the system included consistency in format, searchable online records
access, and less time spent on preparation of agendas, resolutions, and supporting
documentation. The objective of MapSys was to improve organizational efficiency. Further,
using less paper translates to cost savings and a greener environment. All county departments
seeking Board action will benefit from the web-based system.

Each of the first four phases reduced paper, improved workflows, and increased efficiency.
While the first phases were specific to program areas, even if crossing several departments or
divisions, the next phase for a shared electronic document management system will bring about
even greater efficiency and build a foundation for additional partnerships.
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2012-02.28.a

IN THE MATTER OF Approval of a Parinership Agreement to conduct an information technology related
feasibility study dependent upon the award of a Local Government Innovation Council Grant

WHEREAS, The Fairfield County Board of Commissioners recognizes the importance of increasing
government efficiency and desires to increase quality of services through shared technology; and

WHEREAS, as political subdivisions of the State of Ohio and within Fairfield County, including the Fairfield
County Board of Commissioners, desire to enter into a parinership agreement to demonstrate cooperation
and support for the completion of a feasibility study, dependent upon the award of a Local Government
Innovation Fund (LGIF) grant; and

WHEREAS, the feasibility study will identify a phased approach to share informational technology services
in order to improve customer service and increase efficiency in accessing and storing public records; and

WHEREAS, the fiscal agent for the grant project will be Fairfield County, based on the anticipation of the
first phase of the project focusing on records produced within an existing financial system (MUNIS) and
functionalities with (1} Fairfield County, (2) the Fairfield County Historical Parks District, (3) the Fairfield
County Soil and Water Conservation District, (4) the Fairfield County Regional Planning Commission, (5)
the Fairfield County Department of Health, (6) the Fairfield, Hocking, Licking, and Perry Joint Juvenile
Detention District, (for which Fairfield County Serves as the fiscal agent for these six political subdivisions),
and (7) the City of Lancaster; and

WHEREAS, the Prosecuting Attorney has approved the partnership agreement as to form.

NOW THEREFORE,

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners, County of
Fairfield, State of Ohio:

SECTION 1. That the Fairfield County Board of Commissioners hereby supports the application to the
Local Govemment Innovation Council for funding to conduct an information technology related feasibility
study.

SECTION 2. That the Fairfield County Board of Commissioners hereby approves the attached partnership
agreement and authorizes its President to execute said agreement.

Motion by JUDITH SHUPE seconded by MIKE KIGER

that the resolution be adopted was carried by the following vote:

YEAS: SHUPE, KIGER, DAVIS  NAYS: NONE

ABSTENTIONS: NONE

cc: Commissioners’ Office

ADOPTED FEBRUARY 28, 2012

Board of County Commissioners Branden C. Meyer, Clerk/Manager
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PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT

This agreement (“Agreement”) is made this qumday of February, 2012 by, between, and
amongst all of the following, all of which are political subdivisions of the State of Ohio: the Board of
Commissioners of Fairfield County, Ohio (“the County”); the Fairfield County Historical Parks District
(“the Parks District”); the Fairfield County Soil and Water Conservation District (“the SWCD”); the
Fairfield County Regional Planning Commission (“the RPC”); the Fairfield County Department of Health
(“the DOH™), the Fairfield, Hocking, Licking, and Perry Joint Juvenile Detention District (“the JJDD™);
and Fairtield County. Collectively, all of the foregoing entities shall be referred to herein as “the Parties”
and any single such entity shall be referred to as “a Party” or “the Party”.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, each of the Parties are political subdivisions of the State of Ohio as defined in
Revised Code Section 189.01; and

WHEREAS, each of the Parties desire to enter into this Agreement, amongst other reasons, to
cooperate to obtain funding to conduct and complete the feasibility study described below; and

WHEREAS, such feasibility study (1) will identify a phased approach to share informational
technology services between and amongst the Parties in order to improve customer service and increase
efficiency in accessing and storing public records using technology, including automated business
processes and improvements in emergency management plans, (2) is expected to demonstrate process
implementation steps for information technology services for records retention and retrieval while also
supplementing and improving emergency management plans and (3) will serve as a foundation for future
requests for loans to the Local Government Innovation Council (“the Project™); and

WHEREAS, the targeted approach to innovation described above, and herein, is shared services
oriented to achieve greater efficiency in combined service delivery.

WHEREAS, the conduct and completion of the feasibility study is wholly dependent upon the
award of a Local Government Innovation Fund (“LGIF”) grant (created pursuant to Revised Code Section
189.05) by the LGIC to the Parties which grant would fund such feasibility study; and

WHEREAS, the Partics intend to submit an application to the Local Government Innovation
Council (“LGIC”) to obtain a grant for the Project during the first calendar quarter of year 2012.

NOW THEREFORE, for adequate consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, and for the promises set forth herein, and intending to be legally bound, the Parties to this
Agreement do hereby agree as follows:

1. Term of Agreement - This Agreement is in effect March 1, 2012, through March 1, 2013.

2. Fiscal Agent - The County shall be the fiscal agent for the grant Project and shall be responsible
for submitting the grant application for and on behalf of all of the Parties.

3. Grant Application — The grant application for the Project shall be submitted by the County for
and on behalf of each and all of the Parties. The grant application shall describe the first phase of
the Project which shall focus on developing an approach to share informational and technology
services amongst the Parties for records which are currently being produced by an existing
financial system and functionalities now in use by the Parties and known as the MUNIS System.

1
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Responsibilities and In-Kind Contributions by the Parties — The Parties shall each cooperate with
the County in the development of the grant application and in any further needs that the County
has in either the application or, if the grant is awarded to the Parties, in the administration of the
grant itself. Such cooperation shall include, but not be limited to, the provision by the Parties of
in-kind service contributions toward the grant application and the administration of the grant if it
is awarded.

No Monetary Contributions — While the Parties are each expected to provide in-kind
contributions to the preparation of the grant application and the progress of the Project, this
Agreement does not require financial contributions from any of the Parties.

Award of Grant — If the LGIC awards the grant to the Parties, then the County shall establish and
maintain a special revenue fund for the grant funds for accounting purposes. No adjustment to
any appropriation measure of any political subdivision is expected, with the exception of the
adjustments relating to the award of the feasibility study grant.

Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement is being executed and delivered in Fairfield County
in the State of Ohio and shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws
of the State of Ohio. In addition, any action at law, suit in equity or judicial proceeding for the
enforcement of this Agreement or any provision hereof shall be instituted only in either the
Municipal or Common Pleas courts of Fairfield County, Ohio and in no other courts.

Paragraph Headings. The paragraph headings are inserted in this Agreement only for
convenience, and in no way define, limit, or describe the scope of intent of any provision of this
Agreement.

Unenforceable Provisions. If any term, covenant, warranty, paragraph, clause, condition, or
provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or
unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired, or invalidated, and this Agreement shall be
construed as if the invalid, void, or unenforceable provisions were omitted.

Remedies Not Exclusive. All of the rights, benefits, and remedies provided to either party by this
Agreement, or by any instrument or document executed pursuant to this Agreement, shall be
cumulative and shall not be exclusive of any rights, remedies and benefits allowed by law or
equity to the parties.

No Waiver of Rights. Failure by either party to insist on or enforce any of their rights shall not
constitute a waiver of those rights by the parties, and nothing shall constitute a waiver of the
parties' right to insist on strict compliance with the provisions of this Agreement.

Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and
their respective successors, assigns, heirs, and personal represcntatives except as otherwise
provided herein.

Recitals — The Recitals sel forth above are incorporated herein by reference.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date written above.

FAIRFIELD COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
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Steve Davis
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2012-02.28.a

IN THE MATTER OF Approval of a Parinership Agreement to conduct an information technoloay related
feasibility study dependent upon the award of a Local Government Innovation Council Grant

WHEREAS, The Fairfield County Board of Commissioners recognizes the importance of increasing
govemment efficiency and desires to increase quality of services through shared technology; and

WHEREAS, as poiitical subdivisions of the State of Ohio and within Fairfield County, including the Fairfield
County Board of Commissioners, desire to enter into a partnership agreement to demonstrate cooperation
and support for the completion of a feasibility study, dependent upon the award of a Local Government
Innovation Fund (LGIF) grant; and

WHEREAS, the feasibility study will identify a phased approach to share informational fechnology services
in order to improve customer service and increase efficiency in accessing and storing public records; and

WHEREAS, the fiscal agent for the grant project will be Fairfield County, based on the anticipation of the
first phase of the project focusing on records produced within an existing financial system (MUNIS}) and
functionalities with (1) Fairfield County, (2) the Fairfield County Historical Parks District, (3) the Fairfield
County Soil and Water Conservation District, (4) the Fairfield County Regional Planning Commission, (5)
the Fairfield County Department of Health, (6) the Fairfield, Hocking, Licking, and Perry Joint Juvenile
Detention District, (for which Fairfield County Serves as the fiscal agent for these six political subdivisions),
and (7) the City of Lancaster; and

WHEREAS, the Prosecuting Attorney has approved the partnership agreement as to form.

NOW THEREFORE,

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners, County of
Fairfield, State of Ohio:

SECTION 1. That the Fairfield County Board of Commissioners hereby supports the application to the
Local Government Innovation Council for funding to conduct an information technology related feasibility
study.

SECTION 2. That the Fairfield County Board of Commissioners hereby approves the attached partnership
agreement and authorizes its President to execute said agreement.

Motion by _JUDITH SHUPE seconded by MIKE KIGER

that the resolution be adopted was carried by the following vote:

YEAS: _SHUPE, KIGER, DAVIS NAYS: NONE

ABSTENTIONS: NONE

cc: Commissioners’ Office

ADOPTED FEBRUARY 28, 2012

A=

Board of County Commissioners Branden C. Meyer, Clerk/Manager
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, Resolution #201209
In the matter of approval of a partnership agreement to conduct an information technology
related feasibility study dependent upon the award of a Local Government Innovation Council
QGrant

WHEREAS, The Fairfield County Historical Parks District recognizes the importance of
increasing government efficiency and desires to increase quality of services through shared
technology; and

WHEREAS, as political subdivisions of the State of Ohio and within Fairfield County,
including the Fairfield County Historical Parks District, desire to enter into a partnership
agreement to demonstrate cooperation and support for the completion of a feasibility study,
dependent upon the award of a Local Government Innovation Fund (LGIF) grant; and

WHEREAS, the feasibility study will identify a phased approach to share informational
technology services in order to improve customer service and increase efficiency in accessing
and storing public records; and

WHEREAS, the fiscal agent for the grant project will be Fairfield County, based on the
anticipation of the first phase of the project focusing on records produced within an existing
financial system (MUNIS) and functionalities with (1) Fairfield County, (2) the Fairfield County
Historical Parks District, (3) the Fairfield County Soil and Water Conservation District, (4) the
Fairfield County Regional Planning Commission, (5) the Fairfield County Department of Health,
(6) the Fairfield, Hocking, Licking, and Perry Joint Juvenile Detention District, (for which
Fairfield County Serves as the fiscal agent for these six political subdivisions), and (7) the City
of Lancaster; and

WHEREAS, the Prosecuting Attorney has approved the partnership agreement as to form.

NOW THEREFORE,

BE IT RESOLVED by the Fairfield County Historical Parks District, County of
Fairfield, State of Ohio:

SECTION 1. That the Fairfield County Historical Parks District hereby supports the application
to the Local Government Innovation Council for funding to conduct an information technology
related feasibility study.

SECTION 2. That the Fairfield County Historical Parks District hereby approves the attached
partnership agreement and authorizes its President to execute said agreement.

Motion by M. ,S‘mmz (or- secondedby /K . fMarinarc)

that the resolution be adopted was carried by the following vote:
YEAS: 2. NAYS:___ (D ABSTENTIONS:

ADOPTED: az/ / 3,// 2
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RESOLUTION #2012-1
IN THE MATTER OF the approval of a partnership agreement to conduct an information

technology related feasibility study dependent upon the award of a Local Government
Innovation Council grant

WHEREAS, the Fairfield Soil & Water Conservation District recognizes the importance of
increasing government efficiency and desires to increase quality of services through shared
technology; and

WHEREAS, political subdivisions of the state of Ohio and within Fairfield County, including the
Fairfield Soil & Water Conservation District, desire to enter into a partnership agreement to
demonstrate cooperation and support for the completion of a feasibility study, dependent upon
the award of a Local Government Innovation Fund (LGIF) grant, and

WHEREAS, the feasibility study will identify a phased approach to share informational
technology services in order to improve customer service and increase efficiency in accessing
and storing public records, and

WHEREAS, the fiscal agent for the grant project will be Fairfield County, based on the
anticipation of the first phase of the project focusing on records produced within an existing
financial system (MUNIS) and functionalities with (1) Fairfield County, (2) the Fairfield County
Historical Parks District, (3) the Fairfield County Soil and Water Conservation District, (4) the
Fairfield County Regional Planning Commission, (5) the Fairfield County Department of Health,
(6) the Fairfield, Hocking, Licking, and Perry Joint Juvenile Detention District, (for which Fairfield
County serves as the fiscal agent for these six political subdivisions), and (7) the City of
Lancaster, and

WHEREAS, the Prosecuting Attorney has approved the partnership agreement as to form,
NOW THEREFORE,

BE IT RESOLVED by the Fairfield Soil & Water Conservation District, County of Fairfield, State
of Ohio:

Section 1. That the Fairfield Soil & Water Conservation District hereby supports the application

to the Local Government Innovation Council for funding to conduct an information technology
related feasibility study.

Section 2. That the Fairfield Soil & Water Conservation District hereby approves the attached
partnership agreement and authorizes its Chair to execute said agreement.

Motion by JOHN ALBERT seconded by BONNY CALDERWOORhat the resolution be adopted was
carried by the following vote:

YEAS: 5 NAYS: _ NONE ABSTENTIONS:___ NONE

,W/gk@p:

Bob Hoffman, Chair
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RESOLUTION #2012-1
IN THE MATTER OF the approval of a partnership agreement to_conduct an information
technology related feasibility study dependent upon the award of a Local Government
Innovation Council (LGIC) grant

WHEREAS, the Fairfield County Regional Planning Commission recognizes the importance of
increasing government efficiency and desires to increase quality of services through shared
technology; and

WHEREAS, political subdivisions of the state of Ohio and within Fairfield County, including the
Fairfield County Regional Planning Commission, desire to enter into a partnership agreement to
demonstrate cooperation and support for the completion of a feasibility study, dependent upon the
award of a Local Government Innovation Fund (LGIF) grant, and

WHEREAS, the feasibility study will identify a phased approach to share informational technology
services in order to improve customer service and increase efficiency in accessing and storing
public records, and

WHEREAS, the fiscal agent for the grant project will be Fairfield County, based on the anticipation
of the first phase of the project focusing on records produced within an existing financial system
(MUNIS) and functionalities with (1) Fairfield County, (2) the Fairfield County Historical Parks
District, (3) the Fairfield County Soil and Water Conservation District, (4) the Fairfield County
Regional Planning Commission, (5) the Fairfield County Department of Health, and the (6) the
Fairfield, Hocking, Licking, and Perry Joint Juvenile Detention District, and

WHEREAS, additional political subdivisions may desire to join the partnership agreement prior to
its submission to the LGIC.

WHEREAS, the Prosecuting Attorney has approved the partnership agreement as to form,

NOW THEREFORE,

BE IT RESOLVED by the Fairfield County Regional Planning Commission , County of Fairfield,
State of Ohio:

Section 1. That the Fairfield County Regional Planning Commission hereby supports the
application to the Local Government Innovation Council for funding to conduct an information
technology related feasibility study.

Section 2. That the Fairfield County Regional Planning Commission hereby approves the attached
partnership agreement and authorizes its President to execute said agreement along with any
amendments necessary for adjusting the number of political subdivisions included within said
agreement.

Motion by Ira Weiss seconded by _Douq_Ingram that the resolution be adopted was
carried by the following vote:

YEAS: 23 NAYS: 0 ABSTENTIONS:__ 0

James R. Hochradel, President
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TIEeAI RF IE I_D RESOLUTION 2012-11

Department of Health February 9, 2012

To approve a partnership agreement to conduct an information technology related feasibility study
dependent upon the award of a Local Government Innovation Council grant.

WHEREAS, The Fairfield County General Health District Board of Health recognizes the importance of

increasing government efficiency and desires to increase quality of services through shared technology;
and

WHEREAS, as political subdivisions of the State of Ohio and within Fairfield County, including the
Fairfield County General Health District, desire to enter into a partnership agreement to demonstrate

cooperation and support for the completion of a feasibility study, dependent upon the award of a Local
Government Innovation Fund (LGIF) grant, and

WHEREAS, the feasibility study will identify a phased approach to share informational technology
services in order to improve customer service and increase efficiency in accessing and storing public
records; and

WHEREAS, the fiscal agent for the grant project will be Fairfield County, based on the anticipation of the
first phase of the project focusing on records produced within an existing financial system (MUNIS) and
functionalities with (1) Fairfield County, (2) the Fairfield County Historical Parks District, (3) the Fairfield
County Soif and Water Conservation District, {4) the Fairfield County Regional Planning Commission, (5)
the Fairfield County Department of Health, (6) the Fairfield, Hocking, Licking, and Perry Joint Juvenile
Detention District, (for which Fairfield County Serves as the fiscal agent for these six political
subdivisions ), and (7) the City of Lancaster, and

WHEREAS, the Prosecuting Attorney has approved the partnership agreement as to form,

NOW THEREFORE, upon motion of Board Member Tina Childers
and seconded by Board Member Charlie Engen

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE FAIRFIELD COUNTY GENERAL HEALTH DISTRICT BOARD OF HEALTH:

Section 1. That the Fairfield County General Health District Board of Health hereby
supports the application to the Local Government Innovation Council for
funding to conduct an information technology related feasibility study.

1587 Granvile Pike « Lancaster, Ohio 43130 - {T) 740 653 4489 « (F) 740 653 6625 - www myfdh org  an equal opporiunity emplayer
Prevent Protect Promote
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Resolution 2012-11
February 9, 2012

Section 2, That the Fairfield County General Health District Board of Health hereby

approves the attached partnership agreement and authorizes its
President to execute said agreement.

) Py
i Dr. Darryl Koop

{absent)

at, Board of‘Ht}_aith Board Member

Bofrd Member Board Member

o

AN NS

H
Secretary, Board of Health
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RRSOLUTION 2012.05

WudemdeNMchm
desire to entar into a partnership agresment to demonstrate cooperation and support for
the completion of a feasibility study, dependent upon the award of a Local Govemiment
Innavation Fund (LGIF) grant, and
anmmwamwmmw
tachnology seivices in order {0 improve cusiomer service and increase elficiency in
accessing and stodng public raconds, and

WHEREAS, the fiscal agent for the grant project will be Falrfiekd Counly, based on the
anticipation of the first phasa of the project focusing on records produced within an
sxisting financial system (MUNIS) and functionalities with (1) Fakfield County, {2) the
Fairfisld County Historical Parks District, (3) the Falifleld County Soll and Water
Conservation District, (4) the Falrfield County Regional Planning Commission, (5) the
Falrfield County Department of Health, (8) the Falifleld, Hocldng, Licking, and Perty
Jaint Juvenile Detention District, (for which Falifield County serves as the fiscal agent
for these six political subdivisions, and (7) the Clty of Lancaster desires 10 be included In
the approach, which fuither sxpands the scalable and replicable nature of the project,
and )
WHEREAS, the Prosecuting Attomey has approved the partnership agreement as to
form,

NOW THEREFORE,

BE IT RESOLVED by the Joint Board of the Fairfieid, Hacking, Licking and Perry Joint
Juvenile Detention District

SECTION 1. That the Fairfield, Hocking, Licking and Perry Joint Juvenile Detention District
hareby supports the application to the Local Gavernment innovation Council for funding to
conduct an informalion technology related feasibility study.

muouw%:&liﬂh_smmdhy reel SINCE that the resolution be adopted was
carriad by the wing vote:

YEAS: 8 NAYS: ) ABSTENTIONS: R,
cc: Carl lrovm. JFS

4 i." & RAATN -!dl AALN )
S

=t
BIIMNNY
\J
> . L. Adopted:
Daas myore ﬂhtu\-
INT BOARD OF COM, ONERS MCIDC W Dats
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CITY OF LANCASTER

David S. Smith, Mayor
Municipal Building
104 East Main Street
Room 101
Lancaster, OH 43130
740-687-6600 ~ 740-687-6698 (fax)
mavor@ci.lancaster.oh.us

February 28, 2012

To Whom It May Concern:

The City of Lancaster eagerly joins Fairfield County, the Fairfield County Historical Parks
District, the Fairfield County Soil and Water Conservation District, the Fairfield County
Regional Planning Commission, the Fairfield County Department of Health, and the Fairfield,
Hocking, Licking, and Perry Joint Juvenile Detention District as a partner in promoting
collaboration. We propose to share document management solutions to better serve the public
and improve business processes. We are aware of steps that have been taken within the past two
years to further shared services, and we are encouraged by this most recent effort to apply for a
Local Government Innovation Fund grant to conduct an information technology feasibility study.
The feasibility study will serve as a foundation for additional collaborations and shared services.

The City will support the project by providing in-kind contributions, participating in the study,
and contributing subject matter experts to promote the project in its phased approach.

Ultimately, technological enhancements will foster changes in workflow processes. These
workflow changes will improve efficiency of our collective business processes. For example,
current time-consuming processes concerning storing and retrieving documents from a variety of
physical locations can be replaced with more efficient electronic processes and collaborative
workflows that will allow staff to better solve problems and serve the needs of the citizens. We
see value in including the partners in the feasibility study so that decisions about technological
enhancements can be made in the most efficient and forward-thinking manner as possible.

In a time when local governments are reinventing processes in order to obtain as much public
value as possible, we are pleased to join the effort to obtain a Local Government Innovation
Fund grant. We at the City of Lancaster wholly support the collaborative project and urge the
Local Government Innovation Council to fund the feasibility study. We believe the partnership
will be successful in setting the stage for electronic document management, as well as improved
administrative processes for the local government entities that are sharing services in connection
with the project.

I

Sincerely,.

i

Mayor
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STEVE AUSTRIA

77TH DisTRICT, OHIO

COMMITTEE ON APPROPRIATIONS
SuBcOMMITTEE ON COMMERCE,
JUSTICE, SCIENCE, AND RELATED AGENCIES

SuBCOMMITTEE ON MILITARY CONSTRUCTION,
VETERANS AFFAIRS, AND RELATED AGENCIES

WASHINGTON OFFICE

439 Cannon House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515 SUBCOMMITTEE ON STATE, FOREIGN

CO N G R ESS O F TH E U N ITE D STATE S OPERATIONS, AND RELATED PROGRAMS
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

(202) 2254324

February 28, 2012

Christiane Schmenk, Director

Local Government Innovation Council Chairperson
77 South High Street, P.O. Box 1001

Columbus, Ohio 43216-1001 U.S.A.

Dear Ms. Schmenk,

I am writing as the Representative for the Seventh Congressional District of Ohio to
express my support for Fairfield County’s application for the Local Government Innovation
Fund (LGIC) Grant.

The primary objective of the Local Government Innovation Fund (LGIC) is to conduct a
feasibility study which is aimed at identifying an approach to sharing informational technology
services between governmental parties in order to improve customer service. In addition, this
grant will help increase efficiency in accessing and storing public records using technology,
including automated business processes and improvements in emergency management plans.
This study is also expected to demonstrate process implementation steps for information
technology services for records retention and retrieval while also supplementing and improving
emergency management plans. Finally, this feasibility study will serve as a foundation for future
requests for loans to the Local Government Innovation Council.

I firmly believe that this study will be of benefit to Fairfield County and the communities

in which it serves. Thus, I urge full funding for the Local Government Innovation Fund (LGIC)
Grant. If I can be of further assistance, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

oy (At

Steve Austria

Member of Congress
SPRINGFIELD OFFICE LANCASTER OFFICE
5 West North Street 207 South Broad Street
Suite 200 Lancaster, OH 43130-4307
Springfield, OH 45504-2544
{740) 654-5149
(937) 325-0474 THIS STATIONERY PRINTED ON PAPER MADE OF RECYCLED FIBERS
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Appendix C
Contributions of the AIMS Partnership and Certifications

39




Collaboration and creativity are needed so that public entities can provide critical services to
constituents during tough economic times. From workload statistics and budget projections, it is apparent that
the long term demand for public services exceeds the long term revenue curve of local governments. This
tremendous challenge inspires leaders to envision the potential of joining together and establishing the right
partnerships to aggregate strength and accomplish things that could not be accomplished individually. For
example, many administrative services within local governments are the same services and require the same
applications and software to get the job done. Recognizing this important foundation of collaboration and
envisioning effective results for the public, the Fairfield County Advanced Innovative Management Solution
(AIMS) partnership embraces creative solutions to find new paths to success.

Fairfield County is serving as the lead applicant for the AIMS partnership. As such, the County has
actively discussed and pursued collaboration since its budget retreat held in September 2011. To build
consensus for the partnership approach, it was important to understand collaboration from the top down.
Leaders wanted the value of collaboration to become part of the broad, organizational culture, where every
employee knew that leaders valued innovation and expected new ideas and solutions. Leaders established
openness to new ways of doing business. This culture change was critical to the success of any project that is
accomplished with support of the Local Government Innovation Council and with other resources, as well.

The County cultivated consensus and culture change through a series of meetings, ongoing
communications, and intense networking. No outside consultants were utilized. Executives from within the
county demonstrated transformational leadership to inspire others. Analyses and research were evaluated to
develop consensus on the partnership projects to pursue first, as well as the ones to continue to synthesize.
Notes and minutes were maintained for all presentations and networking sessions. The strategies used with the
county can be replicated in other areas, and county leadership is willing to share information and ideas about
how to increase collaboration.

Collaboration and teamwork are organizational values, and as such, each employee has a role to play.
Because all employees are involved in the culture of change, in-kind contributions associated with building
consensus across multiple partnerships is extended at the average hourly rate for partners, including benefits, as
a reasonable approach. Confirmed with the County Human Resources Director on February 22, 2012, this
hourly rate is approximately $25, which is far below the professional management consultant rates ranging from
$185 - $212. A list of all attendees and hours invested in building consensus across multiple political
subdivisions for innovation and collaboration is demonstrated in the following chart. A list of participants,
addresses, phone numbers, and occupations is also included. The total number of hours for the effort was 435
(from September 2011 to February 2012), extended at $25, for a contribution to the partnership of $10,875.

I att?')to the accuracy and validity of the collaboration related expenses from 9/ 2011 - 2/2012.

. WW February 29, 2012

Carri Brown, Fairfield County Collaboration Group Chair Date

State of Ohio
County of Fairfield ss:

Stephen D. ﬁ?.rowrb@@ssion does not expire
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Frank Anderson

Engineer's Office

ounty Engineer

3026 W. Fair Avenue

(retired 12/31/2011) 652-2300 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
eff Baird Engineer's Office Chief Depuly Engineer 3026 W. Fair Avenue
652-2300 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Lynette Barnhart Prosecutor's Office Administrative Assistant 239 W. Main St
652-7576 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
inda Bibter Family, Adult & Children First Administrative Assistant 108 W. Main Street, Ste. B
Councii 687-6771 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
usan Bloom Board of Elections Director 951 Liberty Drive
662-7002 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
ich Bowlen Job and Family Services Director, Child Protective 239 W. Main St
Services 652-7688 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
arri Brown Job and Family Services Deputy Director, Finance 239 W. Main St
and Budget 652-7602 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
avid Burgel Auditor's Office GIS Administrator 210 E. Main Street
652-7059 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
[Ed Campbell City of Lancaster Director, Information 104 E. Main Street
Technology 687-6645 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
andy Carter Auditor's Office Director, Information 210 E. Main Street
Technology 652-7076 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Corey Clark Job and Family Services Deputy Director, Child 239 W. Main St
Support 652-7751 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
isty Conkle Common Pleas Court Assignment 224 E. Main Street
[: Commissioner 652-7431 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
lark Conrad Common Pleas Court- Court Information 224 E. Main Street
Domestic Relations Division Specialist 652-7607 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
unie Cordie Human Resources Director 239 W. Main St
652-7890 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Uack Davidson Coroners Office Assistant to Coroner 239 W. Main St
652-7090 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
teve Davis Board of Commissioners County Commissioner 210 E. Main Street
E 652-7098 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Tisa Dowdy Sheriff's Office Fiscal Clerk 221 E. Main Street
652-7328 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
James Edwards Proseculor’s Office Assistant Prosecutor 239 W. Main Street
652-7564 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
ecky Edwards Famity, Adult & Children First Executive Director 108 W. Main Street, Ste. B
Council 687-6771 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
usan Eyerman Common Pleas Court agistrate 224 E. Main Street
652-7424 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
hane Farnsworth tcomonic Development Executive Director 210 E. Main Street
652-7162 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
hristina Foster Board of Commissioners Administrative Assistant 210 E. Main Street
652-7082 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
enneth Gregg Veteran's Services Veterans Services 227 E. Main Street
Commissioner 652-7920 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
iy Hanna Health Department Director 1587 Granville Pike
6622817 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
heresa Haynes Board of Commissioners Clerical Specialist 210 E. Main Street
652-7092 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
[Christina Hokt Soil and Water Administrative Assistant 831 College Avenue
Conservation District 653-8154 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Laura Holton Job and Family Services Director, Community 239 W. Main Street
Services 652-7617 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
inda Kauffman tcomonic Development Administrative Assistant 210 E. Main Street
652-7161 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Mike Kiger Board of Commissioners County Commissioner 210 E. Main Street
652-7099 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
taci Knisley Board of Commissioners Fiscal Clerk 210 E. Main Street
652-7093 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
on Kochis EMA Executive Director 241 W. Main Street
652-7961 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
rian Kuhn Treasurer's Office County Treasurer 210 E. Main Street
652-7148 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
d Laramee Auditor's Office Chief Deputy Auditor 210 E. Main Street
652-7023 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
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Common Pleas Court- Court Administrator 224 E. Main Street
Domestic Relations Division 652-7444 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Soil and Water Senior Urban 831 College Avenue
Conservation District Specialist 653-8154 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Common Pleas Court Judge 224 E. Main Street
652-7429 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Prosecutor's Office County Prosecutor 239 W. Main Street
652-7562 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Regional Planning Executive Director 210 E. Main Strest
Commission 652-7112 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Recorder's Office Chief Deputy Recorder 210 E. Main Street
652-7090 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Board of Commissioners County Clerk/Manager 210 E. Main Street
652-7091 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Auditor's Office Finance Administrator 210 E. Main Street
652-7046 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Prosecutor's Office Assistant Prosecutor 239 W. Main Street
652-7567 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
ADAMH Board Executive Director 108 W. Main Street
654-0829 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Auditor's Office Assistant Finance 210 E. Main Street
Administrator 652-7045 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Job and Family Services Director, Job and Family 239 W. Main Street
Services 652-7600 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Soil and Water District Manager 831 College Avenue, Ste. B
Conservation District 653-8154 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Lohn Pekar Board of Superintendent 795 College Avenue
Developmental Disabilities 652-3752 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
[Jery Perrigo Sheriff's Office Chief Deputy Sheriff 221 E. Main Street
652-7323 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Dave Phalen Sheriff's Office County Sheriff 221 E. Main Street
652-7254 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
my Presnell Treasurer's Office Chief Deputy Treasurer 210 E. Main Street
652-7144 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
ean Scholl Veteran's Services Veterans Services 227 E. Main Street
Commissioner 652-7920 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
th Seifert Board of Chief Fiscal Officer 795 College Avenue
Developmental Disabilities 652-7220 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Gwen Shater Health Department Nursing Director 1587 Granville Pike
652-2827 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
hen Shaw Juvenile/Probate Court Court Administrator 224 E. Main Street
652-7470 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Don Sherman Utilities Department Deputy Director 210 E. Main Street
652-7125 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
[Judith Shupe Board of Commissioners County Commissioner 210 E. Main Street
652-7095 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Jon Slater Auditor's Office County Audrtor 210 E. Main Street
652-7024 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
ie Smalley Clerk of Courts Clerk of Courts 224 E. Main Street
It)em 652-7551 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
aura Smith Common Pleas Court- Judge 224 E. Main Street
Domestic Relations Division 652-7452 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
imberly Teague Job and Family Services Administrative Assistant 239 W. Main St
r 652-7601 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Kelly Turben Clerk of Courts Chief Deputy Clerk 224 E. Main Street
652-7391 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Lleremiah Upp Engineer's Office County Engineer 3026 W. Fair Avenue
(appointed 1/17/2012) 652-2300 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
ony Vogel tilities Department/ Facilities Manager and 210 E. Main Street
Maintenance Utilities Director 652-7121 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
teve Willlams Juvenile/Probate Court Judge 224 E. Main Street
652-7463 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
Heather Winchell Clerk of Courts Fiscal Clerk 224 €. Main Street
652-7394 Lancaster, Ohio 43130
o0d Recorders Umce County Recoraer 210 E. Main Street
652-7101

Lancaster, Ohio 43130
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JParticipants

Frank Anderson
Jeff Baird

fLynette Barnhart
ILinda Bibler

Susan Bloom
JRich Bowlen
ICarri Brown

IDavid Burgei

IEd Campbell

IHandy Carter
ICorey Clark

IMisty Conkle

IMark Conrad

Aunie Cordle

Jack Davidson

Steve Davis

Elisa Dowdy

James Edwards
IBecky Edwards

Susan Eyerman

Shane Farnsworth
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[Christina Foster
IKenneth Gre

ILarry Hanna

Theresa Haynes
IChristina Holt

ILaura Holton

ILinda Kauffman
IMike Kiger

8taci Knisley

Jon Kochis

IBrian Kuhn

IEd Laramee

ILori Lovas
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MapSys is the Fairfield County Board of Commissioners’ web-based resolution
management system. Key benefits of the system include consistency in format, searchable
online records access, and less time spent on preparation of agendas, resolutions, and supporting
documentation, which improves organizational efficiency. Further, using less paper transiates to
cost savings and a greener environment. Any partner seeking Board action will benefit from the
web-based system. To further AIMS, scanning services were purchased trom October 2011 —
February 2012 at a cost of $23,554.  Software and installation of the web-based system totaled
$60,901, which was paid 1n the first quarter of 2012. The following documents provide
additional support and detail for the costs, which were essential steps in furthering the AIMS
project and will be integral elements considered in the feasibility study.

The total MapSys costs associated with AIMS is $84,455.

I attest to the accuracy and validity of the web-based resolution and scanning services costs
associated with the project.

CM i% t&m—) february 29,2012

Carri Brown, Fairfield County Collaboration Chair Date

State of Ohio
County of Fairfield ss:

Before me, a Notary Public for the State of Ohio, appeared Carri Brown who acknowledged and
signed the fostrument, and her signing was her free act.

2-29-12

Stephen(D.h‘m@)mmission does not expire
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SCANNING SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Scanning Services Agreement (“Agreement"”) is between 3SG Corporation, 344 Cramer Creek Court, Dublin,
OH 43017 (hereafter referred to as "Contractor”), and Client, Fairfield County East Main Street
Lancaster, Ohio 43130, OH 44720 (hereafter referred to as “Client”).

ARTICLE | EFFECTIVE DATE

Section 1.01  This Agreement shall be effective on Mﬁﬁemb_f[ L_-i , 2011 and shall continue for a period of
one year (twelve months) until terminated according to its terms described in ARTICLE VIIL.

ARTICLE Il SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

Section 2.01  Client will retain Contractor for document conversion services for possible use in Client's
document management and workflow system implemented by Client, as further described in Article 4 of this
agreement, incorporated herein by reference. Specifically, the Services provide for Contractor to scan to
electronic image at Contractor's premises documents provided by Client in such a manner that the imaged
documents could be used as described herein and in the Statement of Work. While all scanning Services shall be
performed at Contractor's premises, such scanned images (‘lmages”) may be processed by Contractor outside of
Contractor's premises.

ARTICLE Wl GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS

Section 3.01  Quality assurance reflects the minimum accuracy of (i) the scanned Image as it represents the
document supplied to Contractor by Client, and (i) the indexing and retrieval of the scanned Images and files
based on the identifying data supplied to Contractor by Client. Contractor will not be responsible for bad image
qualities due to any flaws of the original documents, inctuding without limitation tears, improper photocopying,
blurry images, smears, inkblots, obfuscations, and the likes.

Section 3.02  Contractor’s quality assurance follows industry standards as set forth by CompTiA CDIA.

Section 3.03  In accordance with the applicable Statement of Work, if files of documents provided to Contractor
have barcodes applied to such files before being provided to Contractor, Contractor shall utilize the corresponding
assigned values from such barcodes for the indices. Client shall have an existing database which reflects

documents that have barcodes. Contractor shall rely on the accuracy of the barcodes and database and/or other
index data supplied by Client, and shall not be responsible for errors with respect to such data provided by Ciient.

Section 3.04  Pricing provided by Contractor is based on information provided by Client. Contractor will perform
a document inspection when first shipment is received to enstre provided information is a true representation of
the document inventory. If not, Contractor reserves the right to revise pricing based on document inspection.

» Pricing cannot be guaranteed if the project start date is delayed for more than 60 days from the contract
date.

o Pricing will be increased in cases where Client fails to deliver the requisite quantity of boxes pursuant to
the schedule described in the applicable State of Work.

» Any/All pricing set forth in Article 4 “Pricing” is understood to be for a specific scope or work written to this
agreement. Future projects will have unique pricing models.

Fairfield County
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In order to ensure successful merging of the customer document images with the indexing information
requested, a project specific document separator sheet may need to be created by 3SG and inserted into
the document. With respect to the cost of material and labor required to ensure accurate separation and
indexing, 3SG will invoice this single additional page per document or document type at the agreed upon
rate per image.

Additional images that the customer wishes to see in the final deliverable output such as: project or client
specific inserts, blank pages, forms, or document separators, are considered to be deliverable images
and are invoiced as such at the agreed upon rate per image.

There will be an additional charge for 100% guarantee of accuracy.

If additional hardware, software, or IT involvement is required, Contractor reserves the right to revise
pricing accordingly.

Storage fees may be assessed if the disposition of the source materials as described in the project scope
of work experiences a delay due to:

The lack of feedback from the customer regarding the quality or completion of the deliverable.
The lack of timely review of the deliverable by the client as agreed to in the scope of work.
The lack of timely approval for disposition by the client as agreed to in the scope of work.
When no fault in the contractor’s deliverable can be found.

0O 0 0O

Section 3.05  Based on the information provided thus far, no individual document type/classification index is
needed other than those indicated from the test. Upon further discovery if Contractor determines that an
individual document type/classification index is required, Contractor reserves the right to revise pricingwith the
prior written consent of client based on test sample and/or document inspection.

ARTICLE IV — PROJECT SPECIFIC ASSUMPTIONS

General Assumptions

1.1 This project entails the conversion of Fairfield County Commissioners meeting minute’s
documents from paper to a readable pdf electronic format.

1.2 There are 213 binders that contain these documents

1.3 Each binder has approximately 500 pages for conversion

1.4 Each page is double sided amounting to 1000 images per binder

1.5 It is estimated there will be 213,000 pages to be converted

1.6 Each page will not be more than 11°’x17”’ in size

1.7 Each meeting minutes will be indexed

1.8 Index will be the date of the meeting

1.9 There is no estimate that is determined as to the number of pages per meeting.

1.10  The conversion will be to a readable PDF format.

1.11  No software is provided for retrieval.

1.12  Each record can be either single sided or double sided.

1.13  All conversion processes performed by 3SG will be done offsite at one of 3SG's
production facilities.

o]
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Description of documents to be converted

1.14
1.15
1.16
1.17
1.18
1.19
1.20

There are approximately 213 binders to be converted.

Each binder consists of 1000 billable paper images.

Each side of a page will have one image.

There are approximately 213,000 pages.

There will be one index field for every meeting.

There is one document type

3SG will assume that the content of the documents to be accurate. 3SG will not sort the

order of the content or validate the accuracy of the content in a document.

1.21

3SG will utilize duplex scanning to capture the images.

3SG production process

3SG plans on utilizing the following production steps regarding this project:

1.22

Paper conversion

1.22.1 Inventory Control

1.22.2 Prepping **

1.22.3 Scanning

1.22.4 De-prepping

1.22.5 Indexing

1.22.6 Quality Assurance

1.22.7 Export

1.22.8 Conversion

1.22.9 Quality Control (Final Check)

**3SG will store the boxes for a maximum of 30 days after the scanning process is
completed. Afier the 30 day period, boxes will be returned to Client or its authorized
storage vendor can pick the boxes up from 35G production facility.

On-demand file requests

1.23

If client requires on-demand file request services during the conversion of their

documents there will be a process in place for electronic and or hard copy. An authorized
Client associate can request by email or by fax. Upon receipt of this request the 3SG’s “On
Demand” team will locate the document, scan it and send it via email to the requesting party
at no charge beyond the charges associated with scanning such records for inclusion in the
appropriate batch. All efforts will be made to complete the process within 30 minutes from
the requested time. This process will be clearly defined in the SOW
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Volume Metrics

124  There are approximately 213 binders of paper records to convert.
1.25  There are approximately 213,000 billable images.

QOutpat Metrics

126  Output format will be multi-page PDF.
1.27  Output format will be bi-tonal 200 dpi
1.28  Duplex scanning will be utilized.

1.29  Output will be exported to a CD/DVD

Transportation:

1.30  3SG is responsible for picking-up the boxes from Client, Ohio facility.
131  3SG is responsible for the delivery of the boxes along to Client at the same locations it
was picked up.

Pricing:
The proposed cost for the scenario described will remain in effect for 60-days from proposal delivery.

Prepping of documents
Paper scanning per image
Manual Indexing per field:
Conversion to PDF

OCR to every PDF image

Quality Assurance and Control

All inclusive $00.1014 per image
Project Setup up (One time): $1,700.00

Inventory and Boxing (if necessary): $25.00 per hour/per person
Transportation of boxes: $200.00 per trip

Based on the above stated assumptions:
Total price of all the above services will not exceed $25,000.00.

Section 5.02  An initial prepayment of twenty-five percent (25%) of the contract shall be due at the signing of
the Agreement. Thereafter, weekly invoices will be issued based on the quantity of Services completed during
such calendar one week period, and payments for such weekly invoices shall be reduced by ten percent (10%) of
the amount of such invoice, which reduction shall apply against the initial prepayment amount, and such
reductions shall continue until such time that the cumulative reduction amounts equal the initial prepayment
amount.

Fairfield County
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the event that the provisions in the CONSULTANT’S addendums and this
AGREEMENT conflict, this AGREEMENT will control.

SECTION 2. DELIVERY OF SERVICES AND PRODUCTS

See ADDENDUMS A, B, and C

SECTION 3. COST OF SERVICE PROVIDED. COUNTY shall compensate
CONSULTANT for the above-mentioned services and products as follows:

a. Payment Schedule:

Initial payment - Billable upon receipt of signed contract $ 5,000.00
Design Complete (screen layouts/database) Billable upon design
acceptance or 30 days after delivery of design if no changes are
requested $ 10,000.00
Programming Initiation - Billable upon the beginning of
development of the application. This event may or may not occur

prior to Completion of the Design $ 10,000.00
Delivery of Server and SQL Software $12,281.00
Tum over for testing $ 10,000.00
User Testing Completed - Billable upon user acceptance of the

application or the initiation of a Pilot project $ 10,000.00

Go Live - Billable upon deployment of the application for go-live
or within 60 days of the initiation of a Pilot project $ 3,620.00

b. CONSULTANT may invoice the COUNTY for services properly performed
and product delivered on a monthly basis. All invoices presented shall be in a
form acceptable to COUNTY’s Finance Director and shall specify the services
and product for which the Client is being invoiced. All invoices will be
subject to the Payment Schedule set forth above. Payment will be made to
CONSULTANT no later then (30) days after the COUNTY receives a proper
invoice for payment. Final payment to which CONSULTANT is entitled,
shall be made no later than thirty (30) days after all work and products
described in this Agreement has been satisfactorily completed and delivered,
the Clerk for the Commissioners and the Presiding Board of Commissioners
has certified to COUNTY’S Finance Director that the CONSULTANT’S
contract has been properly completed and all deliverable product has been

2



o L. Slter, S

FAIRFIELD COUNTY AUDITOR

210 East Main Street

Lancaster, OH 43130-3882

ORIGINAL

Purchase Order

Fiscal Year

2011 Page 1 of

Revisions Q00

THIS NUMBER MUST APPEAR ON ALL INVOICES,
: -~ PACKAGES AND SHIPPING PAPERS.

B COMM1 Purchase -
1| COUNTY COMMISSIONERS exoration bate 03152012 | Order £ 11007362-000
] 210 £ MAIN STREET
1k LANCASTER. OH 43130 DELIVERY MUST BE MADE WITHIN DOORS OF
T ! SPECIFIED DESTINATION
a8 g
'\7' g} COMM1
£l MAPSYS . H} COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
N} 920 MICHIGAN AVE F" 210 E MAIN STREET
8 COLUMBUS, OH 43204 ; : LANCASTER, OH 43130
) T
@_ 0
' Viéndor: Phope:Number “* | Vendor Fax Number) . Regquisition. Number . Delivery Reference
614-224-5193 8174
Date Ordered | Vendor. Number | Date Required |+ = Freight Method/Terms Z-n~ -Department/Location. -
11715/2011 5831 COMMISSIONERS ADMIN
temi# - | Description/Part No. 7 Qty JUCM Unit Price . . Extended Price
PO Regquisitioner Name: Comm - Staci Knisley
E Mail Address: sknisley@co.fairfield.oh.us
1 | softwarel/installation resolfution tracking 1 |Each $60,901.00000 $60,901.00
system
12100110 - 574420 60,901.00
w7
For Department Use ONLY
Invoice Date / / Invoice Amount $ To Be paid / /- Warrant # o
COUNTY AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE
Itls hereby certified that the amount $60,901.00 required to meet the contract, agresment, obilgation, Purchase Order Total
payment or sxpsnditure, for the above, has been lawfully appropriated, authorized or directed for such purpose and :
is in the County Treasury or In process of collection to the credit of the submitted Fund(s) free from any obligation or
certification now outstanding. $60,501.00
Date: 11/15/2011 Auditor Fairfield County, OH ’7% 2, )Zé, ﬂ_./ /% 55



For the Courtview project, necessary upgrades were completed in 2012 to prepare one of
the largest, document-laden departments, the Courts, for improved electronic document
management. While this initial step was important, there is much work yet to be done.
Information Technology department employees worked overtime from 1.14-1.27 to install and
set up the Courtview upgrades. Each of these employees is housed at 210 East Main Street,
Lancaster, OH 43130. Their occupations are listed in the table below. Professional services
provided for the Courtview project included installation, testing, and complete set up of the
upgrades. The rate of pay used for the service is the actual rate of pay paid, given the specific
nature of the service. The rate of pay paid, even with overtime for the non-salaried employees, is
less than the standard professional consulting service for an Information Technology
professional in the Columbus Metropolitan Area. Timesheets are included as additional
documentation of the hours worked. (Note: not all overtime hours for all employees were
related to the Courtview project, so some timesheet overtime hours are higher than the hours
reflected for the project. The timesheets provide additional evidence of the hours worked.)

Dates Hours

First Last Phone of of Rate of

Name name Number Occupation | Service | Service | Pay Overtime | Extended
(740) 652- 1.14-

Andrew | Gleissner | 7073 IT Analyst 1.27 10 24.50 36.75 367.50
(740) 652- 1.14-

Andrew | Stemen | 7074 IT Analyst 1.27 245 20.68 31.02 759.99
(740) 652- IT 1.14-

Denise | Gressick | 7072 Specialist 1.27 13.5 15.31 22.97 310.03
(740) 652- 1.14-

Fred Goodwin | 7071 IT Analyst 1.27 18 29.32 43,98 791.64

C. (740) 652- 1.14-

Randy Carter 7076 IT Director | 1.27 24 40.22 | N/A 965.28

Total

Dept 3,194.44

Additionally, The total amounts paid to Courtview for installation, licenses, technical services,
and related costs for the 2012 upgrade was $83,887, as documented in the Courtview quotations.
Contributions to the AIMS project based on Courtview total $85,887+$3,194, or $89,081.

I attest to the validity and accuracy of the AIMS related Courtview expenses.

C RO/\A/OLL(} C oS ar— February 29, 2012

C. Randy Carter, IT Director Date

State of Ohio
County of Fairfield ss:
me-a Notary Public for the State of Ohio, appeared C. Randy Carter who acknowledged and signed the
eptany his signing was his free act.

N 2-2%-l2
Stephen D. BroMnmission does not expire
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COUﬁVIEW Quote

JUSTICE SOLUTIONS

To: Deborah Smalley - Clerk of Courts Quote: FAIRFIOH20110317
Fairfield County Ohio » Date: ’ March 23, 2011
224 E Main Valid through: May 22, 2011
P.O. Box 370

: Lancaster, OH 43130
g Project.  Additional CourtView & Uniface Licenses, and Support and Maintenance

ftemn . . . Qty Unit Price . Total Imtial |
: SOFTWARE

CourtView CMS License(s) 20 $ 4050 $ 81,000

Uniface License(s) 20 3 600 $ 12,000

Subtotal, Software % 93,000
Customer Loyalty Allowance 50% 3 {48,500}
Net Software $ 46,500
SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE
Software Maintenance & Support on CV and Uniface (First year) $ 20,460
Discount on software maintenance & support 38% 5 {7.842)
Net Software Maintenance & Support $ 12,618

Estimated Baseline Project Total. excluding applicable taxes

Acceptedi'/);/?ﬁ/’f /’,?\ A Q‘jf /?\7 / /j"f i /dl‘/}vf @ % éj{:}’ 7, /:-/-fl.é{/,féjf " Date: ‘5”/‘;‘? ?i/ { f
' 7

Print Name / Signdture v

Notes

Quotation must be signed and returned with a purchase order to schedule project work.

The above fees will be invoiced upon the above signed date.

First year maintenance will begin upon the above signed date,

There are no technical or installation services included in this quote.

Client is responsible for the host environment including all required hardware, network and third party software components and configuration.
Client wilt make available all resources requested by CJS for assistance.

Payment term is net 30 days from invoice date.

-

NGO, bW

5339 LAUBY ROAD, NW | NORTH CANTCN, OHIO 44720 | 330.470.4280 | 330.484.2483 FAX
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Court\/iEW Quote

JUSTICE SOLUTIONS
To: Deborah Smatltey, Clerk of Courts Quote: FAIRFCP20110328
Fairfield County Ohio Date: March 28, 2011
224 E Main Valid through: May 31, 2011

P.O. Box 370
Lancaster. OH 43130

Projectt  CourtView eAccess Implementation

Hem Qty Unit Price : Total: . Initial
SOFTWARE
CourtView eAccess License (Single Public Portal) 1 $ 21,138 $ 21,138
Subtotal, Software $ 21,138
Discount (i executed before May 31, 2011) 5G% 3 {10,566}
Net Software $ 10,569
SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE
Software Maintenance & Support (1st year) $ 4,650
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

1.0 Baseline Services
1.1 Remote Services (Installation, Configuration, Training and 1 $ 4200 $ 4,200
Project Coordination - Fee)

Net Professional Services $ 4,200

Estimated Baseline Project Total, excluding applicable taxes

Accepted\./ é_;fﬂﬁ& }0”7/%{ / ﬁ];ﬁf{g/\ .7 Date: &:1;/{7?7‘/{/

Print Name / Signature
- L7/ s

e
Scope of Work
« Schedule and coordinate CJS resources related to eAccess installation, configuration and training.
« Review Customer host environment to ensure it meets CJS provided specifications - effort not to exceed 2 hours.
* Install current production release version of eAccess software in Customer provided and CJS validated host environment.
+ Configure connection between eAccess application and CourtView database.
« Test baseline functionality of eAccess application.
+ Complete standard eAccess canfiguration for Customer (add Customer specific headers, links, etc) - effort not to exceed 4 hours.
« Complete eAccess user access configuration - effort not to exceed 4 haurs.
« Provide eAccess Administrator Training - effort not to excead 2 hours.

Notes

1 Quetation must be signed and retumed with & purchase order for activation of ficense(s). mantenance and scheduiing of the project work,

2 Discounts only apply i quotation is signed and retumed to CJS prior to May 31, 2011,

3 Delivery will be scheduled for the first available date at which CJS and Customer resources are jontly available. Should rescheduling be
necessitated for any reason, the next available date at which CJS and Customer resources are both avaiable will be scheduted

4  Professional Services quoted are at 2 firm fixed price, bul extent of services is imited to the hours indicated in Scope of Work” section. Actual effort, costs and
expenses may be less than or greater than those estimated. Customer shall have no obligaton te pay CJS more than the estimated price  CJS shall have no
abligation Lo provide labor of incur costs or expenses having a combined vaiue more than the quoted price. even ff the services have not been completed or th2
delverabies gelivered, or the results expected by the Customer have not beer achieved. The parties may by mutual, written agreement, increase the quoted
price. Changes in scope will require a change order to increase the firm fixed price based upon the additional level of efiort required.

5 ff project is cancelled prior to compietion, ail effort and travei-related costs expended througn the date of canceliation will be due and payable

6 Payment for License Fee is due upon contract execuiion.

7 First Year Support and Mairtenance will begin and payment due upan quote execution

8 CJS will invoice for the Professional Services fee upon complation of the baseiine eAccess product instaliation

9 Except as expressly modified here, License{s) are subject to the terms arkd conditions of the active license agreemant.

10 Except as expressly modified here, Support and Maintenance is subject to the terms and conditicns of the active support agreement

11 The maintenance year for Customer is January 1stta December 31st. The 2011 mazintenance year is January 1. 2011 io December 31, 2011, CJS will invoice

for prorated maintenancs for the 2011 maintenance year at 1/12th of the annual maintenance fee shown on the “Net Software Maintenance” line for each month
of Maintenance & Support provided prior to the conclusion of the 2011 maintenance year

12 Customer is responsible for the host environment including all required hardware, network end third party software components and cenfiguration

13 CourtView software will be instailed on Custorer provided equipment in the Custemer's host environment per the provided “eAccess Host Envircnment
Considerations 02182011 doc" dated February 21, 2011

14 The scope of work dass rot inciude any work related to the implsmentation of maintenance of replication of any databases

15 CJS supports the foliowing browsers for use with eAccess: Microsoft iniernet Explorer Versicn 8 ar later and Mozilla Firefox Version 3 or later. CJS has not
tested other browsers with eAccess and will not support problems raported with the use of other browsers with 2Access.

16 Delays caused by Customer site or configuration issues may require rescheduling and/or Change Order for additional services and related travel
costs.

17  Customer will make available all resources requested by CJS for assistance and approvat

18 All services will be provided remotely.

18 A single eAccess pantali30Qs0mig 8 YoRDA BV NDRTHGANE O rOMIDISER204.330.470.4280 | 330.494.2483 FAX
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CourtVIEW Quote

JUSTICE SGLUTIONS

To: Deborah Smalley, Clerk of Courts Quote: FAIRFCM20110328
Fairfield County Ohio Date: March 28, 2011
224 E. Main Valid through: May 27, 2011
P.O. Box 370

Lancaster, OH 43130
Project:  Remote Technical Services for SQL2000 to SQL 2008

ftem : ) Qty Unit Price “Total . Initial
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

1.0 Baseline Services
1.1 Project Administration and Coordination 4 s 200
1.2 Remote Technical Services 20 $ 175

800
3,500

@ A

Scope of Work
Remote Technical Services to inciude:
~ SQL 2000 to 2008 migration for CourtView
o Update .ASN & .INI files for CourtView production and training bin folders
0 Backup and restoring of production & training databases
o SQL Server user migration
o Build replication
o Setting up of replication for Public Access and point at new databases

Estimated Services Total 24 $ 4,300

Estimated Baseline Project Total, excluding applicable taxes

Accepted: {ﬁ\//(‘ﬁﬁ/? %7/ / (5(/ M,ﬁ{/}' »;4' ) Date: é}/@ ;/ ’/ /
Print Name / Signature  { ) é P // 7 4 7 T 7
P SV 4 ,}/?ﬂ

v
Notes
1 Quotation must be signed and returned with a purchase order to schedule project
2 Professional Services are quoted on a time and materials basis. Actual effort, costs and expenses may be less than or greater than those estimated.
Customer shall have no obligation to pay CJS more than the estimated price. CJS shall have no obligation to provide labor or incur costs or expenses

having a combined value more than the estimated price, even if the services have not been completed or the deliverables delivered, or the results expected
by the customer have not been achieved. The parties may by mutual, written agreement, increase the estimated price.

3 CJS assumes that the total hours listed in this quote may be used for the work, that quoted hours may be moved between tasks as necessary.

4 If project is cancelled prior to completion, all costs related to effort expended through the date of cancellation will be due and payable,

5 CJS will invoice monthly in arrears for actual services rendered.

6 Payment term is net 30 days from invoice date.

7 Client is responsible for the host environment including ail required hardware, network and third party software components and configuration as well as
providing remote access to the application to CJS staff.

8 Customer is responsible for providing appropriate Microsoft SQL Database licenses. Customer will provide the Microsoft SQL Database license key(s) to

CJS prior to the start of the Technical Services work.
9 Delays caused by client site or configuration issues may require rescheduling and/or Change Order for additional services and related travel costs,

10 Client will make available all resources requested by CJS for assistance.

11 Al services are to be provided remotely. Should travel be requested or deemed to be required, a separate Change Order for estimated trave! costs and
travel time will be provided

5399 LAUBY ROAD, NW { NORTH CANTON, OHIO 44720 | 330.470.4280 | 330.494.2483 FAX
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CourtVIEW Quote

JUSTITE SQLUTIONS

To: Deborah Smalley, Clerek Of Courts Quote: FAIRFCP20110328
Fairfield County Ohio Date: March 28, 2011
224 E. Main Valid through: May 27, 2011
P.0. Box 370

Lancaster, OH 43130
Project:  Install and Configure Uniface 9 and License Manager for CourtView and JuryView.

— rnsne

ttem : Qty Unit Price Total. Initial
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Unit Price Extended Price
1.0 Baseline Services
1.1 Technical Service per SOW (Remote) (Up to 20 hours) 1 $3,050 3,050

Baseline Project Total, excluding applicable taxes

; z o i . / ./ ', S 7 7
Accepted: . / >:"4'? % \///7!//} ‘3/7’2” 7 / I{: I/ {//;e@%/ﬁf&}fﬂ . Date: S/L ? !/}
- Print Name / Signature f . & 0

2T S

Notes

1 Quotation must be signed and returned with a purchase order to schedule project work.

2 CJS and the Customer agree that the Uniface License Manager key will be installed for 25 concurrent users.

3 Professional Services quoted are at a firm fixed price, but extent of services is limited to the hours indicated in 1.1, Actual effort, costs and expenses may
be less than or greater than those estimated. Customier shall have no obligation to pay CJS more than the estimated price. CJS shall have no obligation to
provide fabor or incur costs or expenses having a combined value more than the quoted price, even if the services have not been completed or the
deliverables delivered. or the results expected by the customer have not been achieved. The parties may by mutual, written agreement, increase the quoted
price. Changes in scope will require a change order to increase the firm fixed price based upon the additional leve! of effort required.

4 Delays caused by Customer site or configuration issues may require rescheduling and/or Change Order for additional services and related travel costs

§ Customer is responsible for the host environment including all required hardware, network and third party software components and configuration.
& CJS has not tested the integration with CourtView of applications procured directly from third parties inciuding document imaging systems.

Customer should contact the pravider of such third party applications directly to confirm that the third party application functions correctly with
CourtView Version 2.5X

7 Customer will make available all resources requested by CJS for assistance.
8 CJSwill invoice afier installation of Uniface 9 in the Test/Training environment
9 CJS will install the Jatest CourtView 2.5X Production Release available at the time the work is performed.

10 All services are to be provided remotely. Should travel be requested or deemed to be required, a separate Change Crder for estimated travel costs and
travel time wilt be provided.
11 Payment term is net 30 days from invoice date.

5399 LAUBY ROAD, NW | NORTH CANTON, OHIO 44720 { 330.470.4280 | 330.494.2483 FAX
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For the feasibility study, at least one full time equivalent I'T professional will be assigned to the
project for a four month period, or 640 hours, once the study begins in approximately July 2012.
The average hourly rate of IT professionals within the county is approximately $26.

Last Phone Rate of

First Name name Number Occupation | Pay
(740) 652-

Andrew Gleissner | 7073 IT Analyst 24.50
(740) 652-

Andrew Stemen | 7074 IT Analyst 20.68
(740) 652- IT

Denise Gressick | 7072 Specialist 15.31 '
(740) 652-

Fred Goodwin | 7071 IT Analyst 29.32
{740) 652-

Randy Carter 7076 IT Director 40.22

Average 26.01

While all partners will provide in-kind contributions in participating in the feasibility study, the
project manager duties and supporting IT professional services (which comprise the FTE for the
four month period) are the sole costs included in the project at this time. The in-kind
contributions will likely be much higher. The IT Director will serve as the project manager, and
other IT professionals will support the project.

The estimate included is 640*$26, or $16,640.

I attest to the validity and accuracy of the IT professional services costs to be dedicated to the
AIMS feasibility study.

C R ('X/\”»O?/‘ar LQ;jU/‘») February 29, 2012

C. Randy Carter, IT Director Date

State of Ohio
County of Fairfield ss:
Before me, a Notary Public for the State of Ohio, appeared C. Randy Carter who acknowledged and signed the

foreg d his signing was his free act.
Z-R-12-

Stepher@. Bro\@mﬁﬁn does not expire
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For the MUNIS upgrades associated with AIMS, necessary upgrades were completed
from October 2010 — January 2012. Servers, software and licenses were purchased by Fairfield
County on behalf of the partnership members. All partnership members use MUNIS at least in
part. Most use the system for all financial functions. The upgrades create a foundation for
AIMS project improvements, especially in Phase I. The servers, licenses, software and training
were requirements for the next steps. The specific, incremental expenses relating to disaster
recovery were included.

Entity
Making Actual
Payment Amount
for MUNIS | Date Description Paid
Fairfield Employee Seif
County 10.01.2010 | Serve Server 6,500
Self Serve
Software,
Fairfield Installation,
County 10.01.2010 | Configuration 10,000
Fairfield Self Service
County 2.25.2011 | Training 1,095.88
Disaster
Fairfield Recovery
County 4.19.2011 | Server 15,893.46
Fairfield Licenses, V-
County 9.2.11 Shell 800
SQL Server
Software for
Fairfield Disaster
County 1.27.2012 | Recovery 10,361.95
Total $44,651.29

I attest to the validity and accuracy of the AIMS related MUNIS expenses.

. @) -
C R (&‘/‘N@t‘af (/0\/12/\, February 29, 2012
C. Randy Carter, IT Director Date

State of Ohio
County of Fairfield ss:

2282~ 64

Stephe(ﬁ. Bro&@m&ﬁs{x/&n does not expire




MUNIS Employee Self-Serve & Disaster Recovery Expenses

2010 —- 2012

VENDOR

Dell
Tyler Technologies

Tyler Technologies
Dell

Tyler Technologies

Dell

DESCRIPTION

ESS Server
ESS Software-Install/Configure

Employee Self-Service Training
New Server — DR

V-Shell License — DR Server

SQL Server Software — DR

Source - Fairfield County Auditor

02-29-12

DATE

10-01-10
10-01-10

02-25-11
04-19-11

09-02-11

01-27-12

AMOUNT

6,500.00
10,000.00

1,095.88
15,893.46

800.00

10361.95

44,651.29
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Appendix D
U.S. Census Information

Taken from http://quickfacts.census.gov/gfd/states/39000.html on 3/1/2012
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http://quickfacts.census.gov/qfd/states/39000.html%20on%203/1/2012

State & County QuickFacts

Fairfield County, Ohio

Fairfield
People QuickFacts County Ohio
Population, 2011 estimate NA 11,544,951
Population, 2010 146,156 11,536,504
Population, percent change, 2000 to 2010 19.1% 1.6%
Population, 2000 122,759 11,353,140
Persons under 5 years, percent, 2010 6.4% 6.2%
Persons under 18 years, percent, 2010 26.3% 23.7%
Persons 65 years and over, percent, 2010 12.4% 14.1%
Female persons, percent, 2010 50.4% 51.2%
~ White persons, percent, 2010 (@) ¢ 90.2% ! 82.7%
Black persons, percent, 2010 (a) 6.0% 12.2%
American Indian and Alaska Native persons, percent, 2010
(®) 0.2% 0.2%
Asian persons, percent, 2010 (a) 1.1% 1.7%
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander, percent, 2010
(®) z z
Persons reporting two or more races, percent, 2010 1.9% 2.1%
Persons of Hispanic or Latino origin, percent, 2010 (b) 1.7% 3.1%
White persons not Hispanic, percent, 2010 89.2% 81.1%
 Living in same house 1 year & over, 2006-2010 ~ 84.8% 85.0%
Foreign born persons, percent, 2006-2010 2.4% 3.8%
Language other than English spoken at home, pct age 5+,
2006-2010 3.9% 6.3%
High school graduates, percent of persons age 25+,
2006-2010 91.6% 87.4%
Bachelor's degree or higher, pct of persons age 25+,
2006-2010 24.4% 24.1%
Veterans, 2006-2010 12,039 936,383
Mean travel time to work (minutes), workers age 16+,
2006-2010 26.9 22.7
Housing units, 2010 58,687 5,127,508
Homeownership rate, 2006-2010 75.8% 69.2%
Housing units in multi-unit structures, percent, 2006-2010 14.8% 23.0%
Median value of owner-occupied housing units, 2006-2010 $167,200 $136,400
Households, 2006-2010 53,911 4,552,270
Persons per household, 2006-2010 2.63 2.46
Per capita money income in past 12 months (2010 dollars)
2006-2010 $26,130 $25,113
Median household income 2006-2010 $56,796 $47,358
Persons below poverty level, percent, 2006-2010 10.4% 14.2%
Fairfield
Business QuickFacts County Ohio

Private nonfarm establishments, 2009 2.610 256,5511



Private nonfarm employment, 2009 32,609 4,460,553"

Private nonfarm employment, percent change 2000-2009 4.8% -10.8%*
Nonemployer establishments, 2009 9,773 697,000
Total number of firms, 2007 12,401 897,939
Black-owned firms, percent, 2007 S 5.8%
American Indian- and Alaska Native-owned firms, percent,
2007 F 0.3%
Asian-owned firms, percent, 2007 S 2.0%
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander-owned firms,
percent, 2007 F S
Hispanic-owned firms, percent, 2007 1.3% 1.1%
Women-owned firms, percent, 2007 29.1% 27.7%
Manufacturers shipments, 2007 ($1000) 1,061,624 295,890,890
Merchant wholesaler sales, 2007 ($1000) D 135,575,279
Retail sales, 2007 ($1000) 1,360,639 138,816,008
Retail sales per capita, 2007 $9,634 $12,049
Accommodation and food services sales, 2007 ($1000) 169,513 17,779,905
Building permits, 2010 196 13,710
Federal spending, 2009 686,297 105,173’4131
Fairfield

Geography QuickFacts County Ohio
Land area in square miles, 2010 504.41 40,860.69
Persons per square mile, 2010 289.8 282.3
FIPS Code 045 39
Metropolitan or Micropolitan Statistical Area Columbus,

OH Metro

Area

1: Includes data not distributed by county.

Population estimates for counties will be available in April, 2012 and for cities in June, 2012.

(a) Includes persons reporting only one race.
(b) Hispanics may be of any race, so also are included in applicable race categories.

D: Suppressed to avoid disclosure of confidential information

F: Fewer than 100 firms

FN: Footnote on this item for this area in place of data

NA: Not available

S: Suppressed; does not meet publication standards

X: Not applicable

Z: Value greater than zero but less than half unit of measure shown

Source U.S. Census Bureau: State and County QuickFacts. Data derived from Population Estimates, American Community Survey,
Census of Population and Housing, State and County Housing Unit Estimates, County Business Patterns, Nonemployer Statistics,
Economic Census, Survey of Business Owners, Building Permits, Consolidated Federal Funds Report

Last Revised: Tuesday, 31-Jan-2012 16:55:48 EST



State & County QuickFacts

Hocking County, Ohio

Hocking
People QuickFacts County Ohio
Population, 2011 estimate NA 11,544,951
Population, 2010 29,380 11,536,504
Population, percent change, 2000 to 2010 4.0% 1.6%
Population, 2000 28,241 11,353,140
Persons under 5 years, percent, 2010 5.9% 6.2%
Persons under 18 years, percent, 2010 23.8% 23.7%
Persons 65 years and over, percent, 2010 15.3% 14.1%
Female persons, percent, 2010 50.0% 51.2%
~ White persons, percent, 2010 (@) ¢ 97.5% ! 82.7%
Black persons, percent, 2010 (a) 0.7% 12.2%
American Indian and Alaska Native persons, percent, 2010
(a) 0.3% 0.2%
Asian persons, percent, 2010 (a) 0.2% 1.7%
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander, percent, 2010
(a) 0.0% z
Persons reporting two or more races, percent, 2010 1.1% 2.1%
Persons of Hispanic or Latino origin, percent, 2010 (b) 0.7% 3.1%
White persons not Hispanic, percent, 2010 97.0% 81.1%
 Living in same house 1 year & over, 2006-2010 ~ 87.1% 85.0%
Foreign born persons, percent, 2006-2010 0.5% 3.8%
Language other than English spoken at home, pct age 5+,
2006-2010 1.6% 6.3%
High school graduates, percent of persons age 25+,
2006-2010 84.0% 87.4%
Bachelor's degree or higher, pct of persons age 25+,
2006-2010 10.2% 24.1%
Veterans, 2006-2010 2,768 936,383
Mean travel time to work (minutes), workers age 16+,
2006-2010 31.8 22.7
Housing units, 2010 13,417 5,127,508
Homeownership rate, 2006-2010 75.5% 69.2%
Housing units in multi-unit structures, percent, 2006-2010 8.7% 23.0%
Median value of owner-occupied housing units, 2006-2010 $114,000 $136,400
Households, 2006-2010 11,486 4,552,270
Persons per household, 2006-2010 2.49 2.46
Per capita money income in past 12 months (2010 dollars)
2006-2010 $19,048 $25,113
Median household income 2006-2010 $39,586 $47,358
Persons below poverty level, percent, 2006-2010 15.3% 14.2%
Hocking
Business QuickFacts County Ohio

Private nonfarm establishments, 2009 495 256,551"



Private nonfarm employment, 2009 5218 4,460,553"

Private nonfarm employment, percent change 2000-2009 -13.3% -10.8%!
Nonemployer establishments, 2009 1,918 697,000
Total number of firms, 2007 2,188 897,939
Black-owned firms, percent, 2007 F 5.8%
American Indian- and Alaska Native-owned firms, percent,
2007 F 0.3%
Asian-owned firms, percent, 2007 F 2.0%
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander-owned firms,
percent, 2007 F S
Hispanic-owned firms, percent, 2007 F 1.1%
Women-owned firms, percent, 2007 21.1% 27.7%
Manufacturers shipments, 2007 ($1000) 261,521 295,890,890
Merchant wholesaler sales, 2007 ($1000) D 135,575,279
Retail sales, 2007 ($1000) 218,941 138,816,008
Retail sales per capita, 2007 $7,553 $12,049
Accommodation and food services sales, 2007 ($1000) 40,242 17,779,905
Building permits, 2010 5 13,710
Federal spending, 2009 332,415 105,173,413"
Hocking
Geography QuickFacts County Ohio
Land area in square miles, 2010 421.32 40,860.69
Persons per square mile, 2010 69.7 282.3
FIPS Code 073 39
Metropolitan or Micropolitan Statistical Area None

1: Includes data not distributed by county.

Population estimates for counties will be available in April, 2012 and for cities in June, 2012.

(a) Includes persons reporting only one race.
(b) Hispanics may be of any race, so also are included in applicable race categories.

D: Suppressed to avoid disclosure of confidential information

F: Fewer than 100 firms

FN: Footnote on this item for this area in place of data

NA: Not available

S: Suppressed; does not meet publication standards

X: Not applicable

Z: Value greater than zero but less than half unit of measure shown

Source U.S. Census Bureau: State and County QuickFacts. Data derived from Population Estimates, American Community Survey,
Census of Population and Housing, State and County Housing Unit Estimates, County Business Patterns, Nonemployer Statistics,
Economic Census, Survey of Business Owners, Building Permits, Consolidated Federal Funds Report

Last Revised: Tuesday, 31-Jan-2012 16:55:52 EST



State & County QuickFacts

Perry County, Ohio

Perry
People QuickFacts County Ohio
Population, 2011 estimate NA 11,544,951
Population, 2010 36,058 11,536,504
Population, percent change, 2000 to 2010 5.8% 1.6%
Population, 2000 34,078 11,353,140
Persons under 5 years, percent, 2010 6.6% 6.2%
Persons under 18 years, percent, 2010 26.2% 23.7%
Persons 65 years and over, percent, 2010 12.9% 14.1%
Female persons, percent, 2010 50.1% 51.2%
~ White persons, percent, 2010 (@) ¢ 97.9% ! 82.7%
Black persons, percent, 2010 (a) 0.3% 12.2%
American Indian and Alaska Native persons, percent, 2010
(®) 0.2% 0.2%
Asian persons, percent, 2010 (a) 0.1% 1.7%
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander, percent, 2010
(®) z z
Persons reporting two or more races, percent, 2010 1.4% 2.1%
Persons of Hispanic or Latino origin, percent, 2010 (b) 0.5% 3.1%
White persons not Hispanic, percent, 2010 97.5% 81.1%
* Living in same house 1 year & over, 2006-2010 ~ 87.0% 85.0%
Foreign born persons, percent, 2006-2010 0.4% 3.8%
Language other than English spoken at home, pct age 5+,
2006-2010 1.5% 6.3%
High school graduates, percent of persons age 25+,
2006-2010 84.2% 87.4%
Bachelor's degree or higher, pct of persons age 25+,
2006-2010 8.9% 24.1%
Veterans, 2006-2010 3,006 936,383
Mean travel time to work (minutes), workers age 16+,
2006-2010 33.7 22.7
Housing units, 2010 15,211 5,127,508
Homeownership rate, 2006-2010 73.9% 69.2%
Housing units in multi-unit structures, percent, 2006-2010 8.5% 23.0%
Median value of owner-occupied housing units, 2006-2010 $100,400 $136,400
Households, 2006-2010 13,554 4,552,270
Persons per household, 2006-2010 2.63 2.46
Per capita money income in past 12 months (2010 dollars)
2006-2010 $18,916 $25,113
Median household income 2006-2010 $42,388 $47,358
Persons below poverty level, percent, 2006-2010 18.5% 14.2%
Perry
Business QuickFacts County Ohio

Private nonfarm establishments, 2009 426 256,551"



Private nonfarm employment, 2009 3881 4,460,553"

Private nonfarm employment, percent change 2000-2009 -26.0% -10.8%!
Nonemployer establishments, 2009 2,144 697,000
Total number of firms, 2007 2,903 897,939
Black-owned firms, percent, 2007 F 5.8%
American Indian- and Alaska Native-owned firms, percent,
2007 S 0.3%
Asian-owned firms, percent, 2007 F 2.0%
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander-owned firms,
percent, 2007 F S
Hispanic-owned firms, percent, 2007 F 1.1%
Women-owned firms, percent, 2007 34.8% 27.7%
Manufacturers shipments, 2007 ($1000) 124,516 295,890,890
Merchant wholesaler sales, 2007 ($1000) 85,426 135,575,279
Retail sales, 2007 ($1000) 136,103 138,816,008
Retail sales per capita, 2007 $3,894 $12,049
Accommodation and food services sales, 2007 ($1000) 13,814 17,779,905
Building permits, 2010 30 13,710
Federal spending, 2009 259,291 105,173,413"
Perry
Geography QuickFacts County Ohio
Land area in square miles, 2010 407.97 40,860.69
Persons per square mile, 2010 88.4 282.3
FIPS Code 127 39
Metropolitan or Micropolitan Statistical Area None

1: Includes data not distributed by county.

Population estimates for counties will be available in April, 2012 and for cities in June, 2012.

(a) Includes persons reporting only one race.
(b) Hispanics may be of any race, so also are included in applicable race categories.

D: Suppressed to avoid disclosure of confidential information

F: Fewer than 100 firms

FN: Footnote on this item for this area in place of data

NA: Not available

S: Suppressed; does not meet publication standards

X: Not applicable

Z: Value greater than zero but less than half unit of measure shown

Source U.S. Census Bureau: State and County QuickFacts. Data derived from Population Estimates, American Community Survey,
Census of Population and Housing, State and County Housing Unit Estimates, County Business Patterns, Nonemployer Statistics,
Economic Census, Survey of Business Owners, Building Permits, Consolidated Federal Funds Report

Last Revised: Tuesday, 31-Jan-2012 16:55:59 EST



State & County QuickFacts

Licking County, Ohio

Licking
People QuickFacts County Ohio
Population, 2011 estimate NA 11,544,951
Population, 2010 166,492 11,536,504
Population, percent change, 2000 to 2010 14.4% 1.6%
Population, 2000 145,491 11,353,140
Persons under 5 years, percent, 2010 6.4% 6.2%
Persons under 18 years, percent, 2010 24.7% 23.7%
Persons 65 years and over, percent, 2010 13.3% 14.1%
Female persons, percent, 2010 51.0% 51.2%
© White persons, percent, 2010 (@) ¢ 93.2% ! 82.7%
Black persons, percent, 2010 (a) 3.4% 12.2%
American Indian and Alaska Native persons, percent, 2010
(a) 0.3% 0.2%
Asian persons, percent, 2010 (a) 0.7% 1.7%
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander, percent, 2010
() z z
Persons reporting two or more races, percent, 2010 1.9% 2.1%
Persons of Hispanic or Latino origin, percent, 2010 (b) 1.4% 3.1%
White persons not Hispanic, percent, 2010 92.4% 81.1%
 Living in same house 1 year & over, 2006-2010 ~ 84.4% 85.0%
Foreign born persons, percent, 2006-2010 1.6% 3.8%
Language other than English spoken at home, pct age 5+,
2006-2010 3.1% 6.3%
High school graduates, percent of persons age 25+,
2006-2010 88.2% 87.4%
Bachelor's degree or higher, pct of persons age 25+,
2006-2010 22.1% 24.1%
Veterans, 2006-2010 14,910 936,383
Mean travel time to work (minutes), workers age 16+,
2006-2010 25.8 22.7
Housing units, 2010 69,291 5,127,508
Homeownership rate, 2006-2010 74.4% 69.2%
Housing units in multi-unit structures, percent, 2006-2010 16.9% 23.0%
Median value of owner-occupied housing units, 2006-2010 $152,600 $136,400
Households, 2006-2010 62,569 4,552,270
Persons per household, 2006-2010 2.56 2.46
Per capita money income in past 12 months (2010 dollars)
2006-2010 $25,534 $25,113
Median household income 2006-2010 $53,291 $47,358
Persons below poverty level, percent, 2006-2010 11.1% 14.2%
Licking
Business QuickFacts County Ohio

Private nonfarm establishments, 2009 2,921 256,5511



Private nonfarm employment, 2009 47124 4.460,553"

Private nonfarm employment, percent change 2000-2009 -3.1% -10.8%*
Nonemployer establishments, 2009 10,960 697,000
Total number of firms, 2007 13,656 897,939
Black-owned firms, percent, 2007 S 5.8%
American Indian- and Alaska Native-owned firms, percent,
2007 F 0.3%
Asian-owned firms, percent, 2007 S 2.0%
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander-owned firms,
percent, 2007 F S
Hispanic-owned firms, percent, 2007 S 1.1%
Women-owned firms, percent, 2007 29.5% 27.7%
Manufacturers shipments, 2007 ($1000) 3,351,769 295,890,890
Merchant wholesaler sales, 2007 ($1000) 1,141,426 135,575,279
Retail sales, 2007 ($1000) 1,774,673 138,816,008
Retail sales per capita, 2007 $11,324 $12,049
Accommodation and food services sales, 2007 ($1000) 194,174 17,779,905
Building permits, 2010 348 13,710
Federal spending, 2009 1,051,475 105,173,413"

Licking
Geography QuickFacts County Ohio
Land area in square miles, 2010 682.50 40,860.69
Persons per square mile, 2010 243.9 282.3
FIPS Code 089 39
Metropolitan or Micropolitan Statistical Area Columbus,

OH Metro

Area

1: Includes data not distributed by county.

Population estimates for counties will be available in April, 2012 and for cities in June, 2012.

(a) Includes persons reporting only one race.
(b) Hispanics may be of any race, so also are included in applicable race categories.

D: Suppressed to avoid disclosure of confidential information

F: Fewer than 100 firms

FN: Footnote on this item for this area in place of data

NA: Not available

S: Suppressed; does not meet publication standards

X: Not applicable

Z: Value greater than zero but less than half unit of measure shown

Source U.S. Census Bureau: State and County QuickFacts. Data derived from Population Estimates, American Community Survey,
Census of Population and Housing, State and County Housing Unit Estimates, County Business Patterns, Nonemployer Statistics,
Economic Census, Survey of Business Owners, Building Permits, Consolidated Federal Funds Report

Last Revised: Tuesday, 31-Jan-2012 16:55:54 EST



State & County QuickFacts

Lancaster (city), Ohio

People QuickFacts Lancaster Ohio
Population, 2011 estimate NA 11,544,951
Population, 2010 38,780 11,536,504
Population, percent change, 2000 to 2010 9.7% 1.6%
Population, 2000 35,335 11,353,140
Persons under 5 years, percent, 2010 7.5% 6.2%
Persons under 18 years, percent, 2010 24.0% 23.7%
Persons 65 years and over, percent, 2010 15.7% 14.1%
Female persons, percent, 2010 52.0% 51.2%
© White persons, percent, 2010 (8) ¢ 95.9% ! 82.7%
Black persons, percent, 2010 (a) 1.0% 12.2%
American Indian and Alaska Native persons, percent, 2010
(a) 0.3% 0.2%
Asian persons, percent, 2010 (a) 0.5% 1.7%
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander, percent, 2010
(a) z 0.0%
Persons reporting two or more races, percent, 2010 1.7% 2.1%
Persons of Hispanic or Latino origin, percent, 2010 (b) 1.6% 3.1%
White persons not Hispanic, percent, 2010 95.0% 81.1%
* Living in same house 1 year & over, 2006-2010 ~ 80.2% 85.0%
Foreign born persons, percent, 2006-2010 1.3% 3.8%
Language other than English spoken at home, pct age 5+,
2006-2010 2.0% 6.3%
High school graduates, percent of persons age 25+,
2006-2010 88.6% 87.4%
Bachelor's degree or higher, pct of persons age 25+,
2006-2010 16.0% 24.1%
Mean travel time to work (minutes), workers age 16+,
2006-2010 25.9 22.7
Housing units, 2010 17,685 5,127,508
Homeownership rate, 2006-2010 58.7% 69.2%
Housing units in multi-unit structures, percent, 2006-2010 25.9% 23.0%
Median value of owner-occupied housing units, 2006-2010 $124,100  $136,400
Households, 2006-2010 16,448 4,552,270
Persons per household, 2006-2010 2.32 2.46
Per capita money income in past 12 months (2010 dollars)
2006-2010 $22,692 $25,113
Median household income 2006-2010 $40,581 $47,358
Persons below poverty level, percent, 2006-2010 14.8% 14.2%
Business QuickFacts Lancaster Ohio
Total number of firms, 2007 2,939 897,939

Black-owned firms, percent, 2007 F 5.8%



American Indian- and Alaska Native-owned firms, percent,

2007 F 0.3%
Asian-owned firms, percent, 2007 F 2.0%
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander-owned firms,

percent, 2007 F S
Hispanic-owned firms, percent, 2007 S 1.1%
Women-owned firms, percent, 2007 S 27.7%
Manufacturers shipments, 2007 ($1000) 668,987 295,890,890
Merchant wholesaler sales, 2007 ($1000) 81,913 135,575,279
Retail sales, 2007 ($1000) 576,439 138,816,008
Retail sales per capita, 2007 $15,613 $12,049
Accommodation and food services sales, 2007 ($1000) 90,861 17,779,905
Geography QuickFacts Lancaster Ohio
Land area in square miles, 2010 18.84 40,860.69
Persons per square mile, 2010 2,058.3 282.3
FIPS Code 41720 39

Counties

Population estimates for counties will be available in April, 2012 and for cities in June, 2012.

(a) Includes persons reporting only one race.
(b) Hispanics may be of any race, so also are included in applicable race categories.

D: Suppressed to avoid disclosure of confidential information

F: Fewer than 100 firms

FN: Footnote on this item for this area in place of data

NA: Not available

S: Suppressed; does not meet publication standards

X: Not applicable

Z: Value greater than zero but less than half unit of measure shown

Source U.S. Census Bureau: State and County QuickFacts. Data derived from Population Estimates, American Community Survey,
Census of Population and Housing, County Business Patterns, Economic Census, Survey of Business Owners, Building Permits,
Consolidated Federal Funds Report, Census of Governments

Last Revised: Tuesday, 31-Jan-2012 17:23:01 EST
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Appendix E: Self Score Assessment

Local Government Innovation Fund Program

Application Scoring

Lead Applicant | rjirfieiq County

Project Name | ajvs

/ Grant Application

or

Loan Application

The Local Government Innovation Fund Council
77 South High Street
P.O. Box 1001
Columbus, Ohio 43216-1001

614) 995-2292
(614) 73



Fairfield County AIMS

Local Government Innovation Fund Project Scoring Sheet

Section 1: Financing Measures

Financin Applicant Self  Validated
= Description Criteria Max Points o
Measures Score Score
Applicant includes financial information Applicant provides a thorough, detailed and 5 @
(i.e., service related operating budgets) complete financial information
for the most re.cent thref? years andfhe Applicant provided more than minimum
. ., three year period following the project. . . ) .
Financial . Lo . requirements but did not provide additional 3
Information The financial information must be justification or support
directly related to the scope of the
project and will be used as the cost Applicant provided minimal financial 1 O
basis for determining any savings information
Applicant demonstrates a viable ]
repayment source to support loan Applicant clearly demonstrates a secondary 5 O
Repayment | award. Secondary source can be in the repayment source.
Structure form of a debt reserve, bank Applicant does not have a secondary repayment O
participation, a guarantee from a local source. 0
(Loan Only)  Entity, or other collateral (i.e.,emergency,
70% or greater 5 @
Percentage of local matching funds 40-69.99% 3 O
Local Match being contributed to the project. This
may include in-kind contributions. 10-39.99% 1 O
5 0
10 0

Section 2: Collaborative Measures

Collaborative . . : Applicant Self  Validated
Description Criteria Max Points
Measures Score Score
Applicant (or collaborative partner) is not a
county and has a population of less than 20,000 5
Applicant's population (or the residents

population of the area(s) served) falls
within one of the listed categories as
determined by the U.S. Census Bureau.

Applicant (or collaborative partner) is a county
but has less than 235,000

Population Population scoring will be determined Applicant (o collaborative partner) is not a

by the fma.llest popl'l/aU.OH listed in the county but has a population 20,001 or greater. 3
application. Applications from (or

collaborating with) small communities | Applicant (or collaborative partner) is a county

51910 |®@]-|O]O0|®| O

are preferred. with a population of 235,001 residents or more
e 0
Applicant has executed partnership )
agreements outlining all collaborative More than one applicant 5
t d participati t
Participating partners an pqr cipation agreements
L. and has resolutions of support. (Note: . .
Entities . ) Single applicant 1
Sole applicants only need to provide a
resolution of support from its governing
g e 0
Total Section Points 0

2/22/12 Rourig




Fairfield County AIMS
Local Government Innovation Fund Project Scoring Sheet

Section 3: Success Measures

Success Applicant Self  Validated

Description Criteria Points

Measures Score Score

Applicant demonstrates as a

75% or greater 30 @
percentage of savings (i.e., actual
savings, increased revenue, or cost
Expected avoidance ) an expected return. The 25.01% to 74.99% 20 O
Return return must be derived from the
applicant's cost basis. The expected Less than 25% 10 O

return is ranked in one of the following
percentage categories:

w
o
o

Applicant has successfully

| s succesully y . ®
implemented, or is following project es
Past Success guidance fror?q -a shared services model, No 0 O
for an efficiency, shared service,
coproduction or merger project in the 5 0
past.
The project is both scalable and replicable 10 @
Applicant’s proposal can be replicated
Scalable/Replic| by other local governments or scaled The project is either scalable or replicable 5 O
able Proposal for the inclusion of other local
governments. Does not apply Q
Provided @
Probability of Applicant p-rowdes a document.ed need
Success for the project and clearly outlines the Not Provided O
likelihood of the need being met.
™
Total Section Points 50 0

Section 4: Significance Measures

Significance . o X X Applicant Self  Validated
6 Description Criteria Points Assigned PP
Measures Score Score
perf The project implements a single Project implements a recommendation from an 5 O
erformance L .
. recommendation from a performance audit or is informed by benchmarklng
Audit . . . - - -
Implementation audit provided by the Auditor of State | Project does not implement a recommendation
/Cost under Chapter 117 of the Ohio Revised from an audit and is not informed by @
. Code or is informed by cost benchmarkin
Benchmarking ]
benchmarking. 0 0
Applicant clearly demonstrates economic impact @
Applicant demonstrates the project will
. a promote business t.environmeﬁt (/.e.., Applicant mentions but does not prove 3 O
Economic demonstrates a business relationship economic impact
Impact resulting from the project) and will
provide for community attraction (i.e., | Applicant does not demonstrate an economic O
cost avoidance with respect to taxes) impact
m 5 0
The project responds to current @
Response to P j. P . .
R substantial changes in economic
Economic .
demand for local or regional No 0 O
Demand .
government services.
5 0
Total Section Points 10 0

2/22/12 Rourg{}



Fairfield County AIMS

Section 5: Council Measures

Council
Measures

Description Criteria Points Assigned

The Applicant Does Not Fill Out This Section; This is for the Local
Council Government Innovation Fund Council only. The points for this
Council Ranking for Competitive Rounds . . Y . p .
sectionis based on the applicant demonstrating innovation or

inventiveness with the project

Preference

Total Section Points (10 max)

Scoring Summary

Applicant Self  Validated

Score Score

Section 1: Financing Measures 1 O O

Section 2: Collaborative Measures 1 O

0
Section 3: Success Measures 50 O
0

Section 4: Significance Measures 1 O

Total Base Points: 80 O

Reviewer Comments

2/22/12 Rourgl{
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Fairfield County, Ohio
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

(Unaudited)

Introduction

This section of Fairfield County’s (the County) annual financial report presents management’s discussion
and analysis of the County’s financial performance during the year ended December 31, 2010. The
management’s discussion and analysis section should be read in conjunction with the preceding letter of
transmittal and the County’s financial statements, which follow.

Financial Highlights

Key financial highlights for 2010 are as follows:

=  The assets of Fairfield County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the year ended December 31, 2010,
by $266,617,937 (net assets). Of this amount, $21,473,465 was the unrestricted net assets portion which
represents the amount that can be used at the discretion of the County Commissioners.

®=  The County’s total net assets increased by 2.4 percent, or $6,323,211 from the total net assets at the
beginning of the year 2010.

= At the end of the current year, the County’s governmental activities reported total net assets of
$224,833,542 an increase of $6,159,925 from the prior year. Of this amount, $14,690,859 is unrestricted.

= At the end of the current year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $10,720,064 which
represents a 9.1 percent increase from the prior year, and represents 35.8 percent of total General Fund
expenditures.

= Fairfield County’s total bonds, long-term notes, long-term loans, and capital leases decreased by
$713,689 or 1.7 percent, during the current year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of management’s discussion and analysis, basic financial statements, including the
accompanying notes to the basic financial statements, and combining statements for the nonmajor
governmental funds, and the fiduciary funds. The basic financial statements are composed of the
government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements.

Figure 1 illustrates how the required parts of this annual report are arranged and relate to one another. In

addition to these required elements, as explained later, this report includes an optional section that contains
combining statements that provide details about the County’s honmajor governmental funds.

-21-
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Fairfield County, Ohio
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

(Unaudited)

Figure 1
Required Components of
Fairfield County’s Annual Financial Report

Management's Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements

Notes to the
Basic Financial
Statements

Government-wide Fund
Financial Financial
Statements Statements

SUMMARY LEVEL < | | —

The government-wide financial statements provide financial information about the County as a whole,
including its component unit.

DETAIL LEVEL

The fund financial statements focus on the County’s operations in more detail than the government-wide
financial statements. The financial statements presented for governmental funds report on the County’s
general government services. Proprietary fund statements report on the activities that the County operates
like private-sector businesses. Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial
relationships in which the County acts solely as a trustee or agent, for the benefit of others outside the
government to whom the resources belong.

The basic financial statements section also includes Notes to the Basic Financial Statements that more fully
explain the information in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Figure 2 below summarizes the major features of the County’s statements.

Figure 2
Major Features of Fairfield County’s Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide

Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds
Scope Entire County The activities of the Activities the County Instances in which the
government (except County that are not operates similar to County is the trustee or
fiduciary funds) and proprietary or fiduciary, private businesses, agent for someone
the County’s such as public safety, such as the sewer and else’s resources
component units public works, health, water operations
human services,
general government
Urban redevelopment
and housing,
transportation, and
interest/ fiscal charges
Required e Statement of Net e Balance Sheet e Statement of Fund Net e Statement of Fiduciary
financial Assets e Statement of Assets Assets and Liabilities
statements e Statement of Revenues, o Statement of
Activities Expenditures, and Revenues, Expenses,

Changes in Fund
Balances

and Changes in Fund
Net Assets

e Statement of Cash
Flows

-22 -
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Fairfield County, Ohio
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

(Unaudited)

Figure 2 (continued)
Major Features of the Fairfield County’s Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide

Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds

Accounting Accrual accounting Modified accrual Accrual accounting and Accrual accounting and
basis and and economic accounting and current economic resources economic resources
measurement resources focus financial resources focus focus
focus focus
Type of All assets and Only assets expected to All assets and liabilities, All assets and liabilities,
asset/liability liabilities, both be used up and liabi- both financial and both financial and
information financial and capital, lities that come due capital, and short-term capital, and short-term

and short-term and during the year or soon and long-term and long-term

long-term thereafter; no capital

assets included

Type of All revenues and Revenues for which All revenues and Not applicable because
inflow/outflow expenses during the cash is received during expenses during the the County only has
information year, regardless of or soon after the end of year, regardless of agency funds

when cash is received
or paid

the year; expenditures
when goods or services

when cash is received
or paid

have been received and
payment is due during
the year or soon
thereafter

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the County’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. The Statement of Activities presents information showing
how the County’s net assets changed during the current year. Both statements use the accrual basis of
accounting, similar to the accounting used by private sector companies. This basis of accounting takes into
account all of the current year’s revenues and expenses regardless of when the cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the County’s net assets and the change in those assets. This change in net
assets is important because it tells the reader whether, for the County as a whole, the economic condition of
the County has improved or diminished. However, in evaluating the overall position of the County,
nonfinancial information such as changes in the County’s tax base and the condition of the County’s capital
assets will also need to be evaluated.

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, which can be found on pages 34 through 37 of
this report, are divided into three categories as follows.

Governmental Activities — Most of the County’s basic services are reported under this category, such as
general government, public safety, public works, health, human services, urban redevelopment and housing,
transportation, interest and fiscal charges, and all departments - with the exception of the sewer and water
funds.

-23.
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Fairfield County, Ohio
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

(Unaudited)

Business-type Activities — The County provides services and then charges a fee to customers, based upon
the amount of usage, to recover the costs of the services provided, and to cover the capital expenses
associated with the related facilities. The County’s sewer and water operations are considered business-type
activities.

Component Unit — The County includes financial data of Fairfield Industries, Incorporated. This component
unit is described in Note 1 of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. A component unit is a legally
separate entity and may buy, sell, lease, and mortgage property in its own name. It can also sue or be sued in
its own name.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the County’s most significant funds —
not the County as a whole. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. Fund financial statements provide detailed information about the
County’s major funds. Based on the restriction on the use of monies, the County has established many funds
that account for the multitude of services provided to its residents. However, these fund financial statements
focus on the County’s most significant funds. The County’s major governmental funds are:

- General Fund

- Community Services Fund

- Motor Vehicle Fund

- Developmental Disabilities Fund

- Alcohol, Drug Addiction, and Mental Health Board Fund
- General Obligation Bond Retirement Fund

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on current sources and uses of spendable
resources, as well as balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information may
be useful in evaluating the County’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, the reader may better
understand the long-term impact of the County’s near-term financial decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The County maintains a number of individual governmental funds. Information for the major funds, identified
earlier, is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. Data from the other governmental funds
are combined into a single aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. The
governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 38 through 50 of this report.

Proprietary Funds —The County maintains one type of proprietary fund. It uses enterprise funds to account
for its sewer and water operations. In these operations, the County charges a fee to customers, based upon
the amount of usage, to recover the costs of the services provided, and to cover the capital expenses
associated with the related facilities. The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 51
through 55 of this report.
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(Unaudited)

Fiduciary Funds — The County accounts for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government
as fiduciary funds. These funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s own programs. The County uses accrual
accounting for fiduciary funds, much like that of the proprietary fund. The fiduciary fund financial statement
can be found on page 56 of this report.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The Notes to the
Basic Financial Statements can be found on pages 57 through 110 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

During 2010, as shown in the table below, the combined net assets of the County’s primary government
increased $6.3 million or 2.4 percent. Net assets reported for governmental activities increased $6.2 million
or 2.8 percent and business-type activities increased $0.2 million or 0.4 percent.

Condensed financial information derived from the Statement of Net Assets for the primary government follows:
Primary Government

Statement of Net Assets
As of December 31, 2010, with comparatives as of December 31, 2009

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Assets:
Current and other
noncurrent assets ........ $ 98,355,533 $ 94,173,309 $ 11,119,233 $ 8,463,113  $109,474,766 $ 102,636,422
Capital assets . 178,772,544 179,377,835 55,144,106 56,425,027 233,916,650 235,802,862
Total assets 277,128,077 273,551,144 66,263,339 64,888,140 343,391,416 338,439,284
Liabilities:
Current and
other liabilities ................. 30,533,133 30,236,219 531,287 832,199 31,064,420 31,068,418
Noncurrent liabilities 21,761,402 24,641,308 23,947,657 22,434,832 45,709,059 47,076,140
Total liabilities .............. 52,294,535 54,877,527 24,478,944 23,267,031 76,773,479 78,144,558
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt ........ 163,190,447 162,064,907 35,001,789 34,245,459 198,192,236 196,310,366
Restricted .......cccccoevveeenns 46,952,236 42,854,065 - 46,952,236 42,854,065
Unrestricted ........cccccoveenne 14,690,859 13,754,645 6,782,606 7,375,650 21,473,465 21,130,295
Total net assets ............ $ 224,833,542 $ 218,673,617 $ 41,784,395 $41,621,109 $266,617,937 $ 260,294,726

At December 31, 2010, the primary government’s invested in capital assets, net of depreciation, (i.e. land,
buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery and equipment, furniture and fixtures, infrastructures,
vehicles, and construction in progress), less related outstanding debt, was approximately $198.2 million. The
County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available
for future spending. Although the County’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, the
reader should be aware that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources.
The capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

There were various changes in current and other noncurrent assets from the prior year which resulted in an
increase of $6.8 million. There were increases in cash and cash equivalents, property taxes receivable, and
sales taxes receivable which were offset by decreases in prepaid items and intergovernmental receivables.
For governmental activities, cash and cash equivalents increased by $2.8 million. This increase can be
attributed primarily to the increases in sales taxes, property taxes, and decreases in expenses which were
offset by decreases in intergovernmental revenues. Property taxes receivable and sales taxes receivable
increased by $1.2 million and $1.1 million, respectively. These increases are due to the one mill Child and
Adult Protective Services Levy, REX Rockies Express gas pipeline construction, and the temporary increase in
the sales tax rate, respectively. The decreases in prepaid items and intergovernmental receivables are
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primarily due to the January 2011 health and life insurances not being prepaid by year-end which were prepaid
in the prior year, and decreases in state and federal grant sources, respectively. Decreases in liabilities for
governmental activities are due primarily to the decrease in outstanding debt.

The $2.7 million increase in business type activities current and other noncurrent assets is primarily due to an
increase cash and cash equivalents. The increase in cash and cash equivalents is attributed to the 2010 sale
of recovery zone economic development bonds in the amount of $3.3 million which were unspent as of year-
end. The increase in total liabilities of $1.2 million was mainly due to issuance of the $3.3 million in recovery
zone economic development bonds. This increase was offset by a decrease in other prior year outstanding
bond balances due to principal payments of approximately $2.0 million.

The decrease in governmental type and business type activities capital assets is due mainly to the current
year's increase in accumulated depreciation.

Restricted net assets were approximately $47.0 million and unrestricted net assets were approximately $21.5
million. Net assets are restricted when constraints on their use are externally imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments. Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets that do
not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt.”

The County’s net assets, when viewed over time, may provide the reader with a useful indicator of the
County’s economic condition.

The table on the following page shows the condensed financial information derived from the Statement of

Activities for the year ended December 31, 2010, and a comparative analysis with the year ended December
31, 20009.

This section intentionally left blank.
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Primary Government
Statement of Activities
For the year ended December 31, 2010, with comparatives for the year ended December 31, 2009

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services ................. $ 16,238,461 $ 17,224,843 $ 5,944,836 $ 5,594,982 $ 22,183,297 $ 22,819,825
Operating grants, contributions,
and interest ...........ccoevveeeeennns 37,609,461 41,813,165 - 6,162 37,609,461 41,819,327
Capital grants, contributions,
and interest ........ccccvvvvvvvevvennnnns 1,926,151 1,254,789 124,850 1,973,284 2,051,001 3,228,073
Total program revenue ...... 55,774,073 60,292,797 6,069,686 7,574,428 61,843,759 67,867,225
General revenues:
Property taxes ........cccccoovvvveenen. 22,947,834 19,320,675 - - 22,947,834 19,320,675
Permissive real
property transfer taxes ............. 1,102,603 998,710 - - 1,102,603 998,710
Lodging taxes ......ccccovvvvvvvieeennnns 138,741 146,067 - - 138,741 146,067
Sales taxes ......covvveeeeiiiviieeeeenns 16,403,143 11,778,248 - - 16,403,143 11,778,248
Intergovernmental 3,899,214 3,563,293 - - 3,899,214 3,563,293
Unrestricted interest
€AIMINGS .vvveeeeeiiiiiieeeeeeiiiiieeeea 715,339 930,709 65,586 74,584 780,925 1,005,293
Other ..o 616,545 630,064 36,505 33,193 653,050 663,257
Total general revenues ........ 45,823,419 37,367,766 102,091 107,777 45,925,510 37,475,543
Total Revenues .........ccccceeuvnees 101,597,492 97,660,563 6,171,777 7,682,205 107,769,269 105,342,768
Expenses:
General government:
Legislative and executive .......... 11,632,207 10,807,064 - - 11,632,207 10,807,064
Intergovernmental .................. 1,635,496 1,815,829 - - 1,635,496 1,815,829
Judicial ....... 6,469,930 5,964,528 - - 6,469,930 5,964,528
Public safety 16,213,798 15,850,652 - - 16,213,798 15,850,652
Intergovernmental ...................... 156,008 44,396 - - 156,008 44,396
Public WOrKS .....ccooviiiiiiiieiiees 11,200,993 10,922,058 - - 11,200,993 10,922,058
Health ... 24,015,477 23,695,239 - - 24,015,477 23,695,239
Human Services .........ccccovveveeerennns 21,510,978 26,811,254 - - 21,510,978 26,811,254
Urban redevelopment
and housing ........cccceeevieeniieennne. 1,358,860 358,921 - - 1,358,860 358,921
Intergovernmental . . 269,026 353,036 - - 269,026 353,036
Transportation ...........ccceveveeeerininnnns 291,787 230,852 - - 291,787 230,852
Interest and fiscal charges ............. 683,007 960,382 - - 683,007 960,382
Sewer SYStem .......occcvveveeiiiiiiieeenn. - - 3,060,231 3,655,152 3,060,231 3,655,152
Water System .........cccceeveeeiniiieennnns - - 2,948,260 2,843,308 2,948,260 2,843,308
Total EXpPEnses ........ccvveveeeene 95,437,567 97,814,211 6,008,491 6,498,460 101,446,058 104,312,671
Increase (decrease)..........ccccvveeeviiunnns 6,159,925 (153,648) 163,286 1,183,745 6,323,211 1,030,097
Net assets - beginning of year............ 218,673,617 218,827,265 41,621,109 40,437,364 260,294,726 259,264,629
Net assets - end of year..................... $ 224,833,542 $ 218,673,617 $ 41,784,395 $ 41,621,109 $ 266,617,937 $ 260,294,726
-27 -
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Governmental Activities

Operating grants, capital grants, contributions, and restricted interest accounted for 38.9 percent of total
governmental revenues, with taxes providing 40.0 percent of total governmental revenues. These revenue
sources comprise the two largest components of County revenues. Operating grants, capital grants,
contributions, and restricted interest revenues in 2010 were $39,535,612. The decrease in operating grants,
contributions, and interest is due mainly to the County receiving state and federal grants to provide public
assistance to general relief recipients in the amount of $10,864,690 in 2009 and $6,232,091 in 2010.
Property, permissive real property transfer, and lodging taxes revenues were $24,189,178 (23.8 percent of
total governmental revenues) while sales taxes were $16,403,143 (16.1 percent of total governmental
revenues). Taxes, grants, contributions, and restricted interest combined together, provided 79 percent of the
County’s total governmental revenues. Permissive real property transfer taxes remained fairly constant from
the prior year. Property taxes and sales taxes increased primarily due to an increase of 1.0 mill for the
children and adult protective services tax levy and an additional one-quarter of one percent increase in the
sales tax rate, respectively.

The County received $16,238,461 or 16.0 percent of total governmental revenues, in charges for services.
These direct charges to citizens include real estate transfer fees, property tax collection fees, judicial fines and
forfeitures, and licenses and permits.

Health services activities utilized $24,015,477 or 25.2 percent of total expenses. The County’s human services
activities accounted for $21,510,978 or 22.5 percent, of total expenses. The human services had the highest
decrease in expenses due to the state budget cuts affecting the ability in providing human services programs
to County residents while health services remained fairly constant from the prior year.

The following table presents the total expenses and net cost of each of the County’s governmental program
activities. The net cost (total program activity expenses less revenues generated by the program) represents
the financial burden that was placed on the County’s taxpayers by each of these program activities. Costs not
covered by program revenues are essentially funded with the County’s general revenues, which are primarily
composed of taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and unrestricted interest earnings. The net cost to the
governmental activities was $39,663,494.

Program Expenses and Net Costs of Governmental Activities, by Program
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Net Cost Net Cost (Gain) as Percentage

Program (Gain) of of Total Expenses
Activity Program Program All Program

Program Activity Expenses Activity Activity Activities
General government:

Legislative and executive ...................... $ 11,632,207 $ 6,384,071 54.88% 6.69%
Intergovernmental ............cccoevveeeennen. 1,635,496 1,635,496 100.00% 1.71%
Judicial oo 6,469,930 1,847,617 28.56% 1.94%
Public safety .........cccooieiiiiiiiicecc, 16,213,798 12,639,244 77.95% 13.24%
Intergovernmental 156,008 (22,668) (14.53%) (0.02%)
Public WOrks ........cccocoeiiiiiiinee 11,200,993 2,595,835 23.18% 2.72%
Health .....ooiiiiii e 24,015,477 8,666,235 36.09% 9.08%
HUMaN SEerViCes ........cccovvvveeniiiee e, 21,510,978 4,952,832 23.02% 5.19%
Urban redevelopment and housing ........... 1,358,860 189,393 13.94% 0.20%
Intergovernmental ............cccceoveeeennen. 269,026 269,026 100.00% 0.28%
Transportation ...........ccceeeeeeeiiiiiieeeee s 291,787 (176,594) (60.52%) (0.19%)
Interest and fiscal charges .............c.ccc.... 683,007 683,007 100.00% 0.72%
Total EXPENSES ....eeveiiiiieeiiieeiiiee e $ 95,437,567 $ 39,663,494 41.56%
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Business-type Activities

Net assets for business-type activities increased by $163,286 or 0.4 percent, in 2010. The major revenue
source was charges for services in the amount of $5,944,836.

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds — The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in accessing the County’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the County’s
net resources available for spending at the end of the year.

At December 31, 2010, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $49.4
million, an increase of $3.9 million in comparison with the prior year balances. Approximately $42.0 million of
this amount constitutes unreserved fund balance, available for spending at the County’s discretion. The
remainder is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it is related to purchase
commitments, unclaimed monies, or loans, none of which can easily be converted into cash. While most of
the governmental fund balances are partially reserved in the governmental fund statements, the remaining
unreserved fund balances become classified as restricted net assets on the government-wide statement of net
assets due to restrictions for use for a particular purpose mandated by the source of the funding, such as the
tax levy language or the underlying grant.

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the County. At the end of 2010, unreserved fund balance
was $10,720,064 while total fund balance was $13,345,323. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it
may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance, to total fund expenditures.
Unreserved fund balance represents 35.8 percent to total General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance
represents 44.6 percent of General Fund expenditures.

The fund balance of the County’s General Fund increased by $2.3 million during the current fiscal year
compared to a $4.6 million decrease in the prior year. Key factors in this increase in fund balance are as
follows:

= Total General Fund revenues increased approximately $4.9 million from the prior year while General Fund
expenditures remained fairly constant increasing by only $0.6 million. The largest increases in revenues
were in sales taxes and intergovernmental. These increases are primarily due to the additional increase
in the sales tax at the rate of one-quarter of one percent, personal property tax reimbursements, and
public defender reimbursements from the state, respectively.

= Other financing sources (uses) decreased by $2.7 million primarily due to decreases in transfers out.

Other Major Governmental Funds

The Community Services Fund has a fund balance of $493,125 compared to a deficit of ($477,483) in 2009.
The increase is mainly attributed to a decrease in charges for services and intergovernmental revenues which
were offset by a decrease in human services expenditures. The net change in fund balance for 2010 was an
increase of $970,608.

The fund balance of the Motor Vehicle Fund at December 31, 2010 is approximately $5.0 million, a decrease
of $846,133 from the prior year. The decrease in fund balance is due to the net effect of expenditures
exceeding revenues by ($750,613) and a net change of ($95,520) in other financing sources (uses). The net
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increase of expenditures exceeding revenues is primarily due to a large increase in public works expenditures
which was offset by a slight increase in revenues. Other financing sources (uses) decreased from the prior
year due to an increase in the sale of capital assets, an increase in inception of capital leases, and an increase
in transfers in for the County’s allocation to the Engineer’s Department which were offset by an increase in
transfers out to finance road improvements and retirement of debt.

The fund balance of the Developmental Disabilities Fund at year-end is approximately $10.5 million, an
increase of $551,381 or 5.6 percent, from the previous year. The increase in fund balance was primarily due
to revenues exceeding expenditures by $734,504. The largest increases in revenue were the increases in
property taxes of $109,607 and charges for services in the amount of $62,410. This increase in revenues was
accompanied by an increase in expenditures in the amount of $977,922. In 2010, grants due from the State
had not been collected within the available period, which resulted in deferred revenue at year-end of $866,241.

The fund balance of the Alcohol, Drug Addiction, and Mental Health Board Fund at December 31, 2010, is
approximately $1.5 million, which is an increase of $214,641 from 2009. The increase in fund balance was
due mainly to increases in intergovernmental revenues of $440,406 and charges for services $74,303 which
were offset by a decrease in expenditures of $571,132. In 2010, grants due from the State had not been
collected within the available period, which resulted in deferred revenue at year-end of $1.4 million.

The General Obligation Bond Retirement Fund has a fund balance of $387,984 at December 31, 2010. This
fund received approximately $10.5 million in a current refunding of bonds and $2.7 million in transfers in, while
making approximately $3.4 million in debt service payments and $10.7 million in payments to the bond escrow
agent to advance refund general obligation bonds.

Proprietary Funds

The County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

The County’s major proprietary funds, the Sewer Fund and the Water Fund, had an increase and a decrease
in net assets, respectively; the Sewer Fund’s net assets increased by $417,732 and the Water Fund'’s net
assets decreased $254,446. The increase in the Sewer Fund can be primarily attributed to an increase in
operating revenues, a decrease in interest income, a decrease in operating expenses, and a decrease in
interest and fiscal charges, which were offset by a decrease in capital contributions. The decrease in the
Water Fund is primarily due to an increase in operating revenues, an increase in interest income, an increase
in operating expense, and a decrease in interest and fiscal charges, and decrease in capital contributions.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The County made several revisions to the original appropriations approved by the County Commissioners.
Overall, these changes resulted in a slight increase from the original budget of 0.97 percent or $312,719.
The majority of the increase in appropriations was in public safety by $377,858 primarily for contractual
services in Sheriff department. This was offset by a decrease in appropriations in the following functions:
Transportation by $41,700 primarily for contractual services, capital outlay, and other expenditures in Airport;
Health by $27,291 primarily for contractual services in Crippled Children. Actual expenditures were less than
the final budgeted expenditures by $1.7 million due to general government legislative and executive of
$671,165, public safety of $405,821, human services of $300,061, general government judicial of $221,981,
and other of $94,244.

The County’s budgeted revenue increased by 12.7 percent primarily due to increases in sales taxes of
$1,700,000, intergovernmental of $765,257, charges for services of $301,547, permissive real property
transfer taxes of $200,000, and interest of $153,857. Actual revenues exceeded the final budget by $4.9
million primarily due to sales taxes, intergovernmental, charges for services, property taxes, and permissive
real property transfer taxes of $1,608,209, $1,102,648, $943,615, $636,556, and $392,020 respectively.
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Based on these factors, the economic condition of the General Fund, based on actual cash basis results at
December 31, 2010, reflects a fund balance that is $8.5 million better than initially projected in the original
budget.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

As of December 31, 2010, and December 31, 2009, the County had invested $233.9 million and $235.8
million, net of accumulated depreciation of $123.1 million and $115.9 million, respectively, in a broad range of
capital assets, as follows:
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation
As of December 31, 2010, with comparatives as of December 31, 2009

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Land ...cccoooeeeiiiieeeeeee $ 5,418,626 $ 5,198,258 $ 2,237,414 $ 2,237,414 $ 7,656,040 $ 7,435,672
BUildings ..o 25,593,826 25,452,828 12,340,694 12,895,331 37,934,520 38,348,159
Improvements other than

buildings ........ccccoevvvvnnininnnn 2,966,000 2,979,944 - - 2,966,000 2,979,944
EqQUIipment .........ccooeeveriennene 2,173,630 2,458,430 109,361 139,089 2,282,991 2,597,519
Furniture and fixtures ... . 270,368 314,360 - - 270,368 314,360
Infrastructure .........cccccooeveenenne 140,136,307 140,464,152 38,672,814 39,710,326 178,809,121 180,174,478
Vehicles ... 1,303,999 1,145,849 80,175 107,108 1,384,174 1,252,957
Construction in progress .......... 909,788 1,364,014 1,703,648 1,335,759 2,613,436 2,699,773

Total capital assets, net ....... $ 178,772,544  $ 179,377,835 $ 55,144,106 $ 56,425,027 $ 233,916,650 $ 235,802,862

For additional information on capital assets, see Note 10 to the basic financial statements.

The total decrease in the County’s capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for the current year were
$1.9 million or 0.8 percent (a 0.3 percent decrease for governmental activities and a 2.3 percent decrease for
business-type activities). As further detailed in Note 16 of the notes to the basic financial statements, the
County had $326,315 in construction commitments.

Debt — Bonds, Long-Term Notes, Loans, and Capital Leases Payable

As of December 31, 2010, and December 31, 2009, the County had total debt of approximately $42.3 million
and approximately $43.0 million, respectively, as shown in the table below.

Bonds, Long-Term Notes, Loans, and Capital Leases Payable
As of December 31, 2010, with comparatives for December 31, 2009

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Special assessment

bonds.......cccoeveiiiiiienn $ 1,479,503 $ 1,788,039 $ -3 - $ 1479503 $ 1,788,039
General obligation bonds... 15,323,212 16,579,049 19,759,359 21,070,580 35,082,571 37,649,629
Bond anticipation notes...... - 1,390,000 - 250,000 - 1,640,000
Recovery zone bonds......... - - 3,300,000 - 3,300,000
Long-term loans... . 694,796 684,528 722,478 933,869 1,417,274 1,618,397
Capital leases..........cccecueee.. 1,005,976 296,016 18,208 25,140 1,024,184 321,156

$ 18,503,487 $ 20,737,632 $ 23,800,045 $ 22,279,589 $ 42,303,532 $ 43,017,221

For additional information on debt, see Note 17 to the basic financial statements.
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During 2010, the County issued $101,101 and repaid $302,224 in long-term loans, repaid $1,640,000 in long-
term bond anticipation notes, issued $13,858,064 in general obligation refunding bonds (including premiums
and deferred amount on refunding), defeased $13,817,291 in general obligation bonds, paid down general
obligation bonds by $2,607,831, issued $3,300,000 in business-type recovery zone economic development
bonds, and issued no new special assessment bonds and paid off $308,536. Capital lease balances
increased $703,028. The total decrease in the County’s debt obligations for the current year was 1.7 percent
(a 10.8 percent decrease for governmental activities and a 6.8 percent increase for business-type activities).

Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. assigned a rating of “”Aa2” to the last general obligation refunding bonds
issued by the County. The County’s rating is based on the County’s financial management and debt burden,
and the strength of the local economy.

Limitations on Debt

State statutes limit the amount of total debt according to this formula: 3.0 percent of the first $100 million of
total assessed valuation; plus 1.5 percent of such valuation in excess of $100 million and not in excess of
$300 million; plus 2.5 percent of such valuation in excess of $300 million. By this calculation, the current total
legal debt margin of Fairfield County is approximately $69.2 million.

The County’s total unvoted legal debt margin at December 31, 2010, is approximately $20.5 million.
Economic Factors and Next Year’'s General Fund Budget and Rates

The economic outlook for the County has improved with the temporary addition of a one-quarter of one
percent sales tax passed by the County Commissioners. The County’s $3.348 billion tax base has increased
from the prior year. This is primarily attributable to the construction in the United States a new natural gas
pipeline passing through the County. Real property values within the County continue to slightly rise over the
past several years. However, investment earnings continue to decline from the prior years due to lower
interest rates.

The various economic factors were considered in the preparation of the County’s 2010 budget and will be
considered in the preparation of future budgets. With the increase in health insurance premiums in 2010, the
Commissioners took the conservative approach for the General Fund in 2010 by allowing no increases for
operating costs and department allocations; however, the County will see a 3.0 percent increase for workers
compensation costs and increases in salaries due to an additional pay period in 2010. The 2011 General Fund
budget was adopted at $34.4 million with no increases in salaries, operating costs, and department
allocations.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide the County’s citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and
creditors with a general overview of the County’s finances and to demonstrate the County’s accountability for
the money it receives. If you have questions about this report, please contact the Fairfield County Auditor’s
Office by calling (740) 652-7045 or by writing the County Auditor at 210 E. Main Street, Lancaster, Ohio
43130. An electronic version of this report is available on the County’s website at http://www.co.fairfield.oh.us/
auditor/index.htm
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

December 31, 2010 - Primary Government
June 30, 2010 - Fairfield Industries, Incorporated

Primary Government Component Unit
Fairfield
Governmental Business-type Industries
Activities Activities Total Incorporated

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents..................... $ 45,935,003 $ 9,452,708 $ 55,387,711 $ -
Cash and cash equivalents

in segregated accounts ..................... 108,540 589,455 697,995 103,182
Cash and cash equivalents

with fiscal agents .........ccccceveeriiennen. 357,664 - 357,664 -
Segregated investments............c.ccccoueee. - - - 224,722
Sales taxes receivable ..............ccoceenen. 4,518,671 - 4,518,671 -
Internal balances...........ccccooiiieiiiinens 239,020 (239,020) - -
Materials and supplies inventory ............ 1,013,032 24,269 1,037,301 4,747
Permissive motor vehicle license
tax receivable ... 84,313 - 84,313 -
Accrued interest receivable 225,446 17,464 242,910 -
Intergovernmental receivable ................ 14,560,272 16,844 14,577,116 -
Prepaid items ........cccoeveriinieiieneee 264,714 394 265,108 1,727
Accounts receivable .............cccccveennenn 957,125 867,307 1,824,432 82,707
External party receivable 63,766 - 63,766 -
Lodging taxes receivable 32,345 - 32,345 -
Property taxes receivable ...................... 25,126,448 - 25,126,448 -
Loans receivable ...........ccccvviniiiinnnn 960,747 - 960,747 -
Special assessments receivable ............ 1,538,721 32,084 1,570,805 -
Deferred charges .........cccccovvevieeincennne. 281,202 357,728 638,930 -
Investment in joint venture ..................... 2,088,504 - 2,088,504 -
Capital assets not being depreciated ..... 6,328,414 3,941,062 10,269,476 -
Capital assets being depreciated (net

of accumulated depreciation) ............. 172,444,130 51,203,044 223,647,174 73,247
Total aSSetS ....c.vevvvriirieiicieree e $ 277,128,077 $ 66,263,339 $ 343,391,416 $ 490,332

(continued)
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
December 31, 2010 - Primary Government

June 30, 2010 - Fairfield Industries, Incorporated

(Continued)

LIABILITIES
Accrued wages and
benefits payable .........ccccoiiiiiinns
Matured compensated
absences payable...........cccccceeiiiiines
Matured capital leases payable..............
Matured interest payable........................
Intergovernmental payable....................
Accounts payable.........cccccceiiiiiiiiiinennn.
External party payable.............cccooveene
Contracts payable.........cccccovviiiieieeennnne
Retainage payable......
Accrued interest payable..............ccccuueee
Deferred revenue.........ccccoevevevevenenenen.
Customer deposits payable....................
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year .................
Due within more than one year
Total liabilities ...........cocovveviiieeninnn.

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt ...
Restricted for:
Capital projects
Debt Service.........ccooveviviiieniieiee e
Other PUrPOSES.........eeeveiiiiiiiiieeeeeeiiis
Real estate assessment..............c........
Road and bridge projects............c.......
Ditch maintenance.......
Developmental disabilities....................
Mental health..........ccccoooiiiiiiii
Children services.........cccccoeveuviieneennnns
Title administration............cccocceveenineenne
Child support enforcement...................
Crossroads CeNter..........ccoeveveervenineenns
Bridges and culverts...........c.cccoeevvveenn.
Older adult services..
YOuth Services........ccccveiiniiiiiiieeeeeiiis
Juvenile recovery.........coccvvieeincneennn
Neighborhood stabilization...................
UNrestricted........ocovvveeeieeriecee e
Total net assets ......ccooccvveeeeeeennnns

Primary Government

Component Unit

Fairfield
Governmental Business-type Industries,
Activities Activities Total Incorporated
1,161,117 $ 37,213 $ 1,198,330 $ 55,380
40,797 - 40,797 -
3,375 598 3,973 -
607 124 731 -
1,717,759 48,145 1,765,904 -
2,805,518 132,666 2,938,184 4,174
1,368 - 1,368 -
188,282 45,629 233,911 -
94,866 - 94,866 -
72,472 102,021 174,493 -
24,446,972 - 24,446,972 41,005
- 164,891 164,891 -
3,280,737 1,587,743 4,868,480 -
18,480,665 22,359,914 40,840,579 -
52,294,535 24,478,944 76,773,479 100,559
163,190,447 35,001,789 198,192,236 73,247
868,793 - 868,793 -
313,164 - 313,164 -
11,295,643 - 11,295,643 4,032
3,692,747 - 3,692,747 -
6,619,079 - 6,619,079 -
1,585,880 - 1,585,880 -
12,169,322 - 12,169,322 -
3,243,988 - 3,243,988 -
1,563,775 - 1,563,775 -
702,657 - 702,657 -
46,744 - 46,744 -
389,017 - 389,017 -
916,004 - 916,004 -
1,853,510 - 1,853,510 -
358,072 - 358,072 -
901,152 - 901,152 -
432,689 - 432,689 -
14,690,859 6,782,606 21,473,465 312,494
224,833,542 $ 41,784,395 $ 266,617,937 $ 389,773

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010 - Primary Government
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010 - Fairfield Industries, Incorporated

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges Grants, Grants, Net
for Contributions, Contributions, (Expense)
Expenses Services and Interest and Interest Revenue
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
General government:
Legislative and executive ............. $ 11,632,207 $ 5,151,677 $ 37,899 $ 58,560 $ (6,384,071)
Intergovernmental .................... 1,635,496 - - - (1,635,496)
Judicial .....ccoeviiiiiiie e, 6,469,930 2,656,148 1,966,165 - (1,847,617)
Public safety .......cccccveeniiiciiiee 16,213,798 1,970,260 1,566,275 38,019 (12,639,244)
Intergovernmental .............ccccceeee 156,008 - 178,676 - 22,668
Public works 11,200,993 1,491,723 5,709,201 1,404,234 (2,595,835)
Health ......oooviieiiie e, 24,015,477 1,116,406 14,232,836 - (8,666,235)
Human Services ........ccccecveevivveennnen. 21,510,978 3,821,310 12,736,836 - (4,952,832)
Urban redevelopment and
NOUSING ..o 1,358,860 2,959 1,166,508 - (189,393)
Intergovernmental .................... 269,026 - - - (269,026)
Transportation .........c.ccceceveveeneennne 291,787 27,978 15,065 425,338 176,594
Interest and fiscal charges ............... 683,007 - - - (683,007)
Total governmental activities ....... 95,437,567 16,238,461 37,609,461 1,926,151 (39,663,494)
Business-type activities:
SEWET ..vviiciiee ettt see e 3,060,231 3,367,126 - 67,950 374,845
WAALET ...oeoieieeeiiee et 2,948,260 2,577,710 - 56,900 (313,650)
Total business-type activities ....... 6,008,491 5,944,836 - 124,850 61,195
Total Primary Government.................... $ 101,446,058 $ 22,183,297 $ 37,609,461 $ 2,051,001 $ (39,602,299)
Component Unit:
Fairfield Industries, Incorporated........... $ 1,583,496 $ 862,402 $ 3,353 $ - $ (717,741)
Total Component Unit..........ccccoeevevneene $ 1,583,496 $ 862,402 $ 3,353 $ - $ (717,741)
(continued)
-36 -
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010 - Primary Government
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010 - Fairfield Industries, Incorporated

Component Unit

Primary Government Fairfield
Governmental Business-type Industries,
Activities Activities Total Incorporated
Changes in Net Assets:
Net (EXPENSE) FEVENUE .....ccveeveereeeeiieeieeeereerienes $  (39,663,494) $ 61,195 $  (39,602,299) $ (717,741)
General revenues:
Property taxes levied for:
General PUMPOSES ..c.eeververieeieiesieeeeneeseees $ 7,488,581 $ - $ 7,488,581 $ -
Public works ... 1,230,093 - 1,230,093 -
Health ..o 9,606,661 - 9,606,661 -
HUMAN SEIVICES ....oovvvviiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeveeeiiees 4,622,499 - 4,622,499 -
Permissive real property transfer taxes
levied for general purposes ..........ccccceeeeneeene 1,102,603 - 1,102,603 -
Lodging tax levied for public works ................. 138,741 - 138,741 -
Sales taxes levied for
general PUIPOSES .......oeveeveeniieniieeieeieenieenine 16,403,143 - 16,403,143 -
Grants and entitlements not
restricted to specific programs..............cccee... 3,899,214 - 3,899,214 -
unrestricted iNterest ........coeeevveevieeiieeiieeiieennn, 715,339 65,586 780,925 25,563
In-kind contributions . - - - 676,897
OtNEI v 616,545 36,505 653,050 -
Total general revenues..........ccoovveeeiieeeiieeeiieenns 45,823,419 102,091 45,925,510 702,460
Increase (decrease) in
NEL ASSELS..ciiuiiiiciiiee ittt 6,159,925 163,286 6,323,211 (15,281)
Net assets - beginning of year...........ccocccoeveveene 218,673,617 41,621,109 260,294,726 405,054
Net assets - end of year.........cccooevveeneerienenne. $ 224,833,542 $ 41,784,395 $ 266,617,937 $ 389,773

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2010

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in segregated accounts
Cash and cash equivalents with fiscal agents
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables:

Property taxes

Lodging taxes

Permissive motor vehicle license tax
SalES tAXES .cvvveeiiiee e
ACCOUNLES ...t
Interfund ........cccoeeiiiieeeee e,

External party

Special assessments
Accrued interest

Intergovernmental
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid items.......c.cooeviveeieeiee e
Total aSSetS.....coivveiiiiiiieie e

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Accrued wages and benefits payable
Matured compensated absences payable...
Retainage payable
Interfund payable
External party payable
Intergovernmental payable
Deferred revenue
Matured interest payable
Matured capital leases payable...
Total liabilities........ccooverieeiieeeeeee

FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for unclaimed monies
Reserved for loans
Reserved for manuscript debt
Unreserved, undesignated, reported in:
General fund .......ccoooovveiiieeneeee,
Special revenue funds
Debt service funds
Capital projects funds (deficit)
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

Community Motor
General Services Vehicle

Fund Fund Fund
8,639,238 $ 1,413,832 3,705,710
99,322 - -
266,806 - -
8,219,227 - -
- - 84,313
4,518,671 - -
581,314 19,357 69,848
2,335,300 1,155,833 -
63,766 - -
219,778 - -
2,179,610 150,845 2,727,387
91,706 - 891,155
174,737 7,557 2,555
27,389,475 $ 2,747,424 7,480,968
704,590 $ 199,429 172,483
274 - 26,573
447,619 193,183 122,041
206 - 26,196
- - 9,477
16,088 50,344 876
538 - -
915,290 180,193 134,746
11,959,027 1,628,482 2,025,541
29 419 -
491 2,249 -
14,044,152 2,254,299 2,517,933
988,453 4,492 267,011
266,806 - -
1,370,000 - -
10,720,064 - -
- 488,633 4,696,024
13,345,323 493,125 4,963,035
27,389,475 $ 2,747,424 7,480,968

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Alcohol, Drug General

Developmental Addiction, and Obligation Bond Nonmajor
Disabilities Mental Health Retirement Governmental
Fund Board Fund Fund Funds Totals
$ 10,130,397 $ 681,036 $ 383,375 $ 20,714,609 $ 45,668,197
- - 2 9,216 108,540
357,664 - - - 357,664
- - - - 266,806
8,372,644 2,238,430 178,400 6,117,747 25,126,448
- - - 32,345 32,345
- - - - 84,313
- - - - 4,518,671
47,561 153,420 1,194 84,431 957,125
- - - 6,225 3,497,358
- - - - 63,766
- - - 1,538,721 1,538,721
- - - 5,668 225,446
- - - 960,747 960,747
2,204,966 3,051,523 3,413 4,242,528 14,560,272
27,697 - - 2,474 1,013,032
10,747 28,719 - 40,399 264,714
$ 21,151,676 $ 6,153,128 $ 566,384 $ 33,755,110 $ 99,244,165
$ 395,868 $ 750,609 $ - $ 582,539 $ 2,805,518
20,565 - - 140,870 188,282
192,649 16,229 - 189,396 1,161,117
13,499 - - 896 40,797
- - - 85,389 94,866
373 150 - 3,190,507 3,258,338
130 - - 700 1,368
208,903 15,149 - 263,478 1,717,759
9,869,155 3,864,231 178,400 11,101,951 40,626,787
93 - - 66 607
224 - - 411 3,375
10,701,459 4,646,368 178,400 15,556,203 49,898,814
3,220,605 46,846 - 513,011 5,040,418
- - - - 266,806
- - - 724,556 724,556
- - - - 1,370,000
- - - - 10,720,064
7,229,612 1,459,914 - 17,011,545 30,885,728
- - 387,984 194,009 581,993
- - - (244,214) (244,214)
10,450,217 1,506,760 387,984 18,198,907 49,345,351
$ 21,151,676 $ 6,153,128 $ 566,384 $ 33,755,110 $ 99,244,165
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Fairfield County, Ohio

RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES TO

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

December 31, 2010

Total fund balances for governmental fuNdS..........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiie e

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
nets assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the fUNAS. ...

Investment in joint venture in the governmental activities is not a financial resource
and therefore is not reported in the fuNdS. ..o

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and therefore are deferred in the funds.
PIOPEIY TAXES ...ueueeiiitiite ittt bbbt bttt en e
LOAGING TAXES ...ttt ettt ettt b ettt e et e e b e e a b e e be e sab e e nne e e b e eneeenneas
SAIES TAXES ..ttt
ChArges fOr SEIVICES ......uiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt et et e it e e be e s b e e sbe e sibeenbeenee
LIiCENSES AN PEIMILS ....eiiitieiiiiiiie ettt ettt ettt ettt bttt e be e abeesbeesnbe e saeesaee s
Fines and fOrfeitUreS ..........cooiiiiiiiii e
REIMBUISEMENTS ...t s
SPECIAI ASSESSMENLS ....eeiiiiiitieitie ettt et e ettt et e e abeesabeesbeeabeesbeeabeesbneanbeeeaee e
ACCTUET INTEIESE ...ttt e st
INTEIGOVEINMENTAL ....citiiiiiiiie ettt ettt sttt et e e be e sbe e sbeeenbeennee e

Deferred charges represent unamortized issuance costs which do not provide
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. ............ccccceeenns

Accrued interest payable is not due and payable in the current period and
therefore is not reported in the fUNAS. ........cccoiiiiie s

Long-term liabilities and accrued interest are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Special assessment bonds payable and unamortized premiums ..........c.cccceeviiniieiieene
General obligation bonds payable and unamortized premiums and discounts ...............
Refunding bonds payable and unamortized premiums and

deferred amount 0N refuNding ........coc.eoiiiiiiii s
Long-term 10ans PAYADIE ........couiiiiiiiiie e
Compensated absences PayabIe ..o
Intergovernmental PAYADIE ............oiiiiiiiii e
Capital 18aSeS PAYADIE .......oiuiiiiiiee e

2,348,321
2,276
1,857,867
125,133
179
297,250
22,623
1,538,721
79,046
9,908,399

(1,479,503)
(4,306,828)

(11,016,384)
(694,796)
(3,251,457)
(6,458)
(1,005,976)

$ 49,345,351

178,772,544

2,088,504

16,179,815

281,202

(72,472)

(21,761,402)

Net assets of governmental aCtiVities .........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiie e

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Community Motor
General Services Vehicle
Fund Fund Fund

REVENUES
PrOPEITY TAXES.....vievieveeireeiecteecte ettt e et e st eee et ereebeereesteeaesreeene e $ 7,333,985 $ - $ -
Permissive real property transfer taxes.........ccoccoeeviiieeeniiieesiiieeeens 1,102,603 - -
(oo o [T gTo IR r= (= SRR - - -
SAIES TAXES. ..ttt ettt 15,898,127 - -
Charges fOr SEIVICES. ......uuivi et 4,507,288 3,377,807 154,385
Licenses and PermitS..........cccueeeiierieiiiieeeiiiee et 37,075 - -
Permissive motor vehicle license tax.. - - 1,105,986
Fines and forfeitures.. 79,672 - 40,095
Intergovernmental..... 4,487,775 6,232,091 5,454,126
Special assessments.... - - -
Interest........cccovvveeee 793,267 - -
Rent........... 231,873 - -
Donations.. 30,000 - 100
Other......... 289,383 161,659 40,590
TOLAl FEVENUES. .....ceiiiiieiestie ettt 34,791,048 9,771,557 6,795,282
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government:

Legislative and eXECULIVE .........cceeeviiieeiiiiee e e e 9,413,841 - -
JUAICIAD - e 4,132,289 - -

PUBIIC SAfety ... 13,016,410 - -

PUDBIC WOTKS ...t - - 7,520,965

HEAIH ..o 715,802 - -

HUMAN SEIVICES ..ottt 836,042 9,168,027 -

Urban redevelopment and houSing .........c.cccoocviiniiiiicniiiiiiennene - - -

TranSPOITALION ....cocueiiiieiiee ettt 92,781 - -

OFNET . 59,696 - -
INtErgovernMENtal..........cooiiiiiiieiic e 1,635,496 - -
(0= 1o r= I 010 11 - 1Y/ S SUSSTRR - - -
Debt service:

Principal retiremMent .........ooeiviiie i 45,773 34,619 24,930

Interest and fiscal Charges ... 7,951 6,328 -

ISSUANCE COSES .....cvviiiiiiiiiiien i - - -
Total eXPenditUreS.........oouuiii i 29,956,081 9,208,974 7,545,895
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..........cccoeevveeviveeesnnns 4,834,967 562,583 (750,613)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital ASSELS......c.ueie i 7,796 - 86,376
Inception of capital I8aSE...........cooviiiiiiiiiice 776,077 32,091 115,377
LOANS FECEIVEX. ...ttt - - -
Refunding bonds iSSUEd............cooiiiiiiiiiiicce e - - -
Premium on refunding bonds...........cccooiiiiiiiiieceeee s - - -
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent............ccoceevveeniiiiecniiennns - - -
TFANSTEIS 1Nt 47,135 375,934 325,096
TrANSTEIS OUL.....eiiiiiiiiic e (3,386,773) - (622,369)
Total other financing SOUICES (USES).......ccccvereereereereeresieireiresresresnenis (2,555,765) 408,025 (95,520)
Net change in fund balances..............c......... 2,279,202 970,608 (846,133)
Fund balances (deficit) - beginning of year............cccccevvvveeiiiee e, 11,066,121 (477,483) 5,809,168
Fund balances - end Of Year........cccccecvvevieieiieie e $ 13,345,323 $ 493,125 $ 4,963,035

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Alcohol, Drug General
Developmental Addiction, and Obligation Bond Nonmajor
Disabilities Mental Health Retirement Governmental

Fund Board Fund Fund Funds Totals
$ 7,258,347 $ 1,950,963 $ 178,400 $ 5,503,297 22,224,992
- - - - 1,102,603
- - - 136,465 136,465
- - - - 15,898,127
585,295 137,333 - 4,804,201 13,566,309
- - - 422,583 459,658
- - - - 1,105,986
- - - 249,670 369,437
5,595,688 7,974,357 - 14,152,792 43,896,829
- - - 375,502 375,502
- - - 150,926 944,193
21,844 11,049 462,920 21,470 749,156
10,068 - - 47,217 87,385
23,849 11,626 - 84,867 611,974
13,495,091 10,085,328 641,320 25,948,990 101,528,616
- - - 1,613,713 11,027,554
- - - 2,321,824 6,454,113
- - - 3,040,398 16,056,808
- - - 1,629,304 9,150,269
12,757,733 9,870,687 - 877,055 24,221,277
- - - 11,398,530 21,402,599
- - - 1,627,886 1,627,886
- - - - 92,781
- - - - 59,696
B, - - - 1,635,496
- - - 2,978,737 2,978,737
1,967 - 2,725,000 517,766 3,350,055
887 - 563,525 111,819 690,510
- - 152,027 - 152,027
12,760,587 9,870,687 3,440,552 26,117,032 98,899,808
734,504 214,641 (2,799,232) (168,042) 2,628,808
797 - - - 94,969
15,637 - - - 939,182
- - - 101,101 101,101
- - 10,535,000 - 10,535,000
- - 340,091 - 340,091
- - (10,716,646) - (10,716,646)
- - 2,687,469 2,314,660 5,750,294
(199,557) - - (1,541,595) (5,750,294)
(183,123) - 2,845,914 874,166 1,293,697
551,381 214,641 46,682 706,124 3,922,505
9,898,836 1,292,119 341,302 17,492,783 45,422,846
$ 10,450,217 $ 1,506,760 $ 387,984 $ 18,198,907 49,345,351
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Fairfield County, Ohio
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds..........cccccoevviveiiiee e, $ 3,922,505

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current period:

Capital aSSet AUdItIONS ..........viiiiiiiie e 6,934,191
Capital CONHDULIONS .....c..eiiiiiiie e 96,579
CUrrent year dePreCIAtION ...........ocueieeiiiieeiiee ettt et e et et e e sabe e e s sbaeaeenibeeeees (7,279,087) (248,317)

Governmental funds only report the disposal of assets to the extent proceeds
are received from the sale. In the statement of activities, a gain or loss is
reported for each disposal. This is the amount of the proceeds, and the loss
on disposal of assets:
Proceeds from sale of capital @SSetS .........cccciiiiiiiiiiiiiic (94,969)

Loss on disposal of capital assets (262,005) (356,974)
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds:
PrOPEITY TAXES . ..ieiieiiiii ettt 722,842
LOAGING tAXES ...ttt 2,276
SAIES LAXES ...t 505,016
Charges fOr SEIVICES .....cc.uiiiiiiiiiiii e et (184,437)
Licenses and permits .. (131)
FINES and fOfEITUIES ... 36,573
INEEIGOVEIMMENTAL ... .eiiiiiiiii et e sb e seeeens (796,478)
SPECIAl ASSESSIMENES .....eiiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt (239,562)
(L) G (] AP PTRTRTPPRN (78,343)
RENE L. e (30)
(0] 1311 OO 4,571 (27,703)
Governmental funds had an investment in joint venture which reflects a decrease
for the current year. The decrease in joint venture is reflected as an expense
on the statement Of ACHIVITIES .......couuiiiiiiiieiiie e (86,204)
Repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets:
Special asSeSSMENT DONAS ......ccoviiiiiiiiiiiie e 305,000
General Obligation DONAS ...........oviiiiiiie e 935,000
Advance refunding BONAS ..........cooiiiiiiiiii e 400,000
Long-term bond anticipation notes payable ............ccoeeiiiiieniici e 1,390,000
Long-term 10ans Payable ............c.oooiiiiiiiiie e 90,833
[0 To] 1 c= LN 1= = YT PSPPI 229,222 $ 3,350,055
(continued)
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Fairfield County, Ohio

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, (Continued)
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010
Interest is reported as an expenditure when due in the governmental funds,
but is accrued on outstanding debt on the statement of activities. Premiums
and discounts are reported as revenues and expenditures when the debt is
first issued; however, these amounts are deferred and amortized on the
statement of activities.:
Accrued interest payable ....... 52,535
AMOrtization Of ISSUANCE COSES .......ueiiiiiiiiiiiiieitie et (30,112)
Amortization on premium of special assessment bonds ............cccceiriiiiiiiiieenninen. 3,536
Amortization on premium of general obligation bonds ...........c.cccooeiiiiiiiiniieneee 20,820
Amortization on premium of refunding bonds ... 22,134
Amortization on discount of general obligation bonds ............ccoceeiiiiiiiniiiieien (456) 68,457
The difference between the net carrying amount of the refunded debt and the
acquisition price is allocated over the life of the outstanding debt on the
StatemMENt Of ACHVILIES .......oiiuiiiiie i (60,954)
Inception of capital leases are reported as other financing sources in the
governmental funds, but the inception increases long-term liabilities on the
StatemMENt Of ACHIVILIES .......eiiuiiiiii i (939,182)
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds:
Intergovernmental PayabIle ............ociiiiiiiiiiiii e 1,819
Compensated absences payable ... 643,942 645,761
Long-term debt proceeds are other financing sources in the governmental funds,
but the issuance increases the long-term liabilities on the statement of activities.
LONG-term 08NS ISSUEM ........eiiiiiiiie ittt (101,101)
Refunding boNdS iSSUET ........c..coiiiiiiiiiiieiici e (10,535,000)

Premium on refunding bonds iSSUEM ...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiie e
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent is an other financing use in government
funds, but the payment reduces long-term liabilities on the statement of net
BISSELS 1.uvuteueett ettt ettt b e h e h R bbb bbb bbbt
Issuance costs are reported as an expenditure when paid in the governmental

funds, but are deferred on the statement of Net asSets .........cccveeeeeeeiiiiiiiiiieeee e,

Change in net assets of governmental actiVities..........ccccceviieiiiiiiiciiesieec e

(340,091)

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE — BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Property taXes........coouverriiieiienieneeseeese e $ 6,708,000 $ 6,708,900 $ 7,345,456 $ 636,556
Permissive real property transfer taxes...........cccccuee.. 500,000 700,000 1,092,020 392,020
SAIES tAXES. ...t 12,000,000 13,700,000 15,308,209 1,608,209
Charges for SErVICES.......cccveiviieeieiee e 3,283,580 3,585,127 4,528,742 943,615
Licenses and permits...........cccceerueeeeiiieeesniieee e 7,000 55,396 37,150 (18,246)
Fines and forfeitures........coccvevvvveeeviiee e 90,000 96,596 68,200 (28,396)
Intergovernmental............coocueeeeiiiieeiiee e 2,508,950 3,274,207 4,376,855 1,102,648
Interest . 800,000 953,857 1,023,983 70,126
Rent........... 99,000 100,000 228,841 128,841
Donations.. - 3,424 30,000 26,576
OFNEI .. 107,800 236,884 311,157 74,273
TOtal FEVENUES.......coviiiiieiiee e 26,104,330 29,414,391 34,350,613 4,936,222
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Legislative and eXecutive ...........cccccevvveeiveeennns 9,889,650 9,963,079 9,291,914 671,165
JUAICIAl .o 4,414,847 4,379,449 4,157,468 221,981
Public safety ......ccooveriiiie e 13,771,822 14,149,680 13,743,859 405,821
Health ..o 779,550 752,259 750,093 2,166
HUMAN SErVICES .......ooviiiiiiiiieeeee e 1,135,616 1,135,617 835,556 300,061
Transportation ..........ccceeeviveeeiiiiiee et 183,568 141,868 136,320 5,548
OFNET e 1,990,000 1,955,820 1,861,576 94,244
Total eXpenditures.........c.ooeervreenieeeeseee e 32,165,053 32,477,772 30,776,786 1,700,986
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures ......... (6,060,723) (3,063,381) 3,573,827 6,637,208
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets - - 7,796 7,796
AAVANCES Nt - - 1,379,688 1,379,688
AdVANCES OUL......cceviiierieiciiereee e - - (1,872,044) (1,872,044)
Operating transfers iN..........ccocoeiieniee e - 27,326 47,135 19,809
Operating transfers out...........ccocceevveenveeineseeee (2,654,093) (3,559,664) (3,386,773) 172,891
Total other financing sources (US€S).......cccccvveernuenenn. (2,654,093) (3,532,338) (3,824,198) (291,860)
Net change in fund balance ............cccccooeniiiincnn. (8,714,816) (6,595,719) (250,371) 6,345,348
Fund balance - beginning of year ..........cccccevvieennnen 7,393,664 7,393,664 7,393,664 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated...................... 1,386,771 1,386,771 1,386,771 -
Fund balance - end of year ...........cccccevvevvevveceenenne. $ 65,619 $ 2,184,716 $ 8,530,064 $ 6,345,348

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE — BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

COMMUNITY SERVICES FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Human services:
Community services:

Personal Services ........cccocveeviieniiieee i
Fringe benefits ........cccooviiiiiiiie
Materials and supplies ........cccocceeiiiieeeninnnn.
Contractual ServiCes .........ccoovevveineeriieennens

Total exXpendituresS.........cooveeeiieiiinieee e
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..........

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
AAVANCES 1N
Operating transfers in

Total other financing SOUrCes ..........ccocceevvevneeinieennne.
Net change in fund balance............ccccccoiiiiiiiiiinninns
Fund balance - beginning of year...........cccccccovveenneene
Prior year encumbrances appropriated......................

Fund balance - end of year..........c.cccoovviiiiinieiiieenn

Variance

with Final

Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 2,160,407 $ 2,160,407 $ 2,798,702 $ 638,295
11,320,000 8,403,565 7,209,273 (1,194,292)
100,000 100,000 167,161 67,161
13,580,407 10,663,972 10,175,136 (488,836)
4,108,200 4,192,800 4,134,370 58,430
1,929,025 1,961,290 1,717,109 244,181
342,423 339,854 288,747 51,107
6,565,587 4,292,776 3,554,355 738,421
96,000 96,000 61,452 34,548
1,000 1,000 - 1,000
13,042,235 10,883,720 9,756,033 1,127,687
538,172 (219,748) 419,103 638,851
- - 25,000 25,000
350,000 350,000 375,934 25,934
350,000 350,000 400,934 50,934
888,172 130,252 820,037 689,785
246,093 246,093 246,093 -
251,162 251,162 251,162 -
$ 1,385,427 $ 627,507 $ 1,317,292 $ 689,785

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE — BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

MOTOR VEHICLE FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Charges for SEIVICES........ovveviiiieieee e $ 30,000 $ 33,299 $ 116,332 $ 83,033
Permissive motor vehicle license tax 1,070,000 1,070,000 1,106,045 36,045
Fines and forfeitures. ........ccccovvee e 40,000 40,000 39,399 (601)
Intergovernmental...........ccccoveevienineeneee e 5,273,310 5,278,031 5,447,641 169,610
DONALIONS. .....ciiiiiiii et - - 100 100
10,000 11,594 40,590 28,996
TOtal FEVENUES........oiiiiiiiierieeic e 6,423,310 6,432,924 6,750,107 317,183
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public works:
Motor vehicle:
Personal Services .........ccoccvcveniieiniieneeiinnnn 2,672,250 2,849,922 2,723,621 126,301
Fringe benefits ....... 1,330,506 1,370,515 1,161,551 208,964
Materials and supplies .......cc.ccccoveeniriieennnnn. 1,721,392 1,921,547 1,662,002 259,545
Contractual ServiCes ..........cocevvveriieriviennens 892,346 1,008,326 967,506 40,820
Capital outlay ........ccooeeeriiiiiiiice e 1,154,712 1,199,118 1,163,400 35,718
OLNEI .o 1,000 101,767 101,341 426
Total expenditures..........coovveieeiiieiiee e 7,772,206 8,451,195 7,779,421 671,774
Excess of revenues under expenditures.................... (1,348,896) (2,018,271) (1,029,314) 988,957
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets..........cccceevviiiiiiiienii - - 4,492 4,492
Operating transfers iN.........c.cccooeeiieeiieiiee e 326,690 325,096 325,096 -
Operating transfers out............cccccceviieiiicniienieennn, (246,640) (622,369) (622,369) -
Total other financing sources (USEeS)..........cccoeevveennee. 80,050 (297,273) (292,781) 4,492
Net change in fund balance.............cccccooeiiiiiiiinnnnns (1,268,846) (2,315,544) (1,322,095) 993,449
Fund balance - beginning of year...........c.ccccceevcveeennes 3,564,660 3,564,660 3,564,660 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated...................... 1,100,665 1,100,665 1,100,665 -
Fund balance - end of year............cccccoveviveeveecinnenen. $ 3,396,479 $ 2,349,781 $ 3,343,230 $ 993,449

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE — BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

REVENUES

Property taxXxes.........uvvvveiiiiiiiiieeee e
Charges for services
Intergovernmental...........ccoevereeneneenec e

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Health:
Board of developmental disabilities:
Personal Services .........ccoccvcveniieiniieneeiinnnn

Fringe benefits .......
Materials and supplies .......cc.ccccoveeniriieennnnn.
Contractual ServiCes ..........cocevvveriieriviennens

Total expenditures..........coovveieeiiieiiee e
Excess of revenues under expenditures....................

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets..........cccceevviiiiiiiienii
Operating transfers Out............cccovveeiee e,

Total other financing sources (USES)..........cccvverveenee.
Net change in fund balance ............ccccoociiiiiniinene
Fund balance - beginning of year ...........ccccceeviieeennee
Prior year encumbrances appropriated......................

Fund balance - end of year ..........ccccocoiiiiiienniieene

Variance

with Final

Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 6,911,000 $ 7,211,000 $ 7,261,797 $ 50,797
456,482 516,482 568,229 51,747
4,474,386 4,918,779 5,057,654 138,875
22,000 22,000 21,844 (156)
- - 10,068 10,068
13,000 13,000 24,454 11,454
11,876,868 12,681,261 12,944,046 262,785
5,067,880 5,077,205 4,969,602 107,603
2,225,258 2,224,798 1,841,162 383,636
649,881 613,666 560,780 52,886
6,328,171 5,827,227 5,368,657 458,570
594,784 1,048,137 573,294 474,843
3,279,602 3,179,602 3,179,602 -
18,145,576 17,970,635 16,493,097 1,477,538
(6,268,708) (5,289,374) (3,549,051) 1,740,323
- - 797 797
(199,557) (199,557) (199,557) -
(199,557) (199,557) (198,760) 797
(6,468,265) (5,488,931) (3,747,811) 1,741,120
7,587,905 7,587,905 7,587,905 -
2,387,334 2,387,334 2,387,334 -
$ 3,506,974 $ 4,486,308 $ 6,227,428 $ 1,741,120

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, O

hio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE — BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
ALCOHOL, DRUG ADDICTION, AND MENTAL HEALTH BOARD FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

REVENUES

Property taxes........ccocceeveeeiiininnns
Charges for services..........c.........
Intergovernmental............ccccceueee

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Health:
Alcohol, drug addiction, and
mental health board:
Personal services ...........
Fringe benefits .......
Materials and supplies ....
Contractual services .......
Capital outlay ..................

Total expenditures...........c.cceueee..
Net change in fund balance.........

Fund balance - beginning of year

Prior year encumbrances appropriated......................

Fund balance - end of year..........

Variance

with Final

Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 2,017,300 $ 2,000,000 $ 1,952,382 $ (47,618)
121,000 140,000 136,038 (3,962)
7,980,431 8,101,761 7,830,068 (271,693)
13,680 20,000 15,900 (4,100)
- 60,000 61,626 1,626
10,132,411 10,321,761 9,996,014 (325,747)
450,282 439,684 432,969 6,715
148,630 170,258 155,207 15,051
20,535 20,500 13,637 6,863
9,606,206 9,594,199 9,517,728 76,471
3,287 3,287 1,640 1,647
10,228,940 10,227,928 10,121,181 106,747
(96,529) 93,833 (125,167) (219,000)
551,232 551,232 551,232 -
24,497 24,497 24,497 -
$ 479,200 $ 669,562 $ 450,562 $  (219,000)

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

December 31, 2010

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water

Fund Fund Totals
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.............ccccooveeriiieiiieenns $ 5,308,416 3,979,401 9,287,817
Cash and cash equivalents

in segregated acCouNts ..........cocceeevieeeiieeiiieee e 330,132 259,323 589,455
Receivables:

Accounts .. 549,436 317,871 867,307

INEErfUNG ..o 8,991 6,123 15,114

Special aSSeSSMENLS .......ccvvvviiiviriiiieiiee e 20,449 11,635 32,084

Accrued iNterest .........ccocoviieviiiiiieesiees e 10,592 6,872 17,464

Intergovernmental ...........ccoocvviiiiiiiiee e 8,620 8,224 16,844
Materials and supplies inventory...........cccccoeeveenenen. 6,267 18,002 24,269
Prepaid items........ccooiiiriiiieee e 197 197 394
Total current assets.........cccceeieeiieriiiieiiesie s 6,243,100 4,607,648 10,850,748
Noncurrent assets:

Deferred charges..........cocooeeiiieiiiic e 198,919 158,809 357,728
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ...........ccccccovveeinieennes 164,891 - 164,891
Capital assets not being depreciated 1,473,740 2,467,322 3,941,062
Capital assets being depreciated (net

of accumulated depreciation) ..........ccceevceeeiieeninnn. 28,044,984 23,158,060 51,203,044
Total NoNCUIrent assets........cooevvevieieeniiesie e 29,882,534 25,784,191 55,666,725
TOtal @SSELS....eeeiiieiieieie e $ 36,125,634 30,391,839 66,517,473

(continued)
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

December 31, 2010

(Continued)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water
Fund Fund Totals

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable ... $ 72,376 $ 60,290 $ 132,666
Contracts payable ...........cccevieiieennnen. 45,629 - 45,629
Accrued wages and benefits payable ....................... 20,529 16,684 37,213
Interfund payable ... 253,481 653 254,134
Matured capital leases payable ... 299 299 598
Matured interest payable ............ccoooeeniiiiniieniieennns 62 62 124
Intergovernmental payable ..........cccccovieinieeiiieene. 33,766 14,379 48,145
Accrued interest payable ..o 56,048 45,973 102,021
Current portion of:

Compensated absences payable ..........cccccoeeeene 35,544 42,752 78,296

Capital [8aSEeS ......ceeevieieiiieiieeee e 2,997 2,997 5,994

EPA loans payable ..........ccccoooeiiiiiiiiiiieeee 106,314 - 106,314

OPWC loans payable ..........ccocoeiiiiiiiiiiiieeen 2,139 - 2,139

General obligation bonds payable ........................ 712,500 682,500 1,395,000
Total current liabilities ...........cocevveiiiiiiiiiiiee, 1,341,684 866,589 2,208,273
Long-term liabilities

(net of current portion):

Customer deposits payable from
restricted asSets ........cccocveiiiiieiii 164,891 - 164,891
Compensated absences . 37,385 31,931 69,316
Capital [8aSEeS ......ceeevieeiiiieiee e 6,107 6,107 12,214
EPA loans payable ...........cccoiiiiiiiiiiee e 560,540 - 560,540
OPWC loans payable .........cccoccveiiiiiiieiieeeee e 53,485 - 53,485
General obligation bonds payable ............c.cccceeeeeie 12,070,920 9,593,439 21,664,359
Total long-term liabilities ...........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiee 12,893,328 9,631,477 22,524,805
Total liabilities .........cccoereiieiresee e 14,235,012 10,498,066 24,733,078
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of

related debt .........eeeeeeiiiiiii s 17,852,641 17,149,148 35,001,789
UNrestricted........oooeieiiieeiee e 4,037,981 2,744,625 6,782,606
Total NEL ASSELS ...ccvvveiieiiciicie e $ 21,890,622 $ 19,893,773 41,784,395

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water
Fund Fund Totals

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for SEIVICES ......ccviveriiieriee e $ 3,367,126 $ 2,577,710 $ 5,944,836
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Personal SEIVICES ........cccocvvviiieiiiie e 533,032 463,072 996,104
Fringe benefits .......... 201,360 185,579 386,939
Contractual SEIVICES ........ccooveviriiiiieiiee e 801,981 708,978 1,510,959
Materials and SUPPlES ........ccoocieiiiiiiie e 129,487 354,138 483,625
DEPreCiation .......c.ccvvverrieeeiiee e 839,022 832,031 1,671,053
Total operating eXPENSES .......coccueeieiiiiieiiiiee e e 2,504,882 2,543,798 5,048,680
Operating iNCOME ........ciiiiieiiiiiree et 862,244 33,912 896,156
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

INtEreSt INCOME .....ovviiicieie e 41,712 23,874 65,586
Loss on disposal of capital assets ........ccccceeeviciieeeiiieeenne (2,200) - (2,200)
Interest and fiscal charges .............. (553,149) (404,462) (957,611)
Other non-operating revenues 1,175 35,330 36,505
Total non-operating revenues (EXPENSES) ........ccocveereeeenne (512,462) (345,258) (857,720)
Gain (loss) before capital contributions .............cccccceeeiins 349,782 (311,346) 38,436
Capital contributions ...........ccooieiiiiiiee e 67,950 56,900 124,850
Change in Net ASSELS ......cccueiiiiiiiieiiiee e 417,732 (254,446) 163,286
Net assets - beginning of year ............cccocvvevienieineiines 21,472,890 20,148,219 41,621,109
Net assets - end Of Year .......cccccveveveerieeiiese e $ 21,890,622 $ 19,893,773 $ 41,784,395

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water
Fund Fund Totals
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from CUSIOMETS........ccccoveieieiirinininiee $ 3,355,363 $ 2,572,555 $ 5,927,918
Cash payments for employee services
and benefits ........ccooivieiiiic e (760,980) (644,707) (1,405,687)
Cash payments for goods and services.............ccceeevueuen. (942,034) (1,075,391) (2,017,425)
Other non-operating revVenNUES..............ccocveerveenieenieeennns 1,175 35,650 36,825
Customer deposits reCeived.........ccuueevuveeeiiieeeiniiieeiiees 9,000 - 9,000
Customer deposits returned............ccovceeveeenieeneenieeenne. (6,000) - (6,000)
Net cash provided by operating activities...............ccco..... 1,656,524 888,107 2,544,631
Cash flows from capital and
related financing activities
TaP-IN FEES ...ttt 67,950 56,900 124,850
Special aSSESSMENLS .....cccveiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 2,695 3,251 5,946
Acquisition of capital assets...........ccceeirieiiiiiieeiiiieeee (275,323) (123,564) (398,887)
Proceeds from interfund activity notes.............ccocceeveeenne 250,000 - 250,000
Proceeds from sale of recovery zone bonds................... 1,650,000 1,650,000 3,300,000
Premium on refunding bonds...........cccooviiiiiiiiiiiciicens 70,236 96,143 166,379
Proceeds from sale of refunding bonds.............c.cccccce. 1,820,000 2,490,000 4,310,000
Principal paid on capital leases payable......................... (3,444) (3,444) (6,888)
Principal paid on notes payable..............ccccceviiiniiennnn. (500,000) - (500,000)
Principal paid on EPA refunding loan.............ccccoceeiiene (207,112) - (207,112)
Principal paid on OPWC loan...........cccocoeviieniicnciiennene (4,279) - (4,279)
Principal paid on general obligation bonds... (670,000) (635,000) (1,305,000)
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent........................ (1,869,442) (2,554,833) (4,424,275)
BONd iISSUANCE COSES....cuvieiiiiiiieiiieniie et (49,597) (59,005) (108,602)
Interest paid on capital leases payable ..............cccccueene (897) (897) (1,794)
Interest paid on notes payable...........ccoccoevveiiiiiiniiiene (16,205) - (16,205)
Interest paid on EPA refunding loan...........cccccocvveviiennns (29,122) - (29,122)
Interest paid on general obligation bonds....................... (492,508) (363,659) (856,167)
Net cash provided by capital and
related financing activities .............ccocvviieiniiiieeineens (257,048) 555,892 298,844
Cash flows from investing activities
INEEIEST. ...t 31,620 15,405 47,025
Net cash provided by investing activities................c.c...... 31,620 15,405 47,025
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents.................... 1,431,096 1,459,404 2,890,500
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year............... 4,372,343 2,779,320 7,151,663
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year..............c......... $ 5,803,439 $ 4,238,724 $ 10,042,163
(continued)
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water
Fund Fund Totals
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating iNCOME .......cocverieeiereeeeee e ee e $ 862,244 $ 33,912 $ 896,156
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Other non-operating reVeNUES ..........ccoovueeeeniieeeeninne. 1,175 35,650 36,825
Depreciation eXPENSE .........ccceerveeiieeneesiiee e sneenans 839,022 832,031 1,671,053
(Increases) decreases in assets:
Accounts receivable ..o, (9,315) (9,099) (18,414)
Intergovernmental receivable .............cccccovieininen. (5,019) 1,576 (3,443)
Interfund receivable ... 2,349 2,368 4,717
External party receivable ...........cccccooiiiiiiiiiiinnns 222 - 222
Materials and supplies inventory ..........cc.cccoeeeeeeeen. 658 (6,440) (5,782)
Prepaids 8,890 15,524 24,414
Increases (decreases) in liabilities:
Accounts payable ..........ccooiiiiiinine (19,621) (13,657) (33,278)
Accrued wages and benefits payable ..................... (18,525) (17,672) (36,197)
Compensated absences payable ..............ccocuenee. (18,970) 11,339 (7,631)
Interfund payable ................. (80) (80) (160)
Intergovernmental payable 10,494 2,655 13,149
CUSLOMEr AEPOSILS ...oovveeirieiiieiiie et 3,000 - 3,000
Net cash provided by operating activities.................c...... $ 1,656,524 $ 888,107 $ 2,544,631

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS

December 31, 2010

ASSETS
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENES ...........ocoiiiiiiiiiiie e $ 7,345,053
Cash and cash equivalents in segregated acCoUNts ..........cc.ceevveeieiiieeiiieennns 1,874,450
Receivables:
PrOPEITY TAXES ....eveiieiiiiee ittt 135,328,273
Lodging taxes .... 48,247
ACCOUNTS ...ttt 2,744,587
SPECIal ASSESSMENLS ....ciiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt ibee e 3,680,265
INtErgOVEINMENTAL ......eiiiiiiiii et 12,483,588
Tax increment financing receivable ... 3,827,764
External party receivable 1,368
TOUAl ASSELS ...ttt ettt b ettt sttt enean $ 167,333,595
LIABILITIES
External party payable ...........cooeiiiiiiiiie e $ 63,766
Intergovernmental Payable ... 160,493,112
DUE 0 OTNETS ..o 6,776,717
TOtaAl ADIILIES ....veveeieieeeieete ettt $ 167,333,595

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

(Unaudited)

Introduction

This section of Fairfield County’s (the County) annual financial report presents management’s discussion
and analysis of the County’s financial performance during the year ended December 31, 2009. The
management’s discussion and analysis section should be read in conjunction with the preceding letter of
transmittal and the County’s financial statements, which follow.

Financial Highlights

Key financial highlights for 2009 are as follows:

=  The assets of Fairfield County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the year ended December 31, 2009,
by $260,294,726 (net assets). Of this amount, $21,130,295 was the unrestricted net assets portion which
represents the amount that can be used at the discretion of the County Commissioners.

®=  The County’s total net assets increased by 0.4 percent, or $1,030,097 from the total net assets at the
beginning of the year 2009.

= At the end of the current year, the County’s governmental activities reported total net assets of
$218,673,617 a decrease of $153,648 from the prior year. Of this amount, $13,754,645 is unrestricted.

= At the end of the current year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $9,830,204, which
represents a 28.9 percent decrease from the prior year, and represents 33.5 percent of total General Fund
expenditures.

= Fairfield County’s total long-term debt decreased by $2,056,425 or 4.6 percent, during the current year.
Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of management’s discussion and analysis, basic financial statements, including the
accompanying notes to the basic financial statements, and combining statements for the nonmajor
governmental funds, and the fiduciary funds. The basic financial statements are composed of the
government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements.

Figure 1 illustrates how the required parts of this annual report are arranged and relate to one another. In

addition to these required elements, as explained later, this report includes an optional section that contains
combining statements that provide details about the County’s nonmajor governmental funds.
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Fairfield County, Ohio
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

(Unaudited)

Figure 1
Required Components of
Fairfield County’s Annual Financial Report

Management's Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements

Notes to the
Basic Financial
Statements

Government-wide Fund
Financial Financial
Statements Statements

SUMMARY LEVEL < | | —

The government-wide financial statements provide financial information about the County as a whole,
including its component unit.

DETAIL LEVEL

The fund financial statements focus on the County’s operations in more detail than the government-wide
financial statements. The financial statements presented for governmental funds report on the County’s
general government services. Proprietary fund statements report on the activities that the County operates
like private-sector businesses. Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial
relationships in which the County acts solely as a trustee or agent, for the benefit of others outside the
government to whom the resources belong.

The basic financial statements section also includes Notes to the Basic Financial Statements that more fully
explain the information in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Figure 2 below summarizes the major features of the County’s statements.

Figure 2
Major Features of Fairfield County’s Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide

Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds
Scope Entire County The activities of the Activities the County Instances in which the
government (except County that are not operates similar to County is the trustee or
fiduciary funds) and proprietary or fiduciary, private businesses, agent for someone
the County’s such as public safety, such as the sewer and else’s resources
component units public works, health, water operations
human services,
general government
Urban redevelopment
and housing,
transportation, and
interest/ fiscal charges
Required e Statement of Net e Balance Sheet e Statement of Fund Net e Statement of Fiduciary
financial Assets e Statement of Assets Assets and Liabilities
statements e Statement of Revenues, o Statement of
Activities Expenditures, and Revenues, Expenses,

Changes in Fund
Balances

and Changes in Fund
Net Assets

e Statement of Cash
Flows
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Figure 2 (continued)
Major Features of the Fairfield County’s Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide

Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds

Accounting Accrual accounting Modified accrual Accrual accounting and Accrual accounting and
basis and and economic accounting and current economic resources economic resources
measurement resources focus financial resources focus focus
focus focus
Type of All assets and Only assets expected to All assets and liabilities, All assets and liabilities,
asset/liability liabilities, both be used up and liabi- both financial and both financial and
information financial and capital, lities that come due capital, and short-term capital, and short-term

and short-term and during the year or soon and long-term and long-term

long-term thereafter; no capital

assets included

Type of All revenues and Revenues for which All revenues and Not applicable because
inflow/outflow expenses during the cash is received during expenses during the the County only has
information year, regardless of or soon after the end of year, regardless of agency funds

when cash is received
or paid

the year; expenditures
when goods or services

when cash is received
or paid

have been received and
payment is due during
the year or soon
thereafter

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the County’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. The Statement of Activities presents information showing
how the County’s net assets changed during the current year. Both statements use the accrual basis of
accounting, similar to the accounting used by private sector companies. This basis of accounting takes into
account all of the current year’s revenues and expenses regardless of when the cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the County’s net assets and the change in those assets. This change in net
assets is important because it tells the reader whether, for the County as a whole, the economic condition of
the County has improved or diminished. However, in evaluating the overall position of the County,
nonfinancial information such as changes in the County’s tax base and the condition of the County’s capital
assets will also need to be evaluated.

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, which can be found on pages 34 through 37 of
this report, are divided into three categories as follows.

Governmental Activities — Most of the County’s basic services are reported under this category, such as
general government, public safety, public works, health, human services, urban redevelopment and house,
transportation, interest and fiscal charges, and all departments - with the exception of the sewer and water
funds.

-23-
121




Fairfield County, Ohio
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

(Unaudited)

Business-type Activities — The County provides services and then charges a fee to customers, based upon
the amount of usage, to recover the costs of the services provided, and to cover the capital expenses
associated with the related facilities. The County’s sewer and water operations are considered business-type
activities.

Component Unit — The County includes financial data of Fairfield Industries, Incorporated. This component
unit is described in Note 1 of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. A component unit is separate and
may buy, sell, lease, and mortgage property in its own name. It can also sue or be sued in its own name.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the County’s most significant funds —
not the County as a whole. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. Fund financial statements provide detailed information about the
County’s major funds. Based on the restriction on the use of monies, the County has established many funds
that account for the multitude of services provided to its residents. However, these fund financial statements
focus on the County’s most significant funds. The County’s major governmental funds are:

- General Fund

- Community Services Fund

- Motor Vehicle Fund

- Developmental Disabilities Fund

- Alcohol, Drug Addiction, and Mental Health Board Fund
- General Obligation Bond Retirement Fund

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on current sources and uses of spendable
resources, as well as balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information may
be useful in evaluating the County’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, the reader may better
understand the long-term impact of the County’s near-term financial decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The County maintains a number of individual governmental funds. Information for the major funds, identified
earlier, is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. Data from the other governmental funds
are combined into a single aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. The
governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 38 through 50 of this report.

Proprietary Funds —The County maintains one type of proprietary fund. It uses enterprise funds to account
for its sewer and water operations. In these operations, the County charges a fee to customers, based upon
the amount of usage, to recover the costs of the services provided, and to cover the capital expenses
associated with the related facilities. The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 51
through 55 of this report.
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Fiduciary Funds — The County accounts for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government
as fiduciary funds. These funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s own programs. The County uses accrual
accounting for fiduciary funds, much like that of the proprietary fund. The fiduciary fund financial statement
can be found on page 56 of this report.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The Notes to the
Basic Financial Statements can be found on pages 57 through 104 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

During 2009, as shown in the table below, the combined net assets of the County’s primary government
increased $1.0 million or 0.4 percent. Net assets reported for governmental activities decreased $0.2 million
or 0.07 percent and business-type activities increased $1.2 million or 2.9 percent.

Condensed financial information derived from the Statement of Net Assets for the primary government follows:

Primary Government
Statement of Net Assets
As of December 31, 2009, with comparatives as of December 31, 2008

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Assets:
Current and other
noncurrent assets ........ $ 94,173,309 $ 92,514,312 $ 8,463,113 $ 9,236,220 $102,636,422 $ 101,750,532
Capital assets .... 179,377,835 181,026,985 56,425,027 55,431,600 235,802,862 236,458,585
Total assets ........ccc...... 273,551,144 273,541,297 64,888,140 64,667,820 338,439,284 338,209,117
Liabilities:
Current and
other liabilities ................. 30,236,219 28,891,224 832,199 612,767 31,068,418 29,503,991
Noncurrent liabilities ......... 24,641,308 25,822,808 22,434,832 23,617,689 47,076,140 49,440,497
Total liabilities .............. 54,877,527 54,714,032 23,267,031 24,230,456 78,144,558 78,944,488
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt ........ 162,064,907 163,111,804 34,245,459 32,757,780 196,310,366 195,869,584
Restricted .................. 42,854,065 38,698,952 - - 42,854,065 38,698,952
Unrestricted ........... 13,754,645 17,016,509 7,375,650 7,679,584 21,130,295 24,696,093

Total net assets $ 218,673,617 $ 218,827,265 $ 41,621,109 $40,437,364 $260,294,726 _$ 259,264,629

At December 31, 2009, the primary government’s invested in capital assets, net of depreciation, (i.e. land,
buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery and equipment, furniture and fixtures, infrastructures,
vehicles, and construction in progress), less related outstanding debt, was approximately $196.3 million. The
County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available
for future spending. Although the County’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, the
reader should be aware that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources.
The capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

There were various changes in current and other noncurrent assets from the prior year which resulted in an
increase of $0.9 million. There were decreases in cash and cash equivalents and special assessments
receivable which were offset by increases in materials and supplies inventory, intergovernmental receivable,
prepaid items, and property taxes receivable. Cash and cash equivalents decreased by $5 million. This
decrease can be attributed primarily to the decreases in permissive real property transfer taxes, sales taxes,
intergovernmental receipts, and interest earnings. Special assessments receivable decreased by $0.4 million
due to property tax payers paying down their outstanding special assessments. The increases in materials an
supplies inventory, intergovernmental receivable, prepaid items, and property taxes receivable are primarily
due to an increase in the Engineer’s department material and supplies inventory, an increase funding from
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federal and state grant sources. In addition, the January 2010 health and life insurances were prepaid by
year-end which did not happen in the prior year, and the one mill Child and Adult Protective Services tax levy
collections will begin in 2010, respectively. The $0.2 million decrease in business type activities current assets
is primarily due to a decrease in cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The decrease in cash
and cash equivalents is attributed to increase in expenditures for goods and services and decreases in tap in
fees and payments from customers.

The decrease in governmental type capital assets is due mainly to the current year’s increase in accumulated
depreciation. The increase in business type activities capital assets is due mainly to the increase in
infrastructure additions and the increase in construction in progress.

Liabilities for governmental activities remained fairly constant. Decreases in liabilities for business type
activities are due primarily to the decrease in outstanding debt.

Restricted net assets were approximately $42.9 million, resulting in a $21.1 million unrestricted net assets
balance. Net assets are restricted when constraints on their use are externally imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments. Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets that do
not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt.”

The County’s net assets, when viewed over time, may provide the reader with a useful indicator of the
County’s economic condition.

The table on the following page shows the condensed financial information derived from the Statement of

Activities for the year ended December 31, 2009, and a comparative analysis with the year ended December
31, 2008.

This section intentionally left blank.
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For the year ended December 31, 2009, with comparatives for the year ended December 31, 2008

Primary Government

Statement of Activities

Revenues:

Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants, contributions,

and interest
Capital grants, contributions,
and interest
Total program revenue

General revenues:
Property taxes
Permissive real
property transfer taxes
Lodging taxes

Sales taxes

Intergovernmental
Unrestricted interest

Expenses:

General government:
Legislative and executive
Intergovernmental
Judicial ......oooveeiiiieis
Public safety ............
Intergovernmental
Public works ...........cc.cco..
Health .......ccooovviiniien,
Human services
Urban redevelopment
and housing .........ccccee..
Intergovernmental
Transportation ...
Interest and fiscal charges

Sewer system
Water system

Total Expenses
Increase (Decrease)

Net assets - beginning of year
Net assets - end of year

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
$ 17,224,843 $ 15,950,554 5,594,982 $ 5,536,287 $ 22,819,825 $ 21,486,841
41,813,165 39,471,114 - - 41,813,165 39,471,114
1,254,789 770,746 1,973,284 1,369,749 3,228,073 2,140,495
60,292,797 56,192,414 7,568,266 6,906,036 67,861,063 63,098,450
19,320,675 19,224,281 - - 19,320,675 19,224,281
998,710 1,289,127 - - 998,710 1,289,127
146,067 172,529 - - 146,067 172,529
11,778,248 11,721,134 - - 11,778,248 11,721,134
3,563,293 3,696,906 6,162 - 3,569,455 3,696,906
930,709 2,748,397 74,584 143,701 1,005,293 2,892,098
630,064 854,058 33,193 17,381 663,257 871,439
37,367,766 39,706,432 113,939 161,082 37,481,705 39,867,514
97,660,563 95,898,846 7,682,205 7,067,118 105,342,768 102,965,964
10,807,064 11,923,640 - - 10,807,064 11,923,640
1,815,829 1,863,467 - - 1,815,829 1,863,467
5,964,528 5,538,194 - - 5,964,528 5,538,194
15,850,652 15,425,818 - - 15,850,652 15,425,818
44,396 116,172 - - 44,396 116,172
10,922,058 11,328,723 - - 10,922,058 11,328,723
23,695,239 24,730,141 - - 23,695,239 24,730,141
26,811,254 27,517,647 - - 26,811,254 27,517,647
358,921 102,906 - - 358,921 102,906
353,036 111,049 - - 353,036 111,049
230,852 219,451 - - 230,852 219,451
960,382 1,020,192 - - 960,382 1,020,192
- - 3,655,152 3,424,048 3,655,152 3,424,048
- - 2,843,308 2,803,331 2,843,308 2,803,331
97,814,211 99,897,400 6,498,460 6,227,379 104,312,671 106,124,779
(153,648) (3,998,554) 1,183,745 839,739 1,030,097 (3,158,815)
218,827,265 222,825,819 40,437,364 39,597,625 259,264,629 262,423,444
$ 218,673,617 $ 218,827,265 $ 41,621,109 $ 40,437,364 $ 260,294,726  $ 259,264,629
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Governmental Activities

Grants, contributions, and restricted interest accounted for 44.1 percent of total governmental revenues, with
taxes providing 33.0 percent of total governmental revenues. These revenue sources comprise the two largest
components of County revenues. Grants, contributions, and restricted interest revenues in 2009 were
$43,067,954. The increase in capital grants, contributions, and interest is due mainly to the County receiving
state and federal grants for the construction of road and bridges in the amount of $449,917 in 2008 and
$1,008,940 in 2009. Property, permissive real property transfer, and lodging taxes revenues were
$20,465,452 (21.0 percent of total governmental revenues) while sales taxes were $11,778,248 (12.1 percent
of total governmental revenues). Taxes, grants, contributions, and restricted interest combined together,
provided 77.1 percent of the County’s total governmental revenues. Property and sales taxes remained fairly
constant from the prior year. Permissive real property transfer taxes decreased due to the reduction in the
number of real property and manufactured home transactions.

The County received $17,224,843 or 17.6 percent of total governmental revenues, in charges for services.
These direct charges to citizens include real estate transfer fees, property tax collection fees, judicial fines and
forfeitures, and licenses and permits.

Human services activities utilized $26,811,254 or 27.4 percent of total expenses. The County’s health services
activities accounted for $23,695,239 or 24.2 percent, of total expenses. These two areas had the second and
third largest decrease in expenses due to the state budget cuts affecting the ability in providing health and
human services programs to County residents.

The following table presents the total expenses and net cost of each of the County’s governmental program
activities. The net cost (total program activity expenses less revenues generated by the program) represents
the financial burden that was placed on the County’s taxpayers by each of these program activities. Costs not
covered by program revenues are essentially funded with the County’s general revenues, which are primarily
composed of taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and unrestricted interest earnings. The net cost to the
governmental activities was $37,521,414.

Program Expenses and Net Costs of Governmental Activities, by Program
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Net Cost Net Cost (Gain) as Percentage

Program (Gain) of of Total Expenses
Activity Program Program All Program

Program Activity Expenses Activity Activity Activities
General government:

Legislative and executive ..............c......... $ 10,807,064 $ 5,573,025 51.57% 5.70%
Intergovernmental ....................... 1,815,829 1,815,829 100.00% 1.86%
Judicial ..o 5,964,528 2,394,273 40.14% 2.45%
Public safety .......cccovvviiiiiiics 15,850,652 12,463,199 78.63% 12.74%
Intergovernmental ...........ccccoocveeiiiinenns 44,396 (13,804) (31.09%) (0.01%)
Public WOrks ........cooviiiiiiice 10,922,058 2,727,369 24.97% 2.78%
Health ..o 23,695,239 9,162,094 38.67% 9.37%
Human Services ..........ccocevvviiiiiiiiiieiine 26,811,254 3,463,536 12.92% 3.54%
Urban redevelopment and housing ............. 358,921 (1,464,461) (408.02%) (1.50%)
Intergovernmental ............ccccceeiiininnene 353,036 353,036 100.00% 0.36%
Transportation ...........cccceeveveesreeeenieeesnneens 230,852 86,936 37.66% 0.09%
Interest and fiscal charges ...........ccccceeveenne 960,382 960,382 100.00% 0.98%
Total eXPENSES ....cccvveviieiieiiieee e $ 97,814,211 $ 37,521,414 38.36%
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Business-type Activities

Net assets for business-type activities increased by $1,183,745 or 2.9 percent, in 2009. The major revenue
source was charges for services in the amount of $5,594,982.

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds — The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in accessing the County’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the County’s
net resources available for spending at the end of the year.

At December 31, 2009, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $45.4
million, a decrease of $1.3 million in comparison with the prior year balances. Approximately $39.4 million of
this amount constitutes unreserved fund balance, available for spending at the County’s discretion. The
remainder is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it is related to purchase
commitments, unclaimed monies, or loans, none of which can easily be converted into cash. While most of
the governmental fund balances are partially reserved in the governmental fund statements, the remaining
unreserved fund balances become classified as restricted net assets on the government-wide statement of net
assets due to restrictions for use for a particular purpose mandated by the source of the funding, such as the
tax levy language or the underlying grant.

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the County. At the end of 2009, unreserved fund balance
was $9,830,204 while total fund balance was $11,066,121. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it
may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance, to total fund expenditures.
Unreserved fund balance represents 33.5 percent to total General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance
represents 37.7 percent of General Fund expenditures.

The fund balance of the County’s General Fund decreased by $4.6 million during the current fiscal year
compared to a $1.0 million decrease in the prior year. Key factors in this decrease in fund balance are as
follows:

=  Total General Fund revenues decreased approximately $3.0 million from the prior year while General
Fund expenditures remained fairly constant increasing by only $92,167. The largest decreases in
revenues were in interest, charges for services, and permissive real property transfer taxes. The
decreases are primarily due to decreases in the rate of return on investments, court costs and fees, and
the decrease in the number of real property and manufactured home conveyances, respectively.

= Other financing sources (uses) changed by an additional ($517,219) primarily due to increases in transfers
out.

Other Major Governmental Funds

The Community Services Fund has a deficit fund balance of ($477,483) compared to a deficit of ($2.3) million
in 2008. The decrease in the deficit is mainly attributed to an increase in charges for services revenue and a
decrease in human services expenditures. The net change in fund balance for 2009 was an increase of
$1,845,929.
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The fund balance of the Motor Vehicle Fund at December 31, 2009 is $5.8 million, an increase of $210,993
from the prior year. The increase in fund balance is due to the net effect of revenues exceeding expenditures
by $350,825 and a net change of ($139,832) in other financing sources (uses). The netincrease of revenues
exceeding expenditures is primarily due to a large decrease in public works expenditures which was offset by
a slight decrease in revenues. Other financing sources (uses) decreased from the prior year due to a
decrease in transfers in for the County’s allocation to the Engineer’s department and an increase in transfers
out to finance road improvements and retirement of debt.

The fund balance of the Developmental Disabilities Fund at year-end is $9.9 million, an increase of $1,441,056
or 17.0 percent, from the previous year. The increase in fund balance was primarily due to revenues
exceeding expenditures. The largest increase in revenue was the increase in intergovernmental revenue of
$569,069. The additional intergovernmental monies were received in the areas of federal and state programs,
property tax reimbursements, waiver match reimbursements, and the new stimulus monies received for a
medical assistance program. This increase in revenues was accompanied by a decrease in expenditures of
$567,588.

The fund balance of the Alcohol, Drug Addiction, and Mental Health Board Fund at December 31, 2009, is
approximately $1.3 million, which is a decrease of $872,006 from 2008. The decrease in fund balance was
due mainly to a decrease in intergovernmental revenues of $1,688,784 offset by a decrease in expenditures of
$348,913. In 2009, grants due from the State had not been collected within the available period, which
resulted in deferred revenue at year-end of $1.4 million.

The General Obligation Bond Retirement Fund has a fund balance of $341,302 at December 31, 2009. This
fund received approximately $1.4 million in a current refunding of bond anticipation notes and $1.4 million in
transfers in, while making approximately $3.3 million in debt service payments.

Proprietary Funds

The County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

The County’s major proprietary funds, the Sewer Fund and the Water Fund, both had increases in net assets;
the Sewer Fund’s net assets increased by $688,088 and the Water Fund’s net assets increased $495,657.
These increases can be primarily attributed to the increases in operating revenues and capital contributions
which were offset by decreases in interest income and interest and fiscal charges and increases in operating
expenses.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The County made several revisions to the original appropriations approved by the County Commissioners.
Overall, these changes resulted in a decrease from the original budget of 6.4 percent or $2,213,804. The
County Commissioners realized that revenues for 2009 were going to be lower than in 2008; therefore, they
decreased appropriations and expenditures in order to save more carryover cash at year-end. The majority of
the decrease in appropriations were for the following functions: general government legislative and executive
by $140,037 primarily for contractual services in Levy and Assessment and salaries in Board of Elections;
judicial by $201,768 primarily for contractual services in Common Pleas Court Administration, Juvenile Court,
and fringe benefits in Domestic Relations; public safety by $264,362 primarily for fringe benefits in Probation
and Sheriff; health by $196,626 primarily for contractual services in Agriculture and Crippled Children; human
services by $255,874 primarily for contractual services and capital outlay in Veterans Service Commission;
other expenditures by $1,119,425 primarily for miscellaneous expenditures related to contractual and other
services. Actual expenditures were less than the final budgeted expenditures by $1.4 million due to general
government legislative and executive of $615,922, public safety of $245,026, general government judicial of
$201,098, human services of $151,112, transportation of $44,816, and other of $100,800.
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The County’s budgeted revenue decreased by 1.0 percent primarily due to decreases in charges for services
of $86,516 and intergovernmental of $193,214. Actual revenues exceeded the final budget by $2.7 million
primarily due to charges for services, sales taxes, property taxes, and intergovernmental of $876,073,
$606,840, $602,753, and $587,918 respectively.

Based on these factors, the economic condition of the General Fund, based on actual cash basis results at
December 31, 2009, reflects a fund balance that is $6.3 million better than initially projected in the original
budget.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

As of December 31, 2009, and December 31, 2008, the County had invested $235.8 million and $236.5
million, net of accumulated depreciation of $115.94 million and $107.5 million, respectively, in a broad range of
capital assets, as follows:
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation
As of December 31, 2009, with comparatives as of December 31, 2008

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Land ..c.oooveeiee $ 5,198,258 $ 4,433,878 $ 2237414 $ 2,237,414 $ 7,435,672 $ 6,671,292
Buildings ......ccoooeeiiieiniieee, 25,452,828 26,008,829 12,895,331 13,463,924 38,348,159 39,472,753
Improvements other than

buildings ...c.covveveiiiiiene 2,979,944 3,104,048 - - 2,979,944 3,104,048
Equipment ................... 2,458,430 3,123,195 139,089 154,448 2,597,519 3,277,643
Furniture and fixtures 314,360 368,323 - - 314,360 368,323
Infrastructure ............... 140,464,152 141,764,759 39,710,326 38,792,458 180,174,478 180,557,217
Vehicles ......coovvvieinieiiiiieees 1,145,849 1,355,511 107,108 111,524 1,252,957 1,467,035
Construction in progress ......... 1,364,014 868,442 1,335,759 671,832 2,699,773 1,540,274

Total capital assets, net ...... $ 179,377,835  $ 181,026,985 $ 56,425,027 $ 55,431,600 $ 235,802,862 $ 236,458,585

For additional information on capital assets, see Note 10 to the basic financial statements.

The total decrease in the County’s capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for the current year were
$655.7 thousand or 0.3 percent (a 0.9 percent decrease for governmental activities and a 1.8 percent increase
for business-type activities). As further detailed in Note 16 of the notes to the basic financial statements, the
County had $560.3 thousand in construction commitments.

Debt — Bonds, Long-Term Notes, Loans, and Capital Leases Payable

As of December 31, 2009, and December 31, 2008, the County had total debt of approximately $43.0 million
and approximately $45.1 million, respectively, as shown in the table on the following page.
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Bonds, Long-Term Notes, Loans, and Capital Leases Payable
As of December 31, 2009, with comparatives for December 31, 2008

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Bond anticipation notes...... $ 1,390,000 $ 1,390,000 $ 250,000 $ - $ 1,640,000 $ 1,390,000
General obligation bonds... 16,579,049 17,684,709 21,070,580 22,275,103 37,649,629 39,959,812
Special assessment

bonds.......cccooveiiiininnn, 1,788,039 2,076,574 - - 1,788,039 2,076,574
Long-term loans................. 684,528 - 933,869 1,138,119 1,618,397 1,138,119
Capital leases...........ccc....... 296,016 491,575 25,140 17,566 321,156 509,141

$ 20,737,632 $ 21,642,858 $ 22,279,589 $ 23,430,788 $ 43,017,221 $ 45,073,646

For additional information on debt, see Note 17 to the basic financial statements.

During 2009, the County issued $1,390,000 and repaid $1,390,000 in long-term bond anticipation notes,
issued $684,528 in a state infrastructure bank loan, issued $250,000 in sanitary sewer long-term bond
anticipation notes, paid down general obligation bonds by $2,310,183, issued no new special assessment
bonds and paid off $288,535, and paid off $204,250 in long term loans. Capital lease balances decreased
$187,985. The total decrease in the County’s debt obligations for the current year was 4.6 percent (a 4.2
percent decrease for governmental activities and a 4.9 percent decrease for business-type activities).

Limitations on Debt

State statutes limit the amount of total debt according to this formula: 3.0 percent of the first $100 million of
total assessed valuation; plus 1.5 percent of such valuation in excess of $100 million and not in excess of
$300 million; plus 2.5 percent of such valuation in excess of $300 million. By this calculation, the current total
legal debt margin of Fairfield County is approximately $64.8 million.

The County’s total unvoted legal debt margin at December 31, 2009, is approximately $17.8 million.
Economic Factors

The County’s $3.233 billion tax base has decreased for the first time within the last ten years. This is
attributable to the phase out of the general tangible personal property tax. This decrease represents less than
one-half of one percent of the assessed valuation form the prior year and supports the fact that real property
values within the County have risen steadily over the past several years. However, investment earnings
declined significantly in 2008 and 2009 while permissive real property transfer taxes declined significantly
2007 through 2009. On October 23, 2009, the County Commissioners levied a temporary additional sales tax
at the rate of one-quarter of one percent for a period of four years commencing January 1, 2010 to increase
future revenues.

The various economic factors were considered in the preparation of the County’s 2009 budget and will be
considered in the preparation of future budgets. The Commissioners tighten spending controls in 2009 by
limiting General Fund budget growth to 3.0 percent for salaries and 2.0 percent for all operating costs.
Appropriate measures will be taken to ensure spending is within available resources in future budgets.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide the County’s citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and
creditors with a general overview of the County’s finances and to demonstrate the County’s accountability for
the money it receives. If you have questions about this report, please contact the Fairfield County Auditor’s
Office by calling (740) 652-7045 or by writing the County Auditor at 210 E. Main Street, Lancaster, Ohio
43130. An electronic version of this report is available on the County’s website at http://www.co.fairfield.oh.us/
auditor/index.htm
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

December 31, 2009 - Primary Government
June 30, 2009 - Fairfield Industries, Incorporated

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents.....................
Cash and cash equivalents

in segregated accounts .............c......
Cash and cash equivalents

with fiscal agents

Segregated investments............c.ccccoueee.
Sales taxes receivable .............c.ccoceeee

Internal balances.....

Materials and supplies inventory ............
Permissive motor vehicle license

tax receivable ........

Accrued interest receivable

Intergovernmental receivable ................

Prepaid items .........
Accounts receivable

External party receivable
Lodging taxes receivable

Property taxes receivable ......................

Loans receivable ....

Special assessments receivable ............

Deferred charges ....

Investment in joint venture .....................
Capital assets not being depreciated .....

Capital assets being

depreciated (net

of accumulated depreciation) .............

Total assets ............

Primary Government

Component Unit

Fairfield
Governmental Business-type Industries,
Activities Activities Total Incorporated
$ 43,127,483 $ 6,639,677 $ 49,767,160 $ 82,761
108,007 511,986 619,993 -
129,931 - 129,931 -
- - - 202,306
3,423,737 - 3,423,737 -
(9,094) 9,094 - -
1,106,395 18,487 1,124,882 2,915
84,372 - 84,372 -
468,284 8,174 476,458 -
14,835,732 13,401 14,849,133 -
974,524 24,808 999,332 1,871
669,371 849,213 1,518,584 91,000
70,298 222 70,520 -
31,440 - 31,440 -
23,926,369 - 23,926,369 -
1,016,444 - 1,016,444 -
1,778,283 38,030 1,816,313 -
257,025 350,021 607,046 -
2,174,708 - 2,174,708 -
6,562,272 3,673,173 10,135,445 -
172,815,563 52,851,854 225,667,417 87,281
$ 273,551,144 $ 64,888,140 $ 338,439,284 $ 468,134
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

December 31, 2009 - Primary Government
June 30, 2009 - Fairfield Industries, Incorporated

(Continued)

Primary Government

Component Unit

Fairfield
Governmental Business-type Industries,
Activities Activities Total Incorporated
LIABILITIES
Accrued wages and
benefits payable ..........cccccooeeniiiirnennn. $ 2,080,268 $ 73,410 $ 2,153,678 $ 52,013
Matured compensated
absences payable..........ccooeiiiiiieinns 26,332 - 26,332 -
Matured capital leases payable.............. 7,847 554 8,401 -
Matured interest payable...........c..c........ 489 170 659 -
Intergovernmental payable..................... 1,229,383 34,996 1,264,379 -
Accounts payable..........cccccoeiiiiiiiiieenns 3,042,376 165,944 3,208,320 11,067
External party payable...........ccccooveiiene 66,534 - 66,534 -
Contracts payable..........cccoceeiiiieneninen. 520,624 52,184 572,808 -
Retainage payable...... . 145,974 - 145,974 -
Accrued interest payable.............ccco....... 125,007 93,050 218,057 -
Deferred revenue..........ccccovvevivicnnnnne 22,948,517 - 22,948,517 -
Notes payable..........ccccovieiiiiiiiiniinen. - 250,000 250,000 -
Claims payable.........ccccooeiiiiniienieen. 42,868 - 42,868 -
Customer deposits payable - 161,891 161,891 -
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year ..........cccocovevveenns 3,054,182 1,404,536 4,458,718 -
Due within more than one year .......... 21,587,126 21,030,296 42,617,422 -
Total liabilities ........cc.ccccvrviiinnenne. 54,877,527 23,267,031 78,144,558 63,080
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt .........cccoveviiiiniiiec 162,064,907 34,245,459 196,310,366 -
Restricted for:
Capital projects.........ccceevvevveriecncneennnn. 786,465 - 786,465 -
Debt SErviCe........cccovveieireeiieeceeneee 15,526 - 15,526 -
Other purpoSses........ccccevvevveeiiiiceennen. 7,542,057 - 7,542,057 4,032
Real estate assessment..... . 3,139,151 - 3,139,151 -
Road and bridge projects 7,476,522 - 7,476,522 -
Ditch maintenance.............cccoceevveennen. 1,488,980 - 1,488,980 -
Developmental disabilities.................... 11,254,755 - 11,254,755 -
Mental health...........ccooovviiniiiii 3,031,750 - 3,031,750 -
Children services..........ccccceeviiiicinnens 840,444 - 840,444 -
Title administration............ccccceveverennns 581,057 - 581,057 -
Child support enforcement................... 672,656 - 672,656 -
Crossroads center.............. 700,200 - 700,200 -
Bridges and culverts 935,075 - 935,075 -
Older adult services...........cccoevevveinenen. 1,407,536 - 1,407,536 -
Youth Services.........ccovevveiniiiiicicneens 663,264 - 663,264 -
Juvenile reCoVery.......ccooveriieriieeieeeene. 796,169 - 796,169 -
Neighborhood stabilization. 1,522,458 - 1,522,458 -
UNrestricted........ccoovevvveeeneeieecneeeee 13,754,645 7,375,650 21,130,295 401,022
Total net assets ........cccvvvereeneenn. $ 218,673,617 $ 41,621,109 $ 260,294,726 $ 405,054

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009 - Primary Government
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 - Fairfield Industries, Incorporated

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges Grants, Grants, Net
for Contributions, Contributions, (Expense)
Expenses Services and Interest and Interest Revenue
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
General government:
Legislative and executive ............. $ 10,807,064 $ 5,210,389 $ 23,650 $ - $ (5,573,025)
Intergovernmental .................... 1,815,829 - - - (1,815,829)
Judicial ....ocoveeieeiiieiie e 5,964,528 2,070,108 1,500,147 - (2,394,273)
Public safety ......ccccceeeieieiiiieiee 15,850,652 2,003,584 1,383,869 - (12,463,199)
Intergovernmental .............cccccueene 44,396 - 58,200 - 13,804
Public works 10,922,058 1,288,905 5,767,228 1,138,556 (2,727,369)
Health .......ccoooveeieiecccece 23,695,239 1,129,009 13,404,136 - (9,162,094)
Human Services .........c.ccoveerveeveennenn 26,811,254 5,490,535 17,857,183 - (3,463,536)
Urban redevelopment and
houSING ..cveieieiiiee 358,921 4,630 1,818,752 - 1,464,461
Intergovernmental .................... 353,036 - - - (353,036)
Transportation .........c.ccceceeeeeneennne 230,852 27,683 - 116,233 (86,936)
Interest and fiscal charges ............... 960,382 - - - (960,382)
Total governmental activities ....... 97,814,211 17,224,843 41,813,165 1,254,789 (37,521,414)
Business-type activities:
SEWET ..evvieiiee ettt 3,655,152 3,188,624 - 1,088,880 622,352
WaAALET ..ooeeieieeciee e 2,843,308 2,406,358 - 884,404 447,454
Total business-type activities ....... 6,498,460 5,594,982 - 1,973,284 1,069,806
Total Primary Government.................... $ 104,312,671 $ 22,819,825 $ 41,813,165 $ 3,228,073 $ (36,451,608)
Component Unit:
Fairfield Industries, Incorporated........... $ 1,535,274 $ 776,906 $ 10,845 $ - $ (747,523)
Total Component Unit..........cccoecveveenen. $ 1,535,274 $ 776,906 $ 10,845 $ - $ (747,523)
(continued)
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009 - Primary Government

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 - Fairfield Industries, Incorporated

(Continued)

Component Unit

Primary Government Fairfield
Governmental Business-type Industries,
Activities Activities Total Incorporated
Changes in Net Assets:
Net (EXPENSE) FEVENUE .....ccveeveereeeeiieeieeeereerienes $ (37,521,414) $ 1,069,806 (36,451,608) $ (747,523)
General revenues:
Property taxes levied for:
General PUMPOSES ..c.eeververieeieiesieeeeneeseees $ 7,422,296 $ - 7,422,296 $ -
Public works ... 1,208,984 - 1,208,984 -
Health ..o, 9,443,310 - 9,443,310 -
HUMAN SEIVICES ....oovvvviiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeveeeiiees 1,246,085 - 1,246,085 -
Permissive real property transfer taxes
levied for general purposes ..........ccccceeeeneeene 998,710 - 998,710 -
Lodging tax levied for public works ................. 146,067 - 146,067 -
Sales taxes levied for
general PUIPOSES .......ocveereeniieniieeieeieenieenene 11,778,248 - 11,778,248 -
Grants and entitlements not
restricted to specific programs.............cccce... 3,563,293 6,162 3,569,455 -
unrestricted iNterest ........coeeevveevieeiieeiieeiieennn, 930,709 74,584 1,005,293 -
In-kind contributions . - - - 692,211
Other .o 630,064 33,193 663,257 -
Total general revenues..........ccoovveeeiieeeiieeeiieenns 37,367,766 113,939 37,481,705 692,211
Increase (decrease) in
NEL ASSELS...uiiiiiiiiieieecie e (153,648) 1,183,745 1,030,097 (55,312)
Net assets - beginning of year
(restated - NOtE 3).....cceereerreniiieeecree e 218,827,265 40,437,364 259,264,629 460,366
Net assets - end of year...........ccoccovevevinciennnne $ 218,673,617 $ 41,621,109 260,294,726 $ 405,054

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2009

Community Motor
General Services Vehicle
Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents............cccccuvereeeieene s $ 8,998,021 $ 498,249 $ 4,665,325
Cash and cash equivalents in segregated accounts....................... 100,905 - -
Cash and cash equivalents with fiscal agents..........c.cccceevvvevnnnnn. - - -
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents...........occeeeviiieerrie e 316,026 - -
Receivables:
PrOPEIY TAXES ...vvvviieieiieiiiitt et 8,004,552 - -
LOAGING tAXES ...eeieiiiieiiiieiie sttt - - -
Permissive motor vehicle license tax ........cccccvcvveneiiieenicnieeenenn. - - 84,372
SAIES TAXES ..eeiiiitie ittt 3,423,737 - -
ACCOUNES ..ot 360,394 3,253 7,200
INTEITUNG <. 216,734 720,357 -
External party ............. . 66,797 - -
Special aSSESSMENLS .....c.ueiivieiiiiiie ettt - - -
ACCIUEA INTETESE ...t 461,370 - -
LOBNS ..ttt a e re e - - -
INtErgOVEINMENTAL ....c.vviieiiiii e ee e 2,227,579 37,135 2,807,064
Materials and supplies INVENTOIY.........cccoiviiiiieiieiieeee e 116,915 4,335 960,892
Prepaid itemS........ooii e 440,094 122,734 64,471
TOtAl SSELS....eiiiiieitie ettt $ 24,733,124 $ 1,386,063 $ 8,589,324
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNES PAYADIE......ccvvieeieeie e e $ 779,169 $ 682,123 $ 143,273
CONtracts PAYADIE. ......coiiiiiii it 1,700 - 215,941
Accrued wages and benefits payable...........cccccovieiiiiie i 835,032 337,462 185,807
Matured compensated absences payable... 14,567 4,043 6,321
Retainage payable..........occoiiiiiiiiii i - - 36,091
Interfund payable..........ccv o 14,761 11,529 354
External party payable..........ccooiiiiiiiiiie e 498 1,200 -
Intergovernmental payable...........ccccoviiiiiiieeiie e 605,908 159,244 85,971
Deferred rEVENUE........ccuiiiie et 11,414,848 660,607 2,106,398
Matured interest payable...........ccoouviiiieiiiieee e 66 325 -
Matured capital leases payable... 454 7,013 -
Claims Payable.........c.coouiiiiiiiieiee e - - -
Total IabIlItIES.....ccoviirieecee e 13,667,003 1,863,546 2,780,156
FUND BALANCES (Deficit):
Reserved for encumbrances...........c.cccooveieeiiicniiie e 919,891 57,455 782,985
Reserved for unclaimed MONIES...........cocveeiiieiiienie e 316,026 - -
Reserved for loans - - -
Unreserved, undesignated, reported in:
General fFUND ..o 9,830,204 - -
Special revenue fuNds .........cccooiiiiiiiie e - (534,938) 5,026,183
Debt SErvice fuNdS .........coviiiieiee e - - -
Capital projects fuNdS .........ccoceeiiieriiiiie s - - -
Total fund balances (defiCit) .......cccooveeeviiieeiiee e, 11,066,121 (477,483) 5,809,168
Total liabilities and fund balances ...........ccccciiviiiiieniiiieeee $ 24,733,124 $ 1,386,063 $ 8,589,324

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Alcohol, Drug General

Developmental Addiction, and Obligation Bond Nonmajor
Disabilities Mental Health Retirement Governmental
Fund Board Fund Fund Funds Totals
$ 10,199,644 $ 1,003,394 $ 339,296 $ 17,107,528 $ 42,811,457
- - 256 6,846 108,007
129,931 - - - 129,931
- - - - 316,026
7,925,796 2,126,862 178,400 5,690,759 23,926,369
- - - 31,440 31,440
- - - - 84,372
- - - - 3,423,737
71,331 103,475 1,750 121,968 669,371
- - - 11,944 949,035
- 3,501 - - 70,298
- - - 1,778,283 1,778,283
- - - 6,914 468,284
- - - 1,016,444 1,016,444
1,569,959 2,617,121 - 5,576,874 14,835,732
21,912 - - 2,341 1,106,395
74,806 10,976 - 261,443 974,524
$ 19,993,379 $ 5,865,329 $ 519,702 $ 31,612,784 $ 92,699,705
$ 270,194 $ 630,942 $ - $ 536,675 $ 3,042,376
- - - 302,983 520,624
344,883 30,828 - 346,256 2,080,268
- - - 1,401 26,332
- - - 109,883 145,974
662 - - 930,823 958,129
- 53,898 - 10,938 66,534
132,922 25,363 - 219,975 1,229,383
9,303,014 3,832,179 178,400 11,660,589 39,156,035
- - - 98 489
- - - 380 7,847
42,868 - - - 42,868
10,094,543 4,573,210 178,400 14,120,001 47,276,859
2,132,480 4,230 - 975,978 4,873,019
- - - - 316,026
- - - 824,393 824,393
R - - - 9,830,204
7,766,356 1,287,889 - 14,325,385 27,870,875
- - 341,302 194,800 536,102
- - - 1,172,227 1,172,227
9,898,836 1,292,119 341,302 17,492,783 45,422,846
$ 19,993,379 $ 5,865,329 $ 519,702 $ 31,612,784 $ 92,699,705
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Fairfield County, Ohio

RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES TO

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

December 31, 2009

Total fund balances for governmental fuNdS..........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiie e
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
nets assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the fUNAS. ...

Investment in joint venture in the governmental activities is not a financial resource
and therefore is not reported in the fuNdS. ..o

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and therefore are deferred in the funds.

PIOPEITY TAXES ...ttt e et e ek et rab e e eab e e et n e e e aab e e naneeennee 1,625,479
SIS TAXES ..t e 1,352,851
CRArgeSs fOr SEIVICES ....uviiiiiiiiie ettt ettt b e st e it e et e e s abe e sbe e sabeenaeenee 309,570
LIiCENSES QNG PEIMILS .. .eiiuiieiiiiiie ettt ettt ettt ettt st e e be e abeesbe e snbe e saeesaee s 310
Fines and fOrfEItUrES ..........cooiiiiiiiiii e 260,677
REIMBUISEMENTS ...t s 18,052
RENL < e 30
SPECIAI ASSESSMENLS ....eeiiiiiitieitie ettt et e ettt et e e abeesabeesbeeabeesbeeabeesbneanbeeeaee e 1,778,283
ACCTUET INTEIESE ...ttt e st 157,389
INTEIGOVEINMENTAL ....citiiiiiiiie ettt ettt sttt et e e be e sbe e sbeeenbeennee e 10,704,877

Deferred charges represent unamortized issuance costs which do not provide

current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. ...............c..o....

Long-term liabilities and accrued interest are not due and payable in the current

period and therefore are not reported in the funds:
Special assessment bonds payable and unamortized premium ...........cccceeeeeiienieennnn (1,788,039)
General obligation bonds payable and unamortized premium and discount ................... (15,058,562)
Refunding bonds payable and unamortized premium and
deferred amount 0N refUNding ........coc.eoiiiiiiiiie s (1,520,487)

Long-term bond anticipation notes and loans payable ............cccccoiiiiiiiiienie e (2,074,528)
Accrued interest payable .............. (125,007)
Compensated absences payable (3,895,399)
Intergovernmental PAYADIE ...........oiiiiiiiii e (8,277)
Capital leases payable (296,016)

$ 45,422,846

179,377,835

2,174,708

16,207,518

257,025

(24,766,315)

Net assets of governmental aCtiVities .........ccccoiiiiiiiiieiic e

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

REVENUES

PrOPEIY TAXES. it
Permissive real property transfer taxes.........ccoccoeeviiieeeniiieesiiieeeens
(oo o [T gTo IR r= (= SRR
SAIES TAXES. ..ttt ettt
Charges fOr SEIVICES. ......cuuiiiiiiieeiieeee et
Licenses and PermitS..........cccueeeiierieiiiieeeiiiee et
Permissive motor vehicle license tax..
Fines and forfeitures..
Intergovernmental.....
Special assessments....
Interest........cccoveevnnes

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Legislative and eXeCULIVE ...........cccovvveiiiiniiiiccee e
N[ To 1o - | PP PUPPSRNS
PUDBIIC SAEY ..o
PUBIIC WOTKS ..ottt
HEAIN .o
HUMAN SEIVICES ..oiiiiiiieeiiieee ettt e et nre e e envee e

INtErgovernMENtal..........cooiiiiiiieiic e
(0= 1o r= I 010 11 - 1Y/ S SUSSTRR
Debt service:
Principal retiremMent .........ooeiviiie i
Interest and fiscal Charges ...........cccco i
Total eXPENItUIES.......vee e

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..........cccoocveeeviveeennnns

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Sale of capital ASSELS......cuuveiiiiie e

Inception of capital [EaSE.........cocueiiiiiiiieiiie e

LOANS FECERIVEM. ... .eeiiiiiiii et
Current refunding bond anticipation note issued..............ccccccevueeene
Current refunding of bond anticipation note............c.ccccecveriieriiennen.
TraNSTEIS IN.cc.viiiiiii e

TrANSTEIS OUL.....eiiiiiiiiec e
Total other financing SOUrCeS (USES)........eeeiuirrirniiieeiiieeenieee e

Net change in fund balanCes..........ccccvveiiiiie v

Fund balances (deficit) - beginning of year............cccccevveveeiiiee e,

Fund balances (deficit) - end of year

Community Motor
General Services Vehicle
Fund Fund Fund
$ 7,272,474 - R
998,710 - -
11,786,428 - R
4,345,528 4,792,375 39,051
32,922 - -
- - 1,083,036
112,026 30,000 31,200
4,108,125 10,864,690 5,225,147
897,199 - -
157,495 - -
207,100 256,877 21,218
29,918,007 15,943,942 6,399,652
8,822,077 - R
3,986,864 - R
13,038,149 - R
- - 6,048,827
673,297 - R
780,991 14,454,616 -
145,874 - R
58,686 - -
1,815,829 - -
9,993 54,307 -
2,428 7,408 R
29,334,188 14,516,331 6,048,827
583,819 1,427,611 350,825
31,612 244 -
12,828 - -
20,000 418,074 287,248
(5,287,051) - (427,080)
(5,222,611) 418,318 (139,832)
(4,638,792) 1,845,929 210,993
15,704,913 (2,323,412) 5,598,175
$ 11,066,121 (477,483) 5,809,168

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Alcohol, Drug

General

Developmental Addiction, and Obligation Bond Nonmajor
Disabilities Mental Health Retirement Governmental

Fund Board Fund Fund Funds Totals
$ 7,148,740 $ 1,922,575 $ 178,400 $ 2,387,419 18,909,608
- - - - 998,710
- - - 146,067 146,067
- - - - 11,786,428
522,885 63,030 - 4,669,975 14,432,844
- - - 438,400 471,322
- - - - 1,083,036
- - - 105,967 279,193
5,609,739 7,533,951 - 11,522,996 44,864,648
- - - 465,379 465,379
- - - 129,327 1,026,526
24,163 17,318 344,785 22,930 566,691
22,739 30,000 - 38,897 91,636
26,100 2,939 1,168 113,537 628,939
13,354,366 9,569,813 524,353 20,040,894 95,751,027
- - - 1,454,666 10,276,743
- - - 1,889,719 5,876,583
- - - 2,574,073 15,612,222
- - - 1,370,136 7,418,963
11,782,665 10,441,819 - 712,583 23,610,364
- - - 11,277,270 26,512,877
- - - 358,921 358,921
- - - - 145,874
- - - - 58,686
- - - 397,432 2,213,261
- - - 3,165,621 3,165,621
- - 1,085,000 429,087 1,578,387
- - 849,573 101,270 960,679
11,782,665 10,441,819 1,934,573 23,730,778 97,789,181
1,571,701 (872,006) (1,410,220) (3,689,884) (2,038,154)
3,982 - - 500 36,338
- - - - 12,828
- - - 684,528 684,528
- - 1,390,000 - 1,390,000
- - (1,390,000) - (1,390,000)
- - 1,386,293 4,372,402 6,484,017
(134,627) - (88,188) (547,071) (6,484,017)
(130,645) - 1,298,105 4,510,359 733,694
1,441,056 (872,006) (112,115) 820,475 (1,304,460)
8,457,780 2,164,125 453,417 16,672,308 46,727,306
$ 9,898,836 $ 1,292,119 $ 341,302 $ 17,492,783 45,422,846
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Fairfield County, Ohio
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds..........cccccoevviveiiiee e, $ (1,304,460)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current period:

Capital aSSet AUdItIONS ..........viiiiiiiie e 5,854,149
Capital CONHDULIONS .....c..eiiiiiiie e 20,922
CUrrent year dePreCIAtION ...........ocueieeiiiieeiiee ettt et e et et e e sabe e e s sbaeaeenibeeeees (7,273,235) (1,398,164)

Governmental funds only report the disposal of assets to the extent proceeds
are received from the sale. In the statement of activities, a gain or loss is
reported for each disposal. This is the amount of the proceeds, and the loss
on disposal of assets:
Proceeds from sale of capital @SSetS .........cccciiiiiiiiiiiiiic (36,338)

Loss on disposal of capital assets (214,648) (250,986)
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds:
PrOPEITY TAXES . ..ieiieiiiii ettt 411,067
SAIES TAXES ..ttt et (8,180)
Charges fOr SEIVICES .....ccuuiiiiiiitii ettt ettt sane b s 241,581
LiCeNSES aNd PEIMILS ......oiiiiiiiieiiie et 169
Fines and forfeitures .... 35,512
INEEIrGOVEINMENTAL ....coiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e sbe e e e snteeeeanes 1,545,775
SPECIAlI ASSESSIMENES .....ciiiiiiiieiie ettt sttt ettt e b e saeeeeee (350,914)
L= () SO PRSP 33,371
L= 0| PP P P PP UPPRPPPRPRON 30
(@4 T PRSP SR PSR 1,125 1,909,536
Governmental funds had a investment in joint venture which showed a decrease
for the current year. The decrease in joint venture is shown as an expense
on the statement Of ACHVILIES ........cc.oiiiiiiiiiii e (267,176)
Repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets:
Special assessment bonds ... 285,000
General Obligation BONAS .........c.c.iiiiiiiii e 890,000
Current refunding DONAS .......oooiiiiiiiie e 195,000
Long-term bond anticipation notes payable ...........cccceiiiiiieniini e 1,390,000
[0 To] 1 c= LN 1= = YT PRSPPI 208,387 $ 2,968,387
(continued)
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Fairfield County, Ohio

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, (Continued)
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009
Interest is reported as an expenditure when due in the governmental funds,
but is accrued on outstanding debt on the statement of activities. Premiums
and discounts are reported as revenues and expenditures when the debt is
first issued; however, these amounts are deferred and amortized on the
statement of activities.:
Accrued interest payable ....... $ (2,767)
AMOrtization Of ISSUANCE COSES .......ueiiiiiiiiiiiiieitie et (21,131)
Amortization on premium of special assessment bonds ............cccceiviiiiiiiieenninen. 3,535
Amortization on premium of general obligation bonds .............cccooeiiiiiiiiiniieneee 21,760
Amortization on premium of current refunding bonds ............ccccooviiiiiiiiniiees 3,658
Amortization on discount of general obligation bonds ............cccceeviiiiiiiniiiiienee (456) 4,599
Inception of capital leases are reported as other financing sources in the
governmental funds, but the inception increases long-term liabilities on the
StatemMENt Of ACHIVILIES .......iiiuiiiiie i (12,828)
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds:
Intergovernmental PayabIle ............cocveiiiiiiiiii e 1,819
Compensated absences payable ... 274,455 276,274
Long-term debt proceeds are other financing sources in the governmental funds,
but the issuance increases the long-term liabilities on the statement of activities.
Long-term 10ans Payable ............cooiiiiiiioii e (684,528)
Long-term bond anticipation notes payable ............cccceviiiiiiiniiiiie e (1,390,000) (2,074,528)
The difference between the net carrying amount of the refunded debt and the
acquisition price is allocated over the life of the outstanding debt on the
Statement Of ACHVILIES ........ooiiiiiiiiii e (4,302)
$

Change in net assets of governmental activitieS........ccoccveviiiiieniiiee e

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE — BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

REVENUES

Property taxes.........uvevieveeiiiiieiee e
Permissive real property transfer taxes...........cccccuee..
SAlES TAXES. ..t
Charges for SErVICES.......cccveiviieeieiee e
Licenses and permits...........cccceerueeeeiiieeesniieee e
Fines and forfeitures...........c.ccocvvieiininienicenee
IntergovernmMental...........ccoevrereeieneene e
Interest............c.....

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Legislative and eXecutive ...........cccoccveeeeriineennnes
JUAiCIAl ..o
Public safety ...
Health ..o

Total expenditures.........coccveiiiiiieeiiieee e
Excess of revenues under expenditures ...................
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Sale of capital aSSets.......cccoevverieriiiieeee e
AdVANCES IN...oiiiiiiice e
AdVANCES OUL......coiiiiiiiiiic e
Operating transfers iN.........cccccovvieeiiceneceee
Operating transfers Out...........ccoocveeiiiic e
Total other financing sources (USEeS)..........ccocveerueenne

Net change in fund balance ...............

Fund balance - beginning of year ..........
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.....
Fund balance - end of year .........ccccocveviiiiieiiecnnnn.

Variance

with Final

Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 6,708,000 $ 6,708,000 $ 7,310,753 $ 602,753
900,000 900,000 998,936 98,936
10,900,000 10,900,000 11,506,840 606,840
3,523,860 3,437,344 4,313,417 876,073
40,000 40,000 32,847 (7,153)
140,715 140,715 111,410 (29,305)
3,715,074 3,521,860 4,109,778 587,918
1,459,120 1,459,120 1,099,587 (359,533)
100,000 100,000 160,457 60,457
25,000 25,000 289,636 264,636
27,511,769 27,232,039 29,933,661 2,701,622
10,167,203 10,027,166 9,411,244 615,922
4,613,835 4,412,067 4,210,969 201,098
14,436,550 14,172,188 13,927,162 245,026
919,858 723,232 718,508 4,724
1,227,265 971,391 820,279 151,112
199,436 163,724 118,908 44,816
3,117,860 1,998,435 1,897,635 100,800
34,682,007 32,468,203 31,104,705 1,363,498
(7,170,238) (5,236,164) (1,171,044) 4,065,120
- - 9,838 9,838
- - 1,438,697 1,438,697
- - (1,544,468) (1,544,468)
- - 20,000 20,000
(5,702,120) (5,314,236) (5,287,051) 27,185
(5,702,120) (5,314,236) (5,362,984) (48,748)
(12,872,358) (10,550,400) (6,534,028) 4,016,372
11,816,835 11,816,835 11,816,835 -
2,110,857 2,110,857 2,110,857 -

$ 1,055,334 $ 3,377,292 $ 7,393,664

$ 4,016,372

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE — BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

COMMUNITY SERVICES FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

REVENUES
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Human services:
Community services:
Personal Services .........ccocveieniieiiieenieiinnnn
Fringe benefits ...,
Materials and supplies ........c.cccooeeniieneennnnn.
Contractual services

Total expenditures..........ccovveieeiiieeiiee e
Excess of revenues under expenditures....................

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets....
AAVANCES 1N
AdVANCES OUL.....ociiiiiiiiiiiiciicce e
Operating transfers iN.........c.cccooeeiieeiieiiee e

Total other financing sources (USES)..........cccvverveenee.
Net change in fund balance.............ccccooeiiiiiiciinee
Fund balance - beginning of year...........cccccceevieeennen
Prior year encumbrances appropriated......................

Fund balance - end of year.........cccccoeveieiiiciiiieeenne

Variance

with Final

Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 3,457,000 $ 4,584,000 $ 4,583,957 $ 43)
- 29,624 30,000 376
14,000,000 9,670,968 9,746,997 76,029
10,000 224,936 235,891 10,955
17,467,000 14,509,528 14,596,845 87,317
6,632,000 5,304,058 5,303,164 894
2,799,602 2,630,901 2,630,901 -
341,500 291,555 291,393 162
7,649,210 7,001,717 7,001,667 50
120,000 36,833 35,947 886
10,000 - - -
17,552,312 15,265,064 15,263,072 1,992
(85,312) (755,536) (666,227) 89,309
- - 244 244
- - 340,000 340,000
- - (340,000) (340,000)
- 418,000 418,074 74
- 418,000 418,318 318
(85,312) (337,536) (247,909) 89,627
403,792 403,792 403,792 -
90,210 90,210 90,210 -
$ 408,690 $ 156,466 $ 246,093 $ 89,627

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE — BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

MOTOR VEHICLE FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Charges for SEIVICES........ovveviiiieieee e $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 35,997 $ (14,003)
Permissive motor vehicle license tax 1,070,000 1,070,000 1,085,196 15,196
Fines and forfeitures. ........ccccovvee e 40,000 40,000 31,234 (8,766)
Intergovernmental...........ccccoveevienineeneee e 5,415,544 5,415,544 5,355,427 (60,117)
Oher e - - 21,864 21,864
Total reVENUES.......cceeiiieeeeecee e 6,575,544 6,575,544 6,529,718 (45,826)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public works:
Motor vehicle:
Personal Services ..........ccoccvvievviiniienicnnnen, 2,637,750 2,714,134 2,576,764 137,370
Fringe benefits ... 1,121,300 1,220,406 1,219,961 445
Materials and supplies 541,735 1,771,425 1,648,290 123,135
Contractual ServiCes ..........ccovvverveievreennens 789,099 1,063,581 905,479 158,102
Capital OULIAY .......ccoereerieeiieeee e 141,542 1,272,359 1,193,063 79,296
OLNEr ..o 1,000 4,837 4,712 125
Total eXpenditures..........covevieienieneee e 5,232,426 8,046,742 7,548,269 498,473
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.......... 1,343,118 (1,471,198) (1,018,551) 452,647
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers iN.........c.cccooeeiieeieieeee e 289,000 289,000 287,248 (1,752)
Operating transfers out............cccoccevvieiiicniieneenen, (246,840) (427,275) (427,080) 195
Total other financing sources (USEeS)..........ccceevveennne. 42,160 (138,275) (139,832) (1,557)
Net change in fund balance.............c.cccccovviiiiiiines 1,385,278 (1,609,473) (1,158,383) 451,090
Fund balance - beginning of year...........ccccccovvvenneen. 4,304,367 4,304,367 4,304,367 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated...................... 418,676 418,676 418,676 -
Fund balance - end of year............ccccoovevieeeieecieenen. $ 6,108,321 $ 3,113,570 $ 3,564,660 $ 451,090

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE — BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

REVENUES

Property taxXxes.........uvvvveiiiiiiiiieeee e

Charges for services

Intergovernmental...........c.occoeeeieeeseeeeeeens

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Health:
Board of developmental disabilities:
Personal services .........ccoceveeneeennne.

Fringe benefits .......
Materials and supplies

Contractual Services .........ccoccveeeeennn.

Total expenditures..........coccevveeiieenieeneeeninenn
Excess of revenues under expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets..........ccovevieiiiiiiiennenne
Operating transfers out............cccocceevieereeenee.

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance ..............ccccceee.
Fund balance - beginning of year
Prior year encumbrances appropriated

Fund balance - end of year ..........ccccocoiiiiiienniieene

Variance

with Final

Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 6,808,200 $ 6,732,600 $ 7,188,996 $ 456,396
547,100 547,100 527,049 (20,051)
5,327,893 4,537,068 5,779,868 1,242,800
- - 24,163 24,163
- - 22,739 22,739
6,360 6,360 23,822 17,462
12,689,553 11,823,128 13,566,637 1,743,509
5,064,943 5,049,543 4,738,262 311,281
2,416,234 2,416,234 2,213,490 202,744
654,059 590,057 432,026 158,031
5,627,729 5,099,857 4,662,452 437,405
451,263 548,877 389,757 159,120
2,303,921 2,682,811 2,103,920 578,891
16,418,149 16,387,379 14,539,907 1,847,472
(3,728,596) (4,564,251) (973,270) 3,590,981
- - 3,982 3,982
(271,307) (134,627) (134,627) -
(271,307) (134,627) (130,645) 3,982
(3,999,903) (4,698,878) (1,103,915) 3,594,963
7,745,705 7,745,705 7,745,705 -
946,115 946,115 946,115 -
$ 4,691,917 $ 3,992,942 $ 7,587,905 $ 3,594,963

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE — BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

ALCOHOL, DRUG ADDICTION, AND MENTAL HEALTH BOARD FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Property taXes........ccovverrieieiieniiiiese e $ 2,094,586 $ 1,830,063 $ 1,932,660 $ 102,597
Charges for SErVICeS.........ccoovvivieiiiii e 172,070 172,070 62,975 (109,095)
Intergovernmental............coooeeeeiiiiieeniee e 7,305,667 7,008,428 7,310,103 301,675
RENL....coi e 7,200 7,200 16,922 9,722
DONALIONS.......viiiiieiic e - - 30,000 30,000
Oher . - - 45,359 45,359
TOtal FEVENUES........oiiiiiiiierieeic e 9,579,523 9,017,761 9,398,019 380,258
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Health:
Alcohol, drug addiction, and
mental health board:
Personal services 459,645 481,237 481,237 -
Fringe benefits ..o, 157,509 162,679 162,679 -
Materials and supplies ........c.cccoceveeririieennnn. 33,431 28,895 28,895 -
Contractual SErviCes ..........ccovvviereeieereennens 9,512,060 9,945,522 9,945,522 -
Capital outlay ........coceevviiiiiiiicicee 15,787 9,357 9,357 -
Total expenditures..........coovvereeiiieiiee e 10,178,432 10,627,690 10,627,690 -
Net change in fund balance..............ccccceiciiniinene (598,909) (1,609,929) (1,229,671) 380,258
Fund balance - beginning of year...........cccccccovveeinenn. 1,245,507 1,245,507 1,245,507 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated...................... 535,396 535,396 535,396 -
Fund balance - end of year.........cc.cccoevevvveervirnennnn, $ 1,181,994 $ 170,974 $ 551,232 $ 380,258

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

December 31, 2009

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water

Fund Fund Totals
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.............ccccooveeriiieiiieenns $ 3,912,362 2,565,424 6,477,786
Cash and cash equivalents

in segregated acCouNts ..........cocceeevieeeiieeiiieee e 298,090 213,896 511,986
Receivables:

Accounts .. 540,121 309,092 849,213

INEErfUNG ..o 6,025 4,535 10,560

EXternal party .......cocceeieeeiiiee e 222 - 222

Special aSSeSSMENTS .......ccovvviiiiiiiiiiieniie e 23,144 14,886 38,030

Accrued iNterest .........cocoeiieiieiii i 5,815 2,359 8,174

Intergovernmental ............cccocceeiiiieniie e 3,601 9,800 13,401
Materials and supplies inventory...........cccccceeveennnen. 6,925 11,562 18,487
Prepaid items........c.cooiiiiiiieee e 9,087 15,721 24,808
Total current assets........ccccceeieerieiiiiieiiese e 4,805,392 3,147,275 7,952,667
Noncurrent assets:

Deferred charges..........cccooceiiiieiiiic e 194,870 155,151 350,021
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ...........cccccovveeiiieennns 161,891 - 161,891
Capital assets not being depreciated 1,210,182 2,362,991 3,573,173
Capital assets being depreciated (net

of accumulated depreciation) ..........ccceeveeeeniienennn. 28,879,109 23,972,745 52,851,854
Total noncurrent assets........cooevveeieieenieiie e 30,446,052 26,490,887 56,936,939
TOtal @SSELS....iveiiieiieieie e $ 35,251,444 29,638,162 64,889,606

(continued)
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

December 31, 2009

(Continued)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water
Fund Fund Totals

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable ... $ 91,997 $ 73,947 $ 165,944
Contracts payable ...........cccevieiieennnen. 50,297 1,887 52,184
Accrued wages and benefits payable ....................... 39,054 34,356 73,410
Interfund payable ... 733 733 1,466
Matured capital leases payable ... 277 277 554
Matured interest payable ............ccooeeiiiiiniiennieennes 85 85 170
Intergovernmental payable ..........cccceviieiiieeiiieenne. 23,272 11,724 34,996
Accrued interest payable ..., 59,191 33,859 93,050
Current portion of:

Compensated absences payable ..........cccccoeeene 33,333 24,484 57,817

Notes payable .........cccoeeiiiiiiieii e 250,000 - 250,000

Capital [8aSEeS ......c.eeeiieieiiieiiee e 3,466 3,466 6,932

EPA loans payable ..........ccccooviiiiiiiiiiiie e 102,648 - 102,648

OPWC loans payable ..........cccoeiniiiiiiiiiiieeien 2,139 - 2,139

General obligation bonds payable .. 640,000 595,000 1,235,000
Total current liabilities ............occevveniiniiiiiie, 1,296,492 779,818 2,076,310
Long-term liabilities

(net of current portion):

Customer deposits payable from
restricted assets .......... 161,891 - 161,891
Compensated abSENCeS .........occceevuieeiieiiiiie s 58,566 38,860 97,426
Notes payable ... 250,000 - 250,000
Capital [8aSEeS ......c.eeeiiieiiiieiiee e 9,104 9,104 18,208
EPA loans payable ...........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiie e 771,318 - 771,318
OPWC loans payable .........cccocciiiiiiiiiiniieeeee e, 57,764 - 57,764
General obligation bonds payable ..............ccccoceeenie 11,173,419 8,662,161 19,835,580
Total long-term liabilities ...........ccccviiiiiiiiieee 12,482,062 8,710,125 21,192,187
Total liabilities ..........ccccereiieireee e 13,778,554 9,489,943 23,268,497
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of

related debt .... 17,024,303 17,221,156 34,245,459
UNrestricted........oooieieiiieeiee e 4,448,587 2,927,063 7,375,650
Total NEt ASSELS ...ccveveieeieciicie e $ 21,472,890 $ 20,148,219 41,621,109

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for SEIVICES ......ccviveriiieriee e $

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Personal SEIVICES ........cccocvvviiieiiiie e
Fringe benefits ..........

Contractual SEIVICES ........ccooveviriiiiieiiee e
Materials and SUPPlES ........ccoocieiiiiiiie e
Other operating EXPENSES .......ccceeiiieriieeriienie e
DePreciation ...........coueieiiiie e

Total operating eXPENSES ........ccoveerriereeiiieeniee e

Operating INCOME .......coiiiiiieiiiiie et

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

INErest INCOME .......ccciviiiiii i
Intergovernmental .
Loss on disposal of capital assets ........ccccceeeviieeeiiienenne
Interest and fiscal charges .........c.cccooivieiiieniic s
Other non-operating reVENUES .........cccocueeeeaiieeeeiiiee e

Total non-operating revenues (EXPENSES) ........ccocveereeeenne

Loss before capital contributions ..........cccccceeeiiieeiiiienene

Capital contributions ...........ccooiieiiiiiiece e

Change in Net ASSELS ......cccueiiiiiiiiiiiiee e

Net assets - beginning of year

Net assets - end of year ........cccceeviiiiiiiiiienieee e $

Sewer Water
Fund Fund Totals
3,188,624 $ 2,406,358 $ 5,594,982
520,267 439,978 960,245
169,850 151,559 321,409
1,364,041 539,547 1,903,588
146,590 430,035 576,625
3,473 - 3,473
837,095 823,860 1,660,955
3,041,316 2,384,979 5,426,295
147,308 21,379 168,687
57,982 16,602 74,584
6,162 - 6,162
(5,486) (7,024) (12,510)
(608,350) (451,305) (1,059,655)
1,592 31,601 33,193
(548,100) (410,126) (958,226)
(400,792) (388,747) (789,539)
1,088,880 884,404 1,973,284
688,088 495,657 1,183,745
20,784,802 19,652,562 40,437,364
21,472,890 $ 20,148,219 $ 41,621,109

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from CUSIOMErS.........ccovrveiinieiieieneens
Cash payments for employee services

and benefits ........ccooivieiiiic e
Cash payments for goods and services.............ccceeevueuen.
Other operating expenses.........
Other non-operating revenues
Customer deposits received............coceevevenieenieeneennnn.
Customer deposits returned...........ccceeeveeeeiiiieeeiiieeennns
Net cash provided by operating activities.................c......

Cash flows from noncapital
financing activities
Intergovernmental...........cccoovveeiiieriiece e

Cash flows from capital and

related financing activities
TaP-IN fEES ..ot
Sale of capital aSSetS......cueveiiiiieiiiiie e
Special aSSESSMENLS .....cccveeiiiiiiiiiiie e
Acquisition of capital assets...........ccccerriieiiiiiiieiiiieeee
Proceeds from sale of Notes...........cccooevveiiiiiiciiies
Principal paid on capital leases payable............cc.ccc.......
Principal paid on EPA refunding loan .
Principal paid on OPWC loan...........ccoceiiiiieeiiiieeininenn.
Principal paid on general obligation bonds......................
Interest paid on capital leases payable ..........c.cccceeueeeen.
Interest paid on EPA refunding loan...........ccccooeeviiennns
Interest paid on general obligation bonds
Net cash used for capital and

related financing activities ............cccooceiiiiii e

Cash flows from investing activities
INEIrESt.. ..ot

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents....................
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year...............

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year.............cccccc....

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water
Fund Fund Totals
3,261,847 $ 2,431,474 $ 5,693,321
(734,794) (620,522) (1,355,316)
(1,610,714) (946,323) (2,557,037)
(1,973) - (1,973)
1,592 27,481 29,073
15,311 - 15,311
(13,000) - (13,000)
918,269 892,110 1,810,379
7,946 1,784 9,730
78,832 105,312 184,144
1,072 1,072 2,144
4,113 3,119 7,232
(672,086) (125,558) (797,644)
500,000 - 500,000
(8,677) (8,677) (17,354)
(199,971) - (199,971)
(4,279) - (4,279)
(625,000) (580,000) (1,205,000)
(992) (992) (1,984)
(36,263) - (36,263)
(544,457) (428,827) (973,284)
(1,507,708) (1,034,551) (2,542,259)
59,883 18,334 78,217
(521,610) (122,323) (643,933)
4,893,953 2,901,643 7,795,596
4,372,343 $ 2,779,320 $ 7,151,663
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water
Fund Fund Totals
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating iNCOME .......cocverieeiereeeeee e ee e $ 147,308 $ 21,379 $ 168,687
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Other non-operating reVeNUES ..........ccoovueeeeniieeeeninne. 1,592 27,481 29,073
Depreciation eXPENSE .........ccceerveeiieeneesiiee e sneenans 837,095 823,860 1,660,955
(Increases) decreases in assets:
Accounts receivable ............ccooeveiiinnc s 51,686 31,918 83,604
Intergovernmental receivable .............cccccovieininen. 23,860 4,717) 19,143
Interfund receivable ..........cccooeiiiiiiiii e (2,101) (2,085) (4,186)
External party receivable ...........cccccooiiiiiiiiiiinnns (222) - (222)
Materials and supplies inventory ..........cc.cccoeeeeeeeen. (3,333) (617) (3,950)
Prepaids (3,696) (11,701) (15,397)
Increases (decreases) in liabilities:
Accounts payable ..........ccooiiiiiinine (95,169) 28,185 (66,984)
Contracts payable ..o, (6,058) - (6,058)
Accrued wages and benefits payable ..................... 3,162 5,865 9,027
Compensated absences payable .. . (9,580) (22,078) (31,658)
Interfund payable ... 130 130 260
Intergovernmental payable .............ccccooviiieiiiinennns (3,892) (5,510) (9,402)
Customer depoSItS .......coccvveeiriieieiiiie e (22,513) - (22,513)
Net cash provided by operating activities.............c..c....... $ 918,269 $ 892,110 $ 1,810,379

Noncash capital financing activities:

Developers contributed $1,014,808 and $697,471 in the form of sewer lines and water lines, respectively, during 2009.
The City of Pickerington contributed $81,621 in the form of water line connections during 2009.
During 2009, the water and sewer funds entered into capital leases for $12,654 each.

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS

December 31, 2009

ASSETS
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENES ...........ocoiiiiiiiiiiie e $ 7,748,245
Cash and cash equivalents in segregated acCoUNts ..........cc.ceevveeieiiieeiiieennns 1,506,264
Receivables:
PrOPEITY TAXES ....eveiieiiiiee ittt 126,719,879
Lodging taxes .... 45,492
ACCOUNTS ...ttt 2,457,384
SPECIal ASSESSMENLS ....ciiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt ibee e 3,999,945
INtErgOVEINMENTAL ......eiiiiiiiii et 12,030,674
Tax increment financing receivable ... 3,205,414
External party receivable 66,534
TOUAl ASSELS ...ttt ettt b ettt sttt enean $ 157,779,831
LIABILITIES
External party payable ...........cooeiiiiiiiiie e $ 70,520
Intergovernmental Payable ... 151,333,716
DUE 0 OTNETS ..o 6,375,595
TOtaAl ADIILIES ....veveeieieeeieete ettt $ 157,779,831

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

(Unaudited)

Introduction

This section of Fairfield County’s (the County) annual financial report presents management’s discussion
and analysis of the County’s financial performance during the year ended December 31, 2008. The
management’s discussion and analysis section should be read in conjunction with the preceding letter of
transmittal and the County’s financial statements, which follow.

Financial Highlights

Key financial highlights for 2008 are as follows:

®= The assets of Fairfield County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the year ended December 31, 2008,
by $257,903,598 (net assets). Of this amount, $23,335,062 was the unrestricted net assets portion which
represents the amount that can be used at the discretion of the County Commissioners.

=  The County’s total net assets decreased by 1.2 percent, or $3,197,637 from the total net assets at the
beginning of the year 2008.

= At the end of the current year, the County’s governmental activities reported total net assets of
$217,466,234 a decrease of $4,037,376 from the prior year. Of this amount, $15,655,478 is unrestricted.

= At the end of the current year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $13,860,629, which
represents a 5.6 percent decrease from the prior year, and represents 47.4 percent of total General Fund
expenditures.

= Fairfield County’s total long-term debt decreased by $2,553,660 or 5.4 percent, during the current year.
Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of management’s discussion and analysis, basic financial statements, including the
accompanying notes to the basic financial statements, and combining statements for the nonmajor
governmental funds, and the fiduciary funds. The basic financial statements are composed of the
government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements.

Figure 1 illustrates how the required parts of this annual report are arranged and relate to one another. In

addition to these required elements, as explained later, this report includes an optional section that contains
combining statements that provide details about the County’s nhonmajor governmental funds.
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Figure 1
Required Components of
Fairfield County’s Annual Financial Report

Management's Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements

Notes to the
Basic Financial
Statements

Government-wide Fund
Financial Financial
Statements Statements

SUMMARY LEVEL < | —

The government-wide financial statements provide financial information about the County as a whole,
including its component unit.

DETAIL LEVEL

The fund financial statements focus on the County’s operations in more detail than the government-wide
financial statements. The financial statements presented for governmental funds report on the County’s
general government services. Proprietary fund statements report on the activities that the County operates
like private-sector businesses. Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial
relationships in which the County acts solely as a trustee or agent, for the benefit of others outside the
government to whom the resources belong.

The basic financial statements section also includes Notes to the Basic Financial Statements that more fully
explain the information in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Figure 2 below summarizes the major features of the County’s statements.

Figure 2
Major Features of Fairfield County’s Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide

Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds
Scope Entire County The activities of the Activities the County Instances in which the
government (except County that are not operates similar to County is the trustee or
fiduciary funds) and proprietary or fiduciary, private businesses, agent for someone
the County’s such as public safety, such as the sewer and else’s resources
component units public works, health, water operations and
human services, and the Self-Funded Health
general government Insurance Fund
Required o Statement of Net e Balance Sheet e Statement of Fund Net o Statement of Fiduciary
financial Assets e Statement of Assets Assets and Liabilities
statements e Statement of Revenues, e Statement of
Activities Expenditures, and Revenues, Expenses,

Changes in Fund
Balances

and Changes in Fund
Net Assets

e Statement of Cash
Flows
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Figure 2 (continued)
Major Features of the Fairfield County’s Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide

Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds

Accounting Accrual accounting Modified accrual Accrual accounting and Accrual accounting and
basis and and economic accounting and current economic resources economic resources
measurement resources focus financial resources focus focus
focus focus
Type of All assets and Only assets expected to All assets and liabilities, All assets and liabilities,
asset/liability liabilities, both be used up and liabi- both financial and both financial and
information financial and capital, lities that come due capital, and short-term capital, and short-term

and short-term and during the year or soon and long-term and long-term

long-term thereafter; no capital

assets included

Type of All revenues and Revenues for which All revenues and Not applicable because
inflow/outflow expenses during the cash is received during expenses during the the County only has
information year, regardless of or soon after the end of year, regardless of agency funds

when cash is received
or paid

the year; expenditures
when goods or services

when cash is received
or paid

have been received and
payment is due during
the year or soon
thereafter

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the County’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. The Statement of Activities presents information showing
how the County’s net assets changed during the current year. Both statements use the accrual basis of
accounting, similar to the accounting used by private sector companies. This basis of accounting takes into
account all of the current year’s revenues and expenses regardless of when the cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the County’s net assets and the change in those assets. This change in net
assets is important because it tells the reader whether, for the County as a whole, the economic condition of
the County has improved or diminished. However, in evaluating the overall position of the County,
nonfinancial information such as changes in the County’s tax base and the condition of the County’s capital
assets will also need to be evaluated.

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, which can be found on pages 34 through 37 of
this report, are divided into three categories as follows.

Governmental Activities — Most of the County’s basic services are reported under this category, such as
general government, public safety, public works, health, human services, and all departments - with the
exception of the sewer and water funds.

Business-type Activities — The County provides services and then charges a fee to customers, based upon
the amount of usage, to recover the costs of the services provided, and to cover the capital expenses
associated with the related facilities. The County’s sewer and water operations are considered business-type
activities.
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Component Unit — The County includes financial data of Fairfield Industries, Incorporated. This component
unit is described in Note 1 of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. A component unit is separate and
may buy, sell, lease, and mortgage property in its own name. It can also sue or be sued in its own nhame.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the County’s most significant funds —
not the County as a whole. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. Fund financial statements provide detailed information about the
County’s major funds. Based on the restriction on the use of monies, the County has established many funds
that account for the multitude of services provided to its residents. However, these fund financial statements
focus on the County’s most significant funds. The County’s major governmental funds are:

- General Fund

- Community Services Fund

- Motor Vehicle Fund

- Mental Retardation Fund

- Alcohol, Drug Addiction, and Mental Health Board Fund
- General Obligation Bond Retirement Fund

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on current sources and uses of spendable
resources, as well as balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information may
be useful in evaluating the County’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, the reader may better
understand the long-term impact of the County’s near-term financial decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The County maintains a number of individual governmental funds. Information for the major funds, identified
earlier, is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. Data from the other governmental funds
are combined into a single aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. The
governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 38 through 50 of this report.
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Proprietary Funds —The County maintains two different types of proprietary funds. It uses enterprise funds to
account for its sewer and water operations. In these operations, the County charges a fee to customers,
based upon the amount of usage, to recover the costs of the services provided, and to cover the capital
expenses associated with the related facilities. The County uses an internal service fund to account for its
Self-Funded Health Insurance Fund. Because the services of this fund predominately benefit governmental
rather than business-type operations, it has been included with governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. On March 1, 2005, the County began to purchase health, dental, and vision insurances
through the Franklin County Cooperative which is not considered limited risk health insurance. The County
has paid all known run-off claims to date from the limited risk insurance program. In 2008, the remaining
balance in the fund was used toward 2008 health insurance premiums and then the fund was closed. The
proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 51 through 55 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds — The County accounts for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government
as fiduciary funds. These funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s own programs. The County uses accrual
accounting for fiduciary funds, much like that of the proprietary funds. The fiduciary fund financial statement
can be found on page 56 of this report.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The Notes to the
Basic Financial Statements can be found on pages 57 through 104 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

During 2008, as shown in the table below, the combined net assets of the County’s primary government
decreased $3.2 million or 1.2 percent. Net assets reported for governmental activities decreased $4.0 million
or 1.8 percent and business-type activities increased $839.7 thousand or 2.1 percent.

Condensed financial information derived from the Statement of Net Assets for the primary government follows:

Primary Government
Statement of Net Assets
As of December 31, 2008, with comparatives as of December 31, 2007

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Assets:
Current and other
noncurrent assets ....... $ 91,153,281 $ 93,844,137 $ 9,236,220 $ 9,319,125 $100,389,501  $ 103,163,262
Capital assets ................. 181,026,985 183,770,825 55,431,600 56,244,080 236,458,585 240,014,905
Total assets ................ 272,180,266 277,614,962 64,667,820 65,563,205 336,848,086 343,178,167
Liabilities:
Current and
other liabilities ................ 28,891,224 29,345,852 612,767 958,763 29,503,991 30,304,615
Noncurrent liabilities ....... 25,822,808 26,765,500 23,617,689 25,006,817 49,440,497 51,772,317
Total liabilities ............. 54,714,032 56,111,352 24,230,456 25,965,580 78,944,488 82,076,932
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt ....... 163,111,804 165,113,516 32,757,780 31,899,484 195,869,584 197,013,000
Restricted ........cccccovevennnee. 38,698,952 38,433,887 - - 38,698,952 38,433,887
Unrestricted ..........c.oceee.. 15,655,478 17,956,207 7,679,584 7,698,141 23,335,062 25,654,348
Total net assets .......... $ 217,466,234 $ 221,503,610 $ 40,437,364 $39,597,625 $257,903,598  $ 261,101,235
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At December 31, 2008, the primary government’s investment in capital assets, net of depreciation, (i.e. land,
buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery and equipment, furniture and fixtures, infrastructures,
vehicles, and construction in progress), less related outstanding debt, was approximately $195.9 million. The
County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available
for future spending. Although the County’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, the
reader should be aware that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources.
The capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Decreases in current assets for governmental activities are due primarily to decreases in cash and cash
equivalents, accrued interest receivable, intergovernmental receivable, loans receivable, and special
assessments receivable. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents can be attributed mainly to the
decreases in permissive real property transfer taxes and interest earnings. The decreases to accrued interest
receivable, intergovernmental receivable, and special assessments receivable, are primarily due to lower
interest rates on investments, decrease funding from federal and state grant sources, and property tax payers
paying down their outstanding special assessments, respectively. The decrease in business type activities
current assets is primarily due to a decrease in intergovernmental receivables which was offset by an increase
in cash and cash equivalents.

The decrease in governmental type capital assets is due mainly to increase in accumulated depreciation and
disposals of buildings, equipment, infrastructure, and vehicles. The decrease in business type activities capital
assets is due mainly to the increase in accumulated depreciation.

Decreases in liabilities for governmental activities are due primarily to the decreases intergovernmental
payable, accounts payable, contracts payable, and outstanding debt which were offset by increases in accrued
wages and benefits payable, external party payable, deferred revenue, and claims payable. Decreases in
liabilities for business type activities are due primarily to the decrease in outstanding debt.

Restricted net assets were approximately $38.7 million, resulting in a $23.3 million unrestricted net assets
balance. Net assets are restricted when constraints on their use are externally imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments. Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets that do
not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt.”

The County’s net assets, when viewed over time, may provide the reader with a useful indicator of the
County’s economic condition.

The table on the following page shows the condensed financial information derived from the Statement of

Activities for the year ended December 31, 2008, and a comparative analysis with the year ended December
31, 2007.

This section intentionally left blank.
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Primary Government
Statement of Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2008, with comparatives for the year ended December 31, 2007

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services ..........c........ $ 15,950,554 $ 15,817,937 $ 5,536,287 $ 5,371,915 $ 21,486,841 $ 21,189,852
Operating grants, contributions,
and interest 39,471,114 39,521,514 - - 39,471,114 39,521,514
Capital grants, contributions,
and interest .......cccoecveeiieee e 770,746 1,872,736 1,369,749 654,744 2,140,495 2,527,480
Total program revenue . 56,192,414 57,212,187 6,906,036 6,026,659 63,098,450 63,238,846
General revenues:
Property taxes .........cccccoovvivnnnnen. 19,224,281 18,948,857 - - 19,224,281 18,948,857
Permissive real
property transfer taxes .............. 1,289,127 1,691,770 - - 1,289,127 1,691,770
Lodging taxes 172,529 163,708 - - 172,529 163,708
Sales taxes ....oocvveeviieeiiiieeeiiee s 11,682,312 11,444,458 - - 11,682,312 11,444,458
Intergovernmental .............ccceeenee 3,696,906 3,663,927 - - 3,696,906 3,663,927
Unrestricted interest
AIMINGS vt 2,748,397 3,772,460 143,701 193,689 2,892,098 3,966,149
Gain on sale of capital assets ..... - - - 4,000 - 4,000
(@1 =] SRRSO 854,058 702,437 17,381 14,276 871,439 716,713
Total general revenues ......... 39,667,610 40,387,617 161,082 211,965 39,828,692 40,599,582
Total Revenues .......cccceevvveenneen. 95,860,024 97,599,804 7,067,118 6,238,624 102,927,142 103,838,428
Expenses:
General government:
Legislative and executive ............ 11,923,640 11,025,250 - - 11,923,640 11,025,250
Intergovernmental .................... 1,863,467 1,663,570 - - 1,863,467 1,663,570
Judicial ..... 5,538,194 5,231,509 - - 5,538,194 5,231,509
Public safety 15,425,818 13,779,703 - - 15,425,818 13,779,703
Intergovernmental ............ccceceuveee. 116,172 76,173 - - 116,172 76,173
Public WOrKS ......cceeeviiiieiiicceiiee s 11,328,723 11,069,718 - - 11,328,723 11,069,718
Health ......ooooiiie 24,730,141 22,645,962 - - 24,730,141 22,645,962
Human Services ........ccccvvvvveviineennnns 27,517,647 26,104,959 - - 27,517,647 26,104,959
Urban redevelopment
and housiNg ......ccveeviieeiiiieeciiee e 102,906 309,404 - - 102,906 309,404
Intergovernmental ............cccceeueen. 111,049 360,171 - - 111,049 360,171
Transportation ...........cccecveevrceirenene. 219,451 271,899 - - 219,451 271,899
Interest and fiscal charges .............. 1,020,192 1,102,165 - - 1,020,192 1,102,165
Sewer system - - 3,424,048 3,591,749 3,424,048 3,591,749
Water system - - 2,803,331 2,838,938 2,803,331 2,838,938
Total EXPEnses ......cccceevveneennee. 99,897,400 93,640,483 6,227,379 6,430,687 106,124,779 100,071,170
Increase (Decrease)...........cccoeeeeeeninns (4,037,376) 3,959,321 839,739 (192,063) (3,197,637) 3,767,258
Net assets - beginning of year............. 221,503,610 217,544,289 39,597,625 39,789,688 261,101,235 257,333,977

Net assets - end of year $ 217,466,234  $221,503,610 $40,437,364

$ 39,597,625

$257,903,598

$261,101,235
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Governmental Activities

Grants, contributions, and restricted interest accounted for 42.0 percent of total governmental revenues, with
taxes providing 33.8 percent of total governmental revenues. These revenue sources comprise the two largest
components of County revenues. Grants, contributions, and restricted interest revenues in 2008 were
$40,241,860. The large decrease in capital grants, contributions, and interest is due mainly to the County
receiving state and federal grants for the construction of road and bridges in the amount of $1,494,345 in 2007
and only $449,917 in 2008. Property, permissive real property transfer, and lodging taxes revenues were
$20,685,937 (21.6 percent of total governmental revenues) while sales taxes were $11,682,312 (12.2 percent
of total governmental revenues). Taxes, grants, contributions, and restricted interest combined together,
provided 75.8 percent of the County’s total governmental revenues. Property taxes increased slightly due to
retail development at the Ety Pointe Center. Permissive real property transfer taxes decreased due to the
reduction in the number of real property and manufactured home conveyances. The increase in sales taxes is
mainly attributed to the addition of businesses within the County in 2008.

The County received $15,950,554 or 16.6 percent of total governmental revenues, in charges for services.
These direct charges to citizens include real estate transfer fees, property tax collection fees, judicial fines and
forfeitures, and licenses and permits.

Human services activities utilized $27,517,647 or 27.5 percent of total expenses. The County’s health services
activities accounted for $24,730,141 or 24.8 percent, of total expenses. These two areas had the first and
third largest increase in expenses due to the rising costs of health and human services programs and the
increases in program participation by County residents.

The following table presents the total expenses and net cost of each of the County’s governmental program
activities. The net cost (total program activity expenses less revenues generated by the program) represents
the financial burden that was placed on the County’s taxpayers by each of these program activities. Costs not
covered by program revenues are essentially funded with the County’s general revenues, which are primarily
composed of taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and unrestricted interest earnings. The net cost to the
governmental activities was $43,704,986.

Program Expenses and Net Costs of Governmental Activities, by Program
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Net Cost Net Cost (Gain) as Percentage

Program (Gain) of of Total Expenses
Activity Program Program All Program

Program Activity Expenses Activity Activity Activities
General government:

Legislative and executive ..............c......... $ 11,923,640 $ 6,682,316 56.04% 6.70%
Intergovernmental 1,863,467 1,863,467 100.00% 1.87%
Judicial ......ooooeviiieninnnne 5,538,194 2,196,729 39.67% 2.20%
Public safety .......cccoveeiiieiiiiiie e 15,425,818 11,562,081 74.95% 11.57%
Intergovernmental ..........cccceeeeeeeviinnenns 116,172 34,240 29.47% 0.03%
Public works 11,328,723 3,219,076 28.42% 3.22%
Health ............ 24,730,141 10,310,864 41.69% 10.32%
Human services 27,517,647 7,171,585 26.06% 7.18%
Urban redevelopment and housing ............. 102,906 (649,334) (631.00%) (0.65%)
Intergovernmental ...........ccccoeieeiniinenns 111,049 94,025 84.67% 0.09%
Transportation .........ccccveeevceveeerveeesseessseneens 219,451 199,745 91.02% 0.20%
Interest and fiscal charges ..........ccccccvvveenne 1,020,192 1,020,192 100.00% 1.02%
Total EXPENSES ...oovvvereereeeriesieeienieeieneens $ 99,897,400 $ 43,704,986 43.75%
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(Unaudited)

Business-type Activities

Net assets for business-type activities increased by $839,739 or 2.1 percent, in 2008. The major revenue
source was charges for services in the amount of $5,536,287.

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds — The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in accessing the County’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the County’s
net resources available for spending at the end of the year.

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the County. Atthe end of 2008, unreserved fund balance
was $13,860,629 while total fund balance was $15,704,913. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it
may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance, to total fund expenditures.
Unreserved fund balance represents 47.4 percent to total General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance
represents 53.7 percent of General Fund expenditures.

The fund balance of the County’s General Fund decreased by $1.0 million during the current fiscal year
compared to a $1.5 million increase in the prior year. Key factors in this decrease in fund balance are as
follows:

= Total General Fund revenue remained fairly constant from prior year only decreasing by $216,989 while
General Fund expenditures increased approximately $2.3 million. The largest increases in expenditures
were in legislative and executive and public safety programs.

= Other financing sources (uses) also remained fairly constant from prior year increasing only $48,790 due
mainly to no significant changes in transfer activity.

Other Major Governmental Funds

The Community Services Fund has a deficit fund balance of ($2.3) million. The deficit is mainly attributed to a
decrease in state and federal funding sources which is offset by an increase in charges for services revenue
and increased human services expenditures. The net change in fund balance for 2008 was a decrease of
$1,329,967.

The fund balance of the Motor Vehicle Fund at December 31, 2008 is $5.6 million, a decrease of $309,640
from the prior year. The decrease in fund balance is due to the net effect of expenditures exceeding revenues,
an increase in other financing sources (uses), and reliance on carryover fund balance from the prior year. The
net increase of expenditures exceeding revenues is primarily due to a large increase in public works
expenditures and a slight decrease in revenues. The increase in other financing sources (uses) was due to an
increase in transfers in for the County’s allocation to the Engineer’'s department and an increase in the sale of
capital assets.

The fund balance of the Mental Retardation Fund at year end is $8.5 million, an increase of $604,246 or 7.7
percent, from the previous year. The increase in fund balance was primarily due to revenues were greater
than expenditures. The largest increases in revenue were in intergovernmental. In 2008, grants due from the
state that had not been collected within the available period resulted in deferred revenue of $926,758. This
increase in revenues was offset with an increase in expenditures of $870,158.
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The fund balance of the Alcohol, Drug Addiction, and Mental Health Board Fund at December 31, 2008, is
approximately $2.2 million, which is an increase of $555,696 from 2007. The increase in fund balance was
due mainly to an increase in intergovernmental revenues of $1,987,595, decrease in charges for services of
$44,665, decrease in property taxes of $32,408, and an increase in expenditures of $787,048. In 2008, grants
due from the state had not been collected within the available period, which resulted in deferred revenue at
year-end of $1.5 million.

The General Obligation Bond Retirement Fund has a fund balance of approximately $453,000 at December
31, 2008. This fund received approximately $1.9 million in refunding bonds issued, $1.0 million in current
refunding of bond anticipation note, and $936 thousand in transfers in, while making approximately $3.0 million
in debt service payments and $1.9 million payment of refunded bond to escrow agent.

Proprietary Funds

The County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

The County’s major proprietary funds, the Sewer Fund and the Water Fund, both had increases in net assets;
the Sewer Fund’s net assets increased by $545,967 and the Water Fund’s net assets increased $293,772.
These increases can be primarily attributed to the increases in operating revenues, capital contributions,
decreases in interest and fiscal charges, and decreased operating expenses in Sewer Fund and increased
operating expenses in the Water Fund.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The County made several revisions to the original appropriations approved by the County Commissioners.
Overall, these changes resulted in a decrease from the original budget of 0.75 percent or $247,723. The
majority of the decrease in appropriations were for the following functions: general government judicial by
$118,545 primarily for contractual services in Court of Appeals, Juvenile Court, Clerk of Courts, and Municipal
Court-Judicial; health by $174,188 primarily for contractual services in Crippled Children; other expenditures
by $680,358 primarily for increases in the Commissioners shared costs; and Miscellaneous expenditures
related to contractual services. The majority of the increase in appropriations were for the following functions:
general government legislative and executive by $503,352 primarily in Prosecuting Attorney for personal
services and decrease in fringe benefits; Data Processing for personal services, fringe benefits, materials and
supplies, capital outlay and decrease in contractual services; Board of Elections for personal services, fringe
benefits materials and supplies, contractual services, and decrease in capital outlay; Maintenance for capital
outlay and decreases in personal services, fringe benefits, materials and supplies, contractual services;
Human Resources for fringe benefits, contractual services; and in Levy and Assessment for contractual
services. Actual expenditures were less than the final budgeted expenditures by $1.5 million primarily due to
general government legislative and executive of $527,923, public safety of $376,493, and general government
judicial of $300,843.

The County’s budgeted revenue increased 4.8 percent primarily due to increases in property taxes of
$600,000, permissive real property transfer taxes of $374,900, intergovernmental revenue of $481,000,
licenses and permits of $38,949, and a decrease in interest of $128,657. Actual revenue exceeded the final
budget by $3.2 million primarily due to sales taxes, property taxes, and permissive real property transfer taxes
of $1,188,055, $524,450, and $493,111 respectively.

Based on these factors, the economic condition of the General Fund, based on actual cash basis results at

December 31, 2008, reflects a fund balance that is $6.6 million better than initially projected in the original
budget.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

As of December 31, 2008, and December 31, 2007, the County had invested $236.5 million and $240.0
million, net of accumulated depreciation of $107.5 million and $99.5 million, respectively, in a broad range of
capital assets, as follows:

Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation
As of December 31, 2008, with comparatives as of December 31, 2007

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Land ..o $ 4,433,878 $ 4,623,278 $ 2,237,414 $ 2,237,414 $ 6,671,292 $ 6,860,692
BUIldiNGS ..o.eeeeeeeee 26,008,829 25,115,759 13,463,924 14,032,994 39,472,753 39,148,753
Improvements other than

buildings .. 3,104,048 3,071,308 - - 3,104,048 3,071,308
Equipment .......ccccooeveieiinnnne 3,123,195 3,731,277 154,448 142,689 3,277,643 3,873,966
Furniture and fixtures ............... 368,323 430,475 - - 368,323 430,475
Infrastructure ..........cccoevvevnennene 141,764,759 143,478,601 38,792,458 39,012,951 180,557,217 182,491,552
VehiCles ....ccocvveieieieieieeene 1,355,511 1,420,370 111,524 146,200 1,467,035 1,566,570
Construction in progress .......... 868,442 1,899,757 671,832 671,832 1,540,274 2,571,589

Total capital assets, net ....... $ 181,026,985 $ 183,770,825 $ 55,431,600 $ 56,244,080 $ 236,458,585 $ 240,014,905

For additional information on capital assets, see Note 10 to the basic financial statements.

The total decrease in the County’s capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for the current year were
$3.6 million or 1.5 percent (a 1.5 percent decrease for governmental activities and a 1.4 percent decrease for
business-type activities). As further detailed in Note 16 of the notes to the basic financial statements, the
County had $896.1 thousand in construction commitments.

Debt — Bonds, Long-Term Notes, Loans, and Capital Leases Payable

As of December 31, 2008, and December 31, 2007, the County had total debt of approximately $45.1 million
and approximately $47.6 million, respectively, as follows:

Bonds, Long-Term Notes, Loans, and Capital Leases Payable
As of December 31, 2008, with comparatives for December 31, 2007

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Bond anticipation notes...... $ 1,390,000 $ 1,000,000 $ -0 % - $ 1,390,000 $ 1,000,000
General obligation bonds... 17,684,709 18,711,171 22,275,103 23,454,119 39,959,812 42,165,290
Special assessment

bonds......cccoeeiiiieeiines 2,076,574 2,355,110 - - 2,076,574 2,355,110
Long-term loans................. - 52,220 1,138,119 1,335,473 1,138,119 1,387,693
Capital leases 491,575 693,950 17,566 25,263 509,141 719,213

$ 21,642,858 $ 22,812,451 $ 23,430,788 $ 24,814,855 $ 45,073,646 $ 47,627,306

For additional information on debt, see Note 17 to the basic financial statements.
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During 2008, the County issued $1,390,000 and paid off $1,000,000 in long-term bond anticipation notes,
issued $8,015,174 in general obligation refunding bonds, defeased $7,985,000 in general obligation bonds,
paid down general obligation bonds by $2,235,652, issued no new special assessment bonds and paid off
$278,536, and incurred no new long-term loans while reducing those balances by $249,574. Capital lease
balances decreased $210,072. The total decrease in the County’s debt obligations for the current year was
5.4 percent (a 5.1 percent decrease for governmental activities and a 5.6 percent decrease for business-type
activities).

Limitations on Debt

State statutes limit the amount of total debt according to this formula: 3.0 percent of the first $100 million of
total assessed valuation; plus 1.5 percent of such valuation in excess of $100 million and not in excess of
$300 million; plus 2.5 percent of such valuation in excess of $300 million. By this calculation, the current total
legal debt margin of Fairfield County is approximately $67.6 million.

The County’s total unvoted legal debt margin at December 31, 2008, is approximately $20.5 million.
Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide the County’s citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and
creditors with a general overview of the County’s finances and to demonstrate the County’s accountability for
the money it receives. If you have questions about this report, please contact the Fairfield County Auditor’s
Office by calling (740) 687-7020 or by writing the County Auditor at 210 E. Main Street, Lancaster, Ohio
43130. An electronic version of this report is available on the County’s website at http://www.co.fairfield.oh.us/
auditor/index.htm
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

December 31, 2008 - Primary Government
June 30, 2008 - Fairfield Industries, Incorporated

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents.....................
Cash and cash equivalents

in segregated accounts ...

Segregated investments............c.ccccoueee.
Sales taxes receivable ..............ccoceenene

Internal balances.....

Materials and supplies inventory ............
Permissive motor vehicle license

tax receivable .........

Accrued interest receivable ...................
Intergovernmental receivable ................

Prepaid items ..........

Accounts receivable

External party receivable .......................
Lodging taxes receivable ..............c........

Property taxes receivable ....
Loans receivable .....

Special assessments receivable ............

Deferred charges ....

Investment in joint venture .....................
Capital assets not being depreciated .....

Capital assets being

depreciated (net

of accumulated depreciation) .............

Total assets ............

Primary Government

Component Unit

Fairfield
Governmental Business-type Industries,
Activities Activities Total Incorporated
$ 48,487,518 $ 7,265,390 $ 55,752,908 $ 53,031
86,067 530,206 616,273 -
- - - 244,333
1,791,298 - 1,791,298 -
(12,592) 12,592 - -
541,633 14,537 556,170 2,494
86,532 - 86,532 -
247,958 4,383 252,341 -
13,069,121 36,112 13,105,233 -
212,025 9,411 221,436 1,822
510,805 933,457 1,444,262 91,627
165,059 - 165,059 -
36,283 - 36,283 -
20,283,369 - 20,283,369 -
798,968 - 798,968 -
2,129,197 45,262 2,174,459 -
278,156 384,870 663,026 -
2,441,884 - 2,441,884 -
5,302,320 2,909,246 8,211,566 -
175,724,665 52,522,354 228,247,019 102,496
$ 272,180,266 $ 64,667,820 $ 336,848,086 $ 495,803
(continued)
-34-

168



Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

December 31, 2008 - Primary Government
June 30, 2008 - Fairfield Industries, Incorporated

(Continued)

Primary Government

Component Unit

Fairfield
Governmental Business-type Industries,
Activities Activities Total Incorporated
LIABILITIES
Accrued wages and
benefits payable ..........cccccooeeniiiirnennn. $ 2,060,884 $ 64,383 $ 2,125,267 $ 28,790
Matured compensated
absences payable..........ccooeiiiiiieinns 10,693 - 10,693 -
Matured capital leases payable.............. 38,447 174 38,621 -
Matured interest payable...........c..c........ 969 36 1,005 -
Intergovernmental payable..................... 1,737,761 44,398 1,782,159 -
Accounts payable..........cccccoeiiiiiiiiieenns 3,148,216 232,928 3,381,144 6,647
External party payable...........ccccooveiiene 127,182 - 127,182 -
Contracts payable..........cccoceeiiiieneninen. 563,308 6,058 569,366 -
Retainage payable...... . 120,692 - 120,692 -
Accrued interest payable.............ccco....... 125,340 80,386 205,726 -
Deferred revenue..........ccccovvevivicnnnnne 20,700,944 - 20,700,944 -
Notes payable..........ccccovieiiiiiiiiniinen. 85,000 - 85,000 -
Claims payable.........ccccooeiiiiniienieen. 171,788 - 171,788 -
Customer deposits payable - 184,404 184,404 -
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year ..........cccocovevveenns 3,181,138 1,386,487 4,567,625 -
Due within more than one year .......... 22,641,670 22,231,202 44,872,872 -
Total liabilities ........cc.ccccvrviiinnenne. 54,714,032 24,230,456 78,944,488 35,437
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt .........cccoveviiiiniiiec 163,111,804 32,757,780 195,869,584 102,496
Restricted for:
Capital projects.........ccceevvevveriecncneennnn. 827,240 - 827,240 -
Debt SErviCe........cccovveieireeiieeceeneee 103,871 - 103,871 -
Other purpoSses........ccccevvevveeiiiiceennen. 6,383,941 - 6,383,941 969
Real estate assessment..... . 2,623,522 - 2,623,522 -
Road and bridge projects 6,977,651 - 6,977,651 -
Ditch maintenance.............cccoceevveennen. 1,398,556 - 1,398,556 -
Mental retardation..............cccceerciennnne 9,767,977 - 9,767,977 -
Mental health...........ccooovviiniiiii 3,774,501 - 3,774,501 -
Children services..........ccccceeviiiicinnens 911,188 - 911,188 -
Title administration............ccccceveverennns 878,476 - 878,476 -
Child support enforcement................... 496,263 - 496,263 -
Crossroads center.............. 983,685 - 983,685 -
Bridges and culverts 993,228 - 993,228 -
Older adult services...........cccoevevveinenen. 1,042,738 - 1,042,738 -
Youth Services.........ccovevveiniiiiicicneens 832,156 - 832,156 -
Juvenile reCoVery.......ccooveriieriieeieeeene. 703,959 - 703,959 -
UNrestricted.........oovereieenieeecseeeee 15,655,478 7,679,584 23,335,062 356,901
Total net assets ..........ccceeveveerneeen. $ 217,466,234 $ 40,437,364 $ 257,903,598 $ 460,366

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008 - Primary Government
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 - Fairfield Industries, Incorporated

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges Grants, Grants, Net
for Contributions, Contributions, (Expense)
Expenses Services and Interest and Interest Revenue
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
General government:
Legislative and executive ............. $ 11,923,640 $ 5,217,348 $ 18,477 $ 5,499 $ (6,682,316)
Intergovernmental .................... 1,863,467 - - - (1,863,467)
Judicial ....ocevveeieeiiecee e 5,538,194 1,997,878 1,343,587 - (2,196,729)
Public safety .......c.cceoeveneniiieiee 15,425,818 2,376,232 1,477,505 10,000 (11,562,081)
Intergovernmental .............ccccceeee 116,172 - 81,932 - (34,240)
Public works 11,328,723 1,458,693 5,895,707 755,247 (3,219,076)
Health .......ccooveiiiiecccecee 24,730,141 1,168,662 13,250,615 - (10,310,864)
Human Services .........cccccvveevveerveennenn 27,517,647 3,709,786 16,636,276 - (7,171,585)
Urban redevelopment and
hoUSING ..cveviiiiiiee 102,906 2,249 749,991 - 649,334
Intergovernmental .................... 111,049 - 17,024 - (94,025)
Transportation ...........ccceceeeeeneennne 219,451 19,706 - - (199,745)
Interest and fiscal charges ............... 1,020,192 - - - (1,020,192)
Total governmental activities ....... 99,897,400 15,950,554 39,471,114 770,746 (43,704,986)
Business-type activities:
SEWET ..eviieiiee ettt see et 3,424,048 3,142,127 - 726,159 444,238
WaAALET ..o 2,803,331 2,394,160 - 643,590 234,419
Total business-type activities ....... 6,227,379 5,536,287 - 1,369,749 678,657
Total Primary Government.................... $ 106,124,779 $ 21,486,841 $ 39,471,114 $ 2,140,495 $ (43,026,329)
Component Unit:
Fairfield Industries, Incorporated........... $ 1,064,131 $ 699,766 $ 8,622 $ - $ (355,743)
Total Component Unit..........cccceeveveennen. $ 1,064,131 $ 699,766 $ 8,622 $ - $ (355,743)
(continued)
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008 - Primary Government

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 - Fairfield Industries, Incorporated

(Continued)

Component Unit

Primary Government Fairfield
Governmental Business-type Industries,
Activities Activities Total Incorporated
Changes in Net Assets:
Net (EXPENSE) FEVENUE .....ccveeveereeeeiieeieeeereerienes $  (43,704,986) $ 678,657 (43,026,329) $ (355,743)
General revenues:
Property taxes levied for:
General PUMPOSES ..c..eeververieeeeieeieeeeree e $ 7,416,439 $ - 7,416,439 $ -
Public works ... 1,202,570 - 1,202,570 -
Health ..o 9,405,308 - 9,405,308 -
HUMAN SEIVICES ....ovvvviiieiiiiiiiieeieeeeeeeeiieiiees 1,199,964 - 1,199,964 -
Permissive real property transfer taxes
levied for general purposes ..........cccceeeenieene 1,289,127 - 1,289,127 -
Lodging tax levied for public works ................. 172,529 - 172,529 -
Sales taxes levied for
general PUIPOSES .......eeveeveeniieniienieeieeninenine 11,682,312 - 11,682,312 -
Grants and entitlements not
restricted to specific programs..............ccccee... 3,696,906 - 3,696,906 -
unrestricted iNterest ........coeeevveevveeiieeiieeiieennn, 2,748,397 143,701 2,892,098 -
In-kind contributions . - - - 335,316
Other e 854,058 17,381 871,439 -
Total general revenues...........ccccveeeeiveeeiieeesiieennn 39,667,610 161,082 39,828,692 335,316
Increase (decrease) in
NEL ASSELS....eiivieiieeteeciie e (4,037,376) 839,739 (3,197,637) (20,427)
Net assets - beginning of year............cccccveveveene 221,503,610 39,597,625 261,101,235 480,793
Net assets - end of year..........cccocvveveverenesvnnnne $ 217,466,234 $ 40,437,364 257,903,598 $ 460,366

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

-37-

171



Fairfield County, Ohio

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2008

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in segregated accounts.......................

Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables:
Property taxes
Lodging taxes

Permissive motor vehicle license tax
Sales taxes ....cocevvvveeiiiieeeieennn
ACCOUNLS ...
Interfund ........cccevvviieeeieee,
External party ........cccoeeeeeiiieninnn.
Special assessments ...

Accrued interest

Intergovernmental
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid items........ccccevviiiieinene.
Total assetS......ccvvvvveriveeneerieeeene.

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable..........c..ccceeueenen.
Contracts payable..........ccccccevennnne
Accrued wages and benefits payable
Matured compensated absences payable

Retainage payable

Interfund payable............cccocoeeneenne
External party payable
Intergovernmental payable
Deferred revenue...........cccccovvenne.
Matured interest payable
Matured capital leases payable
Claims Payable...........
Accrued interest payable
Notes payable........ccccccceveviirennnen.
Total liabilities.........cccoeverieennene
FUND BALANCES (Deficit):

Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for unclaimed monies

Reserved for loans

Unreserved, designated:
Designated for health insurance - general fund

Designated for health insurance - special revenue funds............

Unreserved, undesignated, reported in:
General fund .........cccoeoviiiennene
Special revenue funds
Debt service funds
Capital projects funds

Total fund balances (deficit)

Total liabilities and fund balances

Community Motor
General Services Vehicle

Fund Fund Fund
$ 14,709,957 $ 498,545 4,723,043
80,093 - -
310,097 - -
7,815,243 - -
- - 86,532
1,791,298 - -
306,565 15,190 5,234
57,034 361,885 -
70,000 - -
243,314 - -
2,024,150 31,363 2,720,098
95,413 605 425,997
153,146 2,684 650
$ 27,656,310 $ 910,272 7,961,554
$ 791,487 $ 580,492 99,225
- - 19,115
790,309 428,656 175,823
10,693 - -
- - 64,853
18,384 12,495 931
25,560 101,553 -
689,822 443,615 113,872
9,593,892 1,658,946 1,889,560
- 906 -
31,250 7,021 -
11,951,397 3,233,684 2,363,379
1,534,187 23,439 323,956
310,097 - -
34,981 - -
- - 12,342
13,825,648 - -
- (2,346,851) 5,261,877
15,704,913 (2,323,412) 5,598,175
$ 27,656,310 $ 910,272 7,961,554

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Alcohol, Drug General
Mental Addiction, and Obligation Bond Nonmajor
Retardation Mental Health Retirement Governmental
Fund Board Fund Fund Funds Totals
8,983,899 1,849,024 $ 450,933 16,962,020 48,177,421
- - 256 5,718 86,067
- - - - 310,097
7,683,718 2,063,634 178,400 2,542,374 20,283,369
- - - 36,283 36,283
- - - - 86,532
- - - - 1,791,298
38,698 45,840 2,228 97,050 510,805
- - - 29,122 448,041
4,081 58,478 - 32,500 165,059
- - - 2,129,197 2,129,197
- - - 4,644 247,958
- - - 798,968 798,968
1,921,418 2,626,410 - 3,745,682 13,069,121
17,194 - - 2,424 541,633
35,905 11,064 - 8,576 212,025
18,684,913 6,654,450 $ 631,817 26,394,558 88,893,874
278,639 691,569 $ - 706,804 3,148,216
- - - 544,193 563,308
320,558 34,492 - 311,046 2,060,884
- - - - 10,693
- - - 55,839 120,692
329 34,793 - 393,701 460,633
- - - 69 127,182
216,573 41,639 - 232,240 1,737,761
9,239,246 3,687,832 178,400 7,390,019 33,637,895
- - - 63 969
- - - 176 38,447
171,788 - - - 171,788
- - - 3,100 3,100
- - - 85,000 85,000
10,227,133 4,490,325 178,400 9,722,250 42,166,568
898,787 458,034 - 1,095,448 4,333,851
- - - - 310,097
- - - 650,695 650,695
- - - - 34,981
- 1,122 - 11,626 25,090
- - - - 13,825,648
7,558,993 1,704,969 - 13,334,774 25,513,762
- - 453,417 176,221 629,638
- - - 1,403,544 1,403,544
8,457,780 2,164,125 453,417 16,672,308 46,727,306
18,684,913 6,654,450 $ 631,817 26,394,558 88,893,874
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Fairfield County, Ohio

RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES TO

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

December 31, 2008

Total fund balances for governmental fuNdS..........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiie e

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
nets assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the fUNAS. ...

Investment in joint venture in the governmental activities is not a financial resource
and therefore is not reported in the fuNdS. ..o

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and therefore are deferred in the funds.
PIOPEIY TAXES ...ueueeiiitiite ittt bbbt bttt en e
ChArges fOr SEIVICES ......uiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt b et e et e et e e st e e sbe e sabeenbeenes
LIiCENSES AN PEIMILS ....eiiutieiiiiiie ittt b bt e e st e e be e abeesbeesnbe e saeeseee s
Fines and fOrfeitUreS ..........cooiiiiiiiiii e
REIMBUISEMENTS ...t s
SPECIAI ASSESSMENLS ....ieiiiiieiieitie ettt e ettt e et e e bt e sabeesbeesabeesbbeabeesbseenbeeeane e
ACCTUET INTEIESE ...ttt et s
INTEIGOVEINIMENTAL ...ttt ettt b et e b e et e sbe e sbeeenbeenne e e

Deferred charges represent unamortized issuance costs which do not provide
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. ............ccccceeeens

Long-term liabilities and accrued interest are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Special assessment bonds payable and unamortized premium ...........cccceveeenienieennne
General obligation bonds payable and unamortized premium and discount ...................
Refunding bonds payable and unamortized premium and

deferred amount 0N refUNdiNg ........ooceiiiiiiiii e
Long-term bond anticipation notes payable .
Accrued INterest PAYADIE .........c.coiiiiiiiie e
Compensated absences PayabIe ..o
Intergovernmental payable ....

Capital 18aSeS PAYADIE .......oouiiiiiiie e

1,214,412
67,989
141
225,165
7,960
2,129,197
124,018
9,168,069

(2,076,574)
(15,969,866)

(1,714,843)
(1,390,000)
(122,240)
(4,169,854)
(10,096)
(491,575)

$ 46,727,306

181,026,985

2,441,884

12,936,951

278,156

(25,945,048)

Net assets of governmental aCtiVities .........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiie e

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNME

NTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

REVENUES

Property taxes.......

Permissive real property transfer taxes.........ccoccoeeviiieeeniiieesiiieeeens
(oo o [T gTo IR r= (= SRR

Sales taxes...........

Charges fOr SEIVICES. ......cuuiiiiiiieeiieeee et
Licenses and PermitS..........cccueeeiierieiiiieeeiiiee et

Permissive motor vehicle license tax..
Fines and forfeitures..

Intergovernmental.

Special assessments....

Interest..................

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government:

Legislative an
Judicial .........

0 EXECULIVE ..vvveeeiee i

PUDBIIC SAEY ..o

Public works .....

HEAIN .o

Human services

Intergovernmental.
Capital outlay........
Debt service:

Principal retiremMent .........ooeiviiie i
Interest and fiscal Charges ...

Issuance costs .
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..........cccoeevveeviveeesnnns

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Sale of capital ASSELS......c.ueie i

Inception of capital I€aSE...........cooviiiiiiiiic e

Current refunding bonds ISSUEM............eeeiiiiiieiiiiie e
Bond anticipation NOte iISSUEM............ccooiiiiiieniiinieesc e

Current refunding bond anticipation note issued..............ccccccevueeene
Current refunding of bond anticipation note............c.ccccecvvenieenicennen.
Premium on refunding bonds...........ccoooiiiiiiiiiei e
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent............ccoceeveeniiiiicniiens

Transfersin...........

Transfers out.........

Total other financing SOUrCESs (USES).......ceevueeiiiriiieeiiienieesieeeiee e

Net change in fund balances.............ccc........

Fund balances (de

Fund balances (de

ficit) - beginning of year...........ccccceevveciee e

ficit) - end of year........ccooeeiiiiiii

Community Motor
General Services Vehicle
Fund Fund Fund
$ 7,368,635 - -
1,289,127 - R
11,682,312 - -
4,780,742 3,269,790 136,156
46,794 - R
- - 1,077,623
118,351 - 39,586
4,205,704 11,244,059 5,573,884
2,872,797 - -
144,038 - -
15,000 - -
399,406 312,768 12,608
32,922,906 14,826,617 6,839,857
8,967,894 - R
3,857,978 - R
12,794,692 - R
- - 7,190,594
543,193 - -
862,546 16,507,631 -
109,766 - -
198,310 - -
1,863,467 - -
41,457 75,787 -
2,718 7,813 -
29,242,021 16,591,231 7,190,594
3,680,885 (1,764,614) (350,737)
186,430 - 14,650
- 43,737 -
- 390,910 348,534
(4,891,822) - (322,087)
(4,705,392) 434,647 41,097
(1,024,507) (1,329,967) (309,640)
16,729,420 (993,445) 5,907,815
$ 15,704,913 (2,323,412) 5,598,175

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Alcohol, Drug General
Mental Addiction, and Obligation Bond Nonmajor
Retardation Mental Health Retirement Governmental

Fund Board Fund Fund Funds Totals
$ 7,218,139 $ 1,947,585 $ 178,400 $ 2,386,779 19,099,538
- - - - 1,289,127
- - - 172,529 172,529
- - - - 11,682,312
655,114 150,037 - 4,273,528 13,265,367
- - - 439,966 486,760
- - - - 1,077,623
- - - 110,264 268,201
5,013,670 9,222,735 - 8,945,906 44,205,958
- - - 425,017 425,017
- - 2,876 193,328 3,069,001
27,166 21,133 711,151 14,961 918,449
14,364 - - 12,744 42,108
24,038 4,938 - 93,765 847,523
12,952,491 11,346,428 892,427 17,068,787 96,849,513
- - - 1,410,838 10,378,732
- - - 1,548,406 5,406,384
- - - 2,288,600 15,083,292
- - - 1,262,963 8,453,557
12,350,253 10,790,732 - 791,079 24,475,257
- - - 9,847,527 27,217,704
- - - 102,906 102,906
- - - - 109,766
- - - - 198,310
- - - 227,221 2,090,688
- - - 2,405,560 2,405,560
- - 1,092,220 435,007 1,644,471
- - 889,993 117,447 1,017,971
- - 33,537 - 33,537
12,350,253 10,790,732 2,015,750 20,437,554 98,618,135
602,238 555,696 (1,123,323) (3,368,767) (1,768,622)
2,008 - - 5,411 208,499
- - - 42,891 86,628
- - 1,895,000 - 1,895,000
- - - 390,000 390,000
- - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
- - (2,000,000) - (2,000,000)
- - 31,087 - 31,087
- - (1,891,567) - (1,891,567)
- - 935,965 3,738,500 5,413,909
- - - (200,000) (5,413,909)
2,008 - 970,485 3,976,802 719,647
604,246 555,696 (152,838) 608,035 (1,048,975)
7,853,534 1,608,429 606,255 16,064,273 47,776,281
$ 8,457,780 $ 2,164,125 $ 453,417 $ 16,672,308 46,727,306
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Fairfield County, Ohio
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds..........cccccoevviveiiiee e, $ (1,048,975)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current period:

Capital aSSet AUdItIONS ..........viiiiiiiie e 5,535,307
Capital CONHDULIONS .....c..eiiiiiiie e 15,499
CUrrent year dePreCIAtION ...........ocueieeiiiieeiiee ettt et e et et e e sabe e e s sbaeaeenibeeeees (7,427,965) (1,877,159)

Governmental funds only report the disposal of assets to the extent proceeds
are received from the sale. In the statement of activities, a gain or loss is
reported for each disposal. This is the amount of the proceeds, the forgiven
lease, and the loss on disposal of assets:

Proceeds from sale of capital @SSetS .........cccciiiiiiiiiiiiiic (208,499)
Forgiven [ease ..........cccooeeviieennieninnn. 11,752
Loss on disposal of capital assets (658,182) (854,929)
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds:
Property taXES ......ccoiiiiiiiiii s 124,743
Charges fOr SEIVICES .....ccuuiiiiiiiii ettt ettt saneebee s (268,800)
LICENSES @Nd PEIIMILS .....vviiiiiiiieiii e 77
Fines and forfeitures .... 35,114
INtErGOVEIMMENTAL ......eiiiiiiiii e (517,248)
SPECIAlI ASSESSIMENES .....eoiuiiiiiiieiiie ittt ettt b et e bt et e b e sb e sineenane (249,701)
INEEIEST ... e (128,155)
LR LC] | OPTPUPTOUPTOURTURUPRN (7,553)
111 SOOI 6,535 (1,004,988)
Governmental funds had a investment in joint venture which showed a decrease
for the current year. The decrease in joint venture is shown as an expense
on the statement Of ACHVILIES ........c.eoiiiiiiiiii e (101,472)
Repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets:
Special assessment bonds ... 275,000
General Obligation BONAS ...........c.oiiiiiiii e 865,000
Current refunding DONAS .......oooiiiiiiiiie e 175,000
Long-term Notes PAYADIE ..........coiiiiiiiieei s 1,000,000
(o] o B (=] 0 0 T (o= T E PSRRI 52,220

277,251 $ 2,644,471

Capital leases

(continued)
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Fairfield County, Ohio

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

(Continued)

Interest is reported as an expenditure when due in the governmental funds,
but is accrued on outstanding debt on the statement of activities. Premiums
and discounts are reported as revenues and expenditures when the debt is
first issued; however, these amounts are deferred and amortized on the
statement of activities.:

Accrued interest payable .......

AMOTrtization Of ISSUANCE COSLS ........eoviiieiiiieceee e s
Amortization on premium of special assessment bonds ............cccceiviiiiiiiieenninen.
Amortization on premium of general obligation bonds .............cccooeiiiiiiiiiniieneee
Amortization on premium of current refunding bonds ............ccccooviiiiiiiiniiees
Amortization on discount of general obligation bonds ............cccceeviiiiiiiniiiiienee

Inception of capital leases are reported as other financing sources in the
governmental funds, but the inception increases long-term liabilities on the

statement Of ACHIVILIES .......eeiiiiie et e e e e rraae e e

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds:

Change in net assets of governmental activities

Intergovernmental PayabIle ............cocveiiiiiiiiii e

Compensated absences payable ...

Long-term debt proceeds are other financing sources in the governmental funds,
but the issuance increases the long-term liabilities on the statement of activities.

Current refunding bonds ISSUEA .........ccceiiiiiiiiiiiiie e

Premium on current refunding bonds iSSUed ............cccoeviiiiiiiiiiiiici
Long-term notes payable

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent is an other financing use in
governmental funds, but the payment reduces long-term liabilities on the
StAtEMENE Of NET ASSELS ....iiveiiieiieeiesee et e et reesae e e saeeee e

Issuance costs are reported as an expenditure when paid in the governmental funds,
but are deferred on the statement of net assets ..........ccccvviiiiiiiiice

The difference between the net carrying amount of the refunded debt and the
acquisition price is allocated over the life of the outstanding debt on the
statement Of ACHVILIES .......cooiiiiiiiii e

The internal service fund used by management to charge the costs of insurance
to individual funds is not reported in the entity-wide statement of activities.
Governmental expenditures and related internal service fund revenues are

eliminated. The change for governmental funds is reported for the year ..................
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(7,580)
(19,159)
3,536
21,761
1,828
(456)

1,819

(228,720)

(1,895,000)
(31,087)

(1,390,000)

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

(70)

(86,628)

(226,901)

(3,316,087)

1,891,567

33,537

(2,151)

(87,591)
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE — BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Property taXes........coouverriiieiienieneeseeese e $ 6,200,000 $ 6,800,000 $ 7,324,450 $ 524,450
Permissive real property transfer taxes...........cccccuee.. 426,230 801,130 1,294,241 493,111
SAIES tAXES. ...t 10,500,000 10,500,000 11,688,055 1,188,055
Charges for SErVICES.......cccveiviieeieiee e 4,406,564 4,411,694 4,754,051 342,357
Licenses and permits...........cccceerueeeeiiieeesniieee e 8,000 46,949 46,794 (155)
Fines and forfeitures........coccvevvvveeeviiee e 160,067 160,067 118,206 (41,861)
Intergovernmental............coocueeeeiiiieeiiee e 3,730,571 4,211,571 4,293,378 81,807
Interest . 2,700,000 2,571,343 2,783,815 212,472
Rent........... 160,000 160,000 150,800 (9,200)
Donations.. - - 15,000 15,000
OFNEI .. 83,389 83,389 428,472 345,083
TOtal FEVENUES.......coviiiiieiiee e 28,374,821 29,746,143 32,897,262 3,151,119
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Legislative and eXecutive ...........cccccevvveeiveeennns 9,715,699 10,219,051 9,691,119 527,932
JUAICIAl .o 4,373,743 4,255,198 3,954,355 300,843
Public safety ......ccooveriiiie e 13,801,022 14,045,083 13,668,590 376,493
Health ..o 908,042 733,854 730,436 3,418
HUMAN SErVICES .......ooviiiiiiiiieeeee e 956,310 956,310 854,993 101,317
Transportation ..........ccceeeviveeeiiiiiee et 188,238 166,193 133,428 32,765
OFNET e 3,167,698 2,487,340 2,355,716 131,624
Total eXpenditures.........c.ooeervreenieeeeseee e 33,110,752 32,863,029 31,388,637 1,474,392
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures ......... (4,735,931) (3,116,886) 1,508,625 4,625,511
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets - - 184,980 184,980
AAVANCES N - - 527,683 527,683
AdVANCES OUL......ocviiiiiriiiiiee e - - (232,894) (232,894)
Operating transfers iN.........ccocccceeveeeiiiee e, 334,210 220,336 - (220,336)
Operating transfers out..........cccoceeveveeiineincneeee (5,137,254) (5,225,062) (4,891,822) 333,240
Total other financing sources (US€S)........ccccvveernuvnnn. (4,803,044) (5,004,726) (4,412,053) 592,673
Net change in fund balance ............ccccccoovnviiinenn. (9,538,975) (8,121,612) (2,903,428) 5,218,184
Fund balance - beginning of year ..........ccccceviieeennes 12,505,068 12,505,068 12,505,068 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated...................... 2,215,195 2,215,195 2,215,195 -
Fund balance - end of year ...........cccccoevveveeieceennne. $ 5,181,288 $ 6,598,651 $ 11,816,835 $ 5,218,184

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE — BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

COMMUNITY SERVICES FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Human services:
Community services:
Personal Services ........cococveeviiieniiieee i
Fringe benefits ........cccooeiiiiiiii
Materials and supplies ........cccoceeeriiieneninnnn.
Contractual ServiCes .........ccoovevveineerieennenns
Capital outlay

Total expenditures..........coocveveeerieenieeeeeee e
Excess of revenues under expenditures....................

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Operating transfers iN.........cccocceiiiiee s

Net change in fund balance.............ccccocceviiniiinnene
Fund balance - beginning of year............ccoccccevieenne
Prior year encumbrances appropriated......................

Fund balance - end of year..........cccccooviieiiiiiieininenn.

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Variance

with Final

Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 2,991,195 $ 3,291,196 $ 3,095,621 $  (195,575)
11,782,998 12,255,901 12,426,200 170,299
320,806 320,806 313,223 (7,583)
15,094,999 15,867,903 15,835,044 (32,859)
6,257,625 6,168,625 6,162,075 6,550
2,646,695 2,412,504 2,411,608 896
330,668 325,262 318,507 6,755
6,428,801 7,697,838 7,658,748 39,090
- 57,200 56,021 1,179
15,663,789 16,661,429 16,606,959 54,470
(568,790) (793,526) (771,915) 21,611
390,910 390,910 390,910 -
(177,880) (402,616) (381,005) 21,611
585,328 585,328 585,328 -
199,469 199,469 199,469 -
$ 606,917 $ 382,181 $ 403,792 $ 21,611

-47 -

181



Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE — BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

MOTOR VEHICLE FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Charges for SEIVICES........ovveviiiieieee e $ 19,990 $ 19,990 $ 134,821 $ 114,831
Permissive motor vehicle license tax 1,050,000 1,050,000 1,073,500 23,500
Fines and forfeitures. ........ccccovvee e 40,000 40,000 40,806 806
Intergovernmental...........ccccoveevienineeneee e 5,500,000 5,500,000 5,584,586 84,586
Oher e 10 10 21,297 21,287
Total reVENUES.......cceeiiieeeeecee e 6,610,000 6,610,000 6,855,010 245,010
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public works:
Motor vehicle:
Personal Services ........cccoceviiieeniieee e 2,848,000 3,055,899 2,576,664 479,235
Fringe benefits ... 1,183,700 1,214,456 1,107,522 106,934
Materials and supplies 1,105,349 1,623,783 1,544,996 78,787
Contractual ServiCes .........ccoovvvveriieeriieennens 728,671 967,350 729,262 238,088
Capital OULIAY .......ccoereerieeiieeee e 1,075,748 1,874,000 1,675,818 198,182
OLNEr ..o 1,000 1,000 681 319
Total eXpenditures..........covevieienieneee e 6,942,468 8,736,488 7,634,943 1,101,545
Excess of revenues under expenditures.................... (332,468) (2,126,488) (779,933) 1,346,555
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital aSSets.........ccccveriiiniiiiien e - - 900 900
Operating transfers in...........cccocceieiiiiciiiiiec s 350,000 350,000 348,534 (1,466)
Operating transfers Out............cccovveeiee e, (246,840) (517,292) (322,087) 195,205
Total other financing sources (USES)..........cccvverveenee. 103,160 (167,292) 27,347 194,639
Net change in fund balance.............ccccooeiiiiiiciinee (229,308) (2,293,780) (752,586) 1,541,194
Fund balance - beginning of year............ccccceeviieeennes 4,827,645 4,827,645 4,827,645 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated..................... 229,308 229,308 229,308 -
Fund balance - end of year........c.c.cccccevvevesveceennenne. $ 4,827,645 $ 2,763,173 $ 4,304,367 $ 1,541,194

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE — BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

MENTAL RETARDATION FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

REVENUES

Property taxXxes.........uvvvveiiiiiiiiieeee e
Charges for services
Intergovernmental...........ccoevereeneneenec e

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Health:
Mental retardation:
Personal Services .........ccoccvcveniieiniieneeiinnnn

Fringe benefits .......
Materials and supplies .......cc.ccccoveeniriieennnnn.
Contractual ServiCes ..........cocevvveriieriviennens

Total expenditures..........coovveieeiiieiiee e
Excess of revenues under expenditures....................

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Sale of capital assets..........cccceevviiiiiiiienii

Net change in fund balance ............ccccocciiiinniinee
Fund balance - beginning of year ...........cccccceevneenne
Prior year encumbrances appropriated......................

Fund balance - end of year ...........cccocoeiiiiiiiniieenne

Variance

with Final

Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 7,131,001 $ 6,808,200 $ 7,176,713 $ 368,513
474,026 539,026 692,563 153,537
3,736,946 4,325,128 4,966,801 641,673
26,000 26,000 27,166 1,166
- - 14,364 14,364
7,691 7,691 25,386 17,695
11,375,664 11,706,045 12,902,993 1,196,948
4,966,755 4,949,635 4,606,960 342,675
2,267,123 2,263,295 1,994,310 268,985
486,240 525,493 502,515 22,978
5,794,000 5,517,018 5,063,116 453,902
342,008 534,184 476,206 57,978
1,336,578 902,300 674,900 227,400
15,192,704 14,691,925 13,318,007 1,373,918
(3,817,040) (2,985,880) (415,014) 2,570,866
- 2,008 2,008 -
(3,817,040) (2,983,872) (413,006) 2,570,866
6,728,120 6,728,120 6,728,120 -
1,214,716 1,214,716 1,214,716 -
$ 4,125,796 $ 4,958,964 $ 7,529,830 $ 2,570,866

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE — BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
ALCOHOL, DRUG ADDICTION, AND MENTAL HEALTH BOARD FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

REVENUES

Property taxXxes.........uvvvveiiiiiiiiieeee e
Charges for SErVICeS. ........ccoviiriiiniiiiieniee e
Intergovernmental...........ccoevereeneneenec e

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Health:
Alcohol, drug addiction, and
mental health board:

Personal Services .........ccocvcvenieiiiieneeiinnnn
Fringe benefits ...,
Materials and supplies ........c.ccccooeerieeneennnn.
Contractual SErviCes ........cccovvveeiiiiiieiniieeee
Capital outlay ........ccoceeeiieiiiiiiicie e

Total expenditures..........ccocvevveiiiiiiieiieee e
Net change in fund balance.............ccccooceniiiniienene
Fund balance - beginning of year............ccccccevieene
Prior year encumbrances appropriated......................

Fund balance - end of year..........cccccoviiiiiniiieininnennn

Variance

with Final

Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 2,035,033 $ 1,836,450 $ 1,936,305 99,855
164,291 171,570 270,363 98,793
6,968,507 8,765,497 8,821,397 55,900
7,200 7,200 14,608 7,408
- 100,000 105,079 5,079
9,175,031 10,880,717 11,147,752 267,035
447,072 457,072 456,019 1,053
149,829 147,829 136,526 11,303
31,156 35,297 24,212 11,085
9,806,139 11,513,169 11,175,509 337,660
27,000 26,967 14,411 12,556
10,461,196 12,180,334 11,806,677 373,657
(1,286,165) (1,299,617) (658,925) 640,692
993,494 993,494 993,494 -
910,938 910,938 910,938 -
$ 618,267 $ 604,815 $ 1,245,507 640,692

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

December 31, 2008

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water

Fund Fund Totals
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.............ccccooveeriiieiiieenns $ 4,417,025 2,663,961 7,080,986
Cash and cash equivalents

in segregated acCouNts ..........cocceeevieeeiieeiiieee e 292,524 237,682 530,206
Receivables:

Accounts .. 596,567 336,890 933,457

INEErfUNG ..o 8,641 5,157 13,798

Special aSSeSSMENLS .......ccvvvviiiviriiiieiiee e 27,257 18,005 45,262

Accrued iNterest .........ccocoviieviiiiiieesiees e 2,999 1,384 4,383

Intergovernmental ...........ccoocvviiiiiiiiee e 29,245 6,867 36,112
Materials and supplies inventory...........ccccceeveenenen. 3,592 10,945 14,537
Prepaid items........c.cooiiiriiiieee e 5,391 4,020 9,411
Total current assets........cccccveveerieriiiieiiesie s 5,383,241 3,284,911 8,668,152
Noncurrent assets:

Deferred charges..........cocveeeiiiiiiiie e 213,173 171,697 384,870
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ...........c.ccccovveeinieennns 184,404 - 184,404
Capital assets not being depreciated 540,132 2,369,114 2,909,246
Capital assets being depreciated (net

of accumulated depreciation) ..........ccceeceeeiiieninnn. 28,642,967 23,879,387 52,522,354
Total noncurrent assets..........oevveveeieeiienieieesees 29,580,676 26,420,198 56,000,874
TOtal @SSELS....eviiiieiieieie e $ 34,963,917 29,705,109 64,669,026

(continued)
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

December 31, 2008

(Continued)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water
Fund Fund Totals

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable ... $ 187,166 $ 45,762 $ 232,928
Contracts payable ........ccccccevieiiieennnen. 6,058 - 6,058
Accrued wages and benefits payable ....................... 35,892 28,491 64,383
Interfund payable ... 603 603 1,206
Matured capital leases payable ... 87 87 174
Matured interest payable ............ccoooeeiiiiiniieniieennns 18 18 36
Intergovernmental payable ..........ccocoviiiiiiieiiieene. 27,164 17,234 44,398
Accrued interest payable ...........coocoiiiiiniiiin 44,930 35,456 80,386
Current portion of:

Compensated absences payable ..........cccccoeeene 40,371 31,619 71,990

Capital [8aSES ......ceeeriiieiiieiie e 4,125 4,125 8,250

EPA loans payable ..........ccccoooiiiiiiiiiiie e 99,108 - 99,108

OPWC loans payable .........cccocoeiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiien 2,139 - 2,139

General obligation bonds payable ........................ 625,000 580,000 1,205,000
Total current liabilities .............occevveiiiiiiiiiiee, 1,072,661 743,395 1,816,056
Long-term liabilities

(net of current portion):

Customer deposits payable from
restricted asSets ........cccocveiiiiiiiiei 184,404 - 184,404
Compensated absences . 61,108 53,803 114,911
Capital [8aSEeS ......ceeevieiiiiieiiee e 4,658 4,658 9,316
EPA loans payable ..........ccccooiiiiiiniii e 974,829 - 974,829
OPWC loans payable .........cccoccveiiiiiiieiieeeee e 62,043 - 62,043
General obligation bonds payable ............c.cccceeeeeie 11,819,412 9,250,691 21,070,103
Total long-term liabilities ...........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiee 13,106,454 9,309,152 22,415,606
Total liabilities .........cccoereiieiresee e 14,179,115 10,052,547 24,231,662
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of

related debt .........eeeeeeiiiiiii s 16,016,080 16,741,700 32,757,780
UNrestricted........oooeieiiieeiee e 4,768,722 2,910,862 7,679,584
Total NEL ASSELS ...ccvvveiieiiciicie e $ 20,784,802 $ 19,652,562 40,437,364

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities -
Sewer Water Internal
Fund Fund Totals Service Fund

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for SEIVICES ......cccvvvevrviirrieie e $ 3,142,127 $ 2,394,160 $ 5,536,287 $ -
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Personal SErViCeS ........ccooveevrieneeienee e 528,008 485,932 1,013,940 -
Fringe benefits ... 172,571 147,181 319,752 -
Contractual SErviCes .........cocvvvvvivivenrenicseeieen 1,168,368 533,550 1,701,918 87,591
Materials and supplies ........ccccccceeviiiiiiiiiennieene 107,738 337,022 444,760 -
Other operating eXPenses ........ccoceeeveeerieeriieennens 7,372 3,058 10,430 -
Depreciation ...........coueeieiieieeiiieee e 830,448 820,511 1,650,959 -
Total operating eXPeNnSEesS .........cocceevvverrieeriieennens 2,814,505 2,327,254 5,141,759 87,591
Operating iNCOmMe (I0SS) .....cooeveeiiiiiieiiiiee e 327,622 66,906 394,528 (87,591)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

INterest iNCOME ........ccoovviiiiiii e 93,308 50,393 143,701 -
Interest and fiscal charges ..........ccccooeeviencnnnen. (609,543) (476,077) (1,085,620) -
Other non-operating reVenUES ..........ccceeveeeenveeenn. 8,421 8,960 17,381 -
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) ............ (507,814) (416,724) (924,538) -
Loss before capital contributions ............cc.cccceen. (180,192) (349,818) (530,010) (87,591)
Capital contributions ...........cccoovevvreeiinicneceee, 726,159 643,590 1,369,749 -
Change in net assets .........ccccevviiieeiiieee e 545,967 293,772 839,739 (87,591)
Net assets - beginning of year 20,238,835 19,358,790 39,597,625 87,591
Net assets - end of year .........cccceeeeevveeveiieseeiens $ 20,784,802 $ 19,652,562 $ 40,437,364 $ -

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers............cccocvvevernenne.
Cash payments for employee services

and benefits ...
Cash payments for goods and services................
Other operating expenses.........
Other non-operating revenues
Customer deposits received............ccooeerereneennnee.
Customer deposits returned...........ccocceeeeviieeninnnes
Net cash provided by (used for)

operating actiVities...........ccccevcieneiiniiiee e

Cash flows from capital and

related financing activities
Tap-in feeS....cociiiiii
Special aSSESSMENTS .......ccvevvieiriiieiieenieerieeeenn
Acquisition of capital assets............cccccevniviiiennn
Premium on refunding bonds...........ccccocoeniienncene
Proceeds from sale of refunding bonds..
Principal paid on capital leases payable................
Principal paid on notes payable..............c.cc.c........
Principal paid on EPA refunding loan....................
Principal paid on OPWC loan..........ccccccecveenviennen.
Principal paid on general obligation bonds... .
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent..............
BONd iSSUANCE COSES........eevireiriereseeniecee e
Interest paid on capital leases payable ................
Interest paid on notes payable.............cccoceeinenne
Interest paid on EPA refunding loan......................
Interest paid on general obligation bonds..............
Net cash used for capital and

related financing activities ...........ccccccvveeenieenne

Cash flows from investing activities
INEEIEST...eee e
Net increase (decrease) in cash

and cash equivalents ............cccocceiiiiiieeniieenn.
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning

OF YA i
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year..............

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities -
Sewer Water Internal
Fund Fund Totals Service Fund
$ 3,475,841 $ 2,372,661 $ 5,848,502 $ -
(728,603) (616,634) (1,345,237) -
(1,258,707) (873,185) (2,131,892) (87,591)
(7,372) (3,058) (10,430) -
8,572 9,076 17,648 -
34,583 - 34,583 -
(20,500) - (20,500) -
1,503,814 888,860 2,392,674 (87,591)
287,575 294,718 582,293 -
2,365 2,992 5,357 -
(41,813) (13,970) (55,783) -
23,512 23,502 47,014 -
3,225,000 3,225,000 6,450,000 -
(4,151) (4,151) (8,302) -
- (350,000) (350,000) -
(193,075) - (193,075) -
(4,279) - (4,279) -
(605,000) (560,000) (1,165,000) -
(3,194,130) (3,194,130) (6,388,260) -
(52,708) (52,698) (105,406) -
(842) (842) (1,684) -
- (15,619) (15,619) -
(43,158) - (43,158) -
(564,279) (447,544) (1,011,823) -
(1,164,983) (1,092,742) (2,257,725) -
121,074 53,554 174,628 -
459,905 (150,328) 309,577 (87,591)
4,434,048 3,051,971 7,486,019 87,591
$ 4,893,953 $ 2,901,643 $ 7,795,596 $ -
(continued)
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities -
Sewer Water Internal
Fund Fund Totals Service Fund
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating iNcome (I0SS).......ceovreereeeerireienienenns $ 327,622 $ 66,906 $ 394,528 $ (87,591)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities:
Other non-operating revenues ............c.ccccceeuue.. 8,572 9,076 17,648 -
Depreciation eXpense ........ccccceeeeriveeeiniieeeennne 830,448 820,511 1,650,959 -
(Increases) decreases in assets:
Accounts receivable ..o, (29,777) (20,412) (40,189) -
Intergovernmental receivable ...................... 352,041 (2,568) 349,473 -
Interfund receivable ...........ccccoiiiiiiiinne (334) (304) (638) -
Materials and supplies inventory .................. 1,481 (3,046) (1,565) -
Prepaids .......ccooeoveiiiiinicieeenens 1,050 1,442 2,492 -
Increases (decreases) in liabilities:
Accounts payable ...........ccocoeviiieiiiiiiiie 15,146 220 15,366 -
Contracts payable .........cccccoviiiiiiieniiiee, 654 (1,319) (665) -
Accrued wages and benefits payable ........... 1,953 (794) 1,159 -
Compensated absences payable .. (26,187) 21,126 (5,061) -
Interfund payable ...........ccccoooviiiiiiiiiien, 5 5 10 -
External party payable ..........cccccoeiveiiiinennne. (55) (55) (110) -
Intergovernmental payable ..............ccccceeeee. (2,888) (1,928) (4,816) -
Customer deposSits ........ccceerveerveerieeneeeene. 14,083 - 14,083 -
Net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities .........cccoeverieererinnrereneneenn $ 1,503,814 $ 888,860 $ 2,392,674 $ (87,591)

Noncash capital financing activities:
Developers contributed $433,824 and $348,872 in the form of sewer lines and water lines, respectively, during 2008.

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fairfield County, Ohio

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS

December 31, 2008

ASSETS
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENES ...........ocoiiiiiiiiiiie e $ 8,015,839
Cash and cash equivalents in segregated acCoUNts ..........cc.ceevveeieiiieeiiieennns 1,205,992
Receivables:
PrOPEITY TAXES ....eveiieiiiiee ittt 121,145,398
Lodging taxes .... 52,201
ACCOUNTS ...ttt 2,101,107
SPECIal ASSESSMENLS ....ciiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt ibee e 4,337,640
INtErgOVEINMENTAL ......eiiiiiiiii et 12,021,308
Tax increment financing receivable ... 14,399,731
External party receivable 127,182
TOUAl ASSELS ...ttt ettt b ettt sttt enean $ 163,406,398
LIABILITIES
External party payable ...........cooeiiiiiiiiie e $ 165,455
Intergovernmental Payable ... 157,486,481
DUE 0 OTNETS ..o 5,754,462
TOtaAl ADIILIES ....veveeieieeeieete ettt $ 163,406,398

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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About the Cover — Fairfield County Historical Parks

Blacksmith Shop at Smeck Historical Farm — top photo

The blacksmith shop was often the first "commercial" structure in a village. The blacksmith was a key craftsman
whose services were needed to make many of the iron components of the settlers' homes, especially nails and
hinges. The Smeck Historical Village blacksmith shop was constructed by volunteers and will house a large, double-
faced forge.

Flight of the Hawk Sculpture Park — middle left photo

The red-tailed hawk sculpture is landing atop an arch supported by six steel columns more than forty feet in the air.
With a wingspan of fourteen feet, and weighing in at more than 2,500 pounds the hawk, made up of more than 3,000
pieces of steel, will provide the centerpiece of a wildlife park made out of steel sculptures. Other sculptures will be
added, as donations are given, representing a variety of Ohio wildlife such as raccoons, deer, turkey, geese and
many others. Appropriate landscaping and plantings will accompany each sculpture along with an explanation of the
role played by this particular animal in a healthy ecosystem and the donor’'s name.

Rock Mill and Rock Mill Covered Bridge — middle center photo

Rock Mill is Ohio’s oldest and largest gristmill. The mill was built in 1824 and was powered by a 26’ waterwheel
weighing more than 8 tons. A dam 14’ high was built causing the Hocking River to flow through a sluice carved in
solid sandstone 30’ long, 20’ deep and 30” wide. Three smaller mills were constructed in the gorge beginning in 1799
that preceded the mill built on two sandstone cliffs. The mill operated continuously until 1905. The mill is undergoing
a complete restoration. The goal of the restoration is to allow, once again, the milling of grains. Funds for the work
have been provided by donations and grants.

The Rock Mill Covered Bridge was built in 1901. The bridge utilizes a queen post truss for its main support and was
rebuilt in 2004 using funds from Ohio Department of Transportation.

Suspension Bridge at Cross Mound — middle right photo

Constructed in 1936 by President Roosevelt's Works Progress Administration (WPA), the suspension bridge over Salt
Creek at Cross Mound Park is the last remaining monument in Fairfield County. The bridge provides access to Cross
Mound, a Fort Ancient Culture Earthwork, the only one of its kind in the world.

Locks at Lockville — bottom left photo

Locks 11, 12 and 13 of the Ohio-Erie Canal are featured in Lockville Park. These three locks are part of a series of
seven locks that still survive in Lockville, part of the amazing system of canals that began July 4, 1825. The locks are
made of non-mortared, sandstone blocks held in place by their own weight. Their foundation is provided by white oak
timbers that are still intact.

Johnston Covered Bridge — bottom right photo

Constructed to carry Clearcreek and McDonald Roads over Clearcreek in 1887, the Johnston Covered Bridge has the
distinction of being Fairfield County’s longest surviving covered bridge on public property. The bridge has a length of
99'6" which spans over Clearcreek. The bridge used truss systems that were more common to bridges designed to
carry heavy locomotives. The bridge incorporated threaded, iron rods that would connect upper chords to lower and
would be anchored in place by large nuts. The bridge can still be seen to have perfectly straight roof lines even
today. The Johnston Covered Bridge is one of only 4 covered bridges to still rest on their original abutments.

To see more photos of Fairfield County's covered bridges, historical buildings, nature preserves, and to learn more
about the Fairfield County Historical Parks Commission, please visit www.historicalparks.org or call (740) 681-7249.

Additional copies of this report may be obtained from:
Fairfield County Auditor’'s Office
210 E. Main Street
Lancaster, Ohio 43130

Phone requests can be made at (740) 652-7020 or (740) 687-6781 (fax).

A PDF version of this report is available online at:
http://www.co.fairfield.oh.us/auditor/index.htm
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Jors A Slorter, i

210 East Main Street FAIRFIELD COUNTY AUDITOR Voice (740) 652-7020
Lancaster, Ohio 43130-3882 Fax (740) 687-6781

Citizens of Fairfield County

I am pleased to present the Fairfield County, Ohio Citizens” Report, also known as our Popular Annual Financial
Report, for the year ended December 31, 2010. This report provides a brief analysis of the sources of County
revenues and where those dollars are spent, the County’s financial position, an overview of local economic trends,
and major goals and accomplishments. Above all, it is designed to present a more readable and understandable

financial report.

The information in this report was drawn from the financial information appearing in the 2010 Fairfield County
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). The CAFR was prepared in conformance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and was audited by the Ohio Auditor of State, receiving an unqualified
opinion. An unqualified opinion means that the general purpose financial statements of the County are fairly
presented in all material respects. ~ The CAFR consists of 304 pages of detailed financial statements, notes,

schedules, and reports.

The Citizens’ Report is a condensed, more user-friendly financial report intended to provide highlights of the
primary government from the County’s CAFR. The CAFR contains information from all Fairfield County funds
and is designed to bring greater awareness of the financial condition of our county to its citizens and other interested

parties.

This report is unaudited and is presented on a non-GAAP basis. The major differences between GAAP and non-
GAAP reporting deals with not including component units and in the presentation of segregated funds, as well as
full disclosure of all material financial and non-financial events in notes to the financial statements. Individuals who
desire to review GAAP basis, full disclosure financial statements should refer to the County’s CAFR, which is
available from the County Auditor’s office and online at www.co_fairfield.oh.us/auditor/index.htm.

The Fairfield County Citizens’ Report is presented as a means of enhancing the public’s confidence in County
government and the stewardship of its elected officials through easier, more reader-friendly financial reporting. As
you review the following pages, I invite you to share any questions, concerns, or recommendations you may have.
Please call the Fairfield County Auditor’s Office with questions, comments, or suggestions regarding this report at
(740) 652-7020.

Sincerely,

/mzma@@ﬂ

Jon A. Slater, Jr.
Fairfield County Auditor
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The County’s financial activities are accounted for primarily in the governmental funds where the focus is not profit

or loss, but rather on services rendered and the cost to provide those services.

The County’s business-type

activities, similar to those found in the private sector, are accounted for in the Sewer and Water enterprise funds

op erations.

Revenues are monies the
County receives from a variety
of sources to pay for the

services it provides.

Program revenues include:

® Charges for services — licenses,
permits, and other fees, fines,
forfeitures, and charges paid by
the recipients of goods or services
offered by County programs.

® Operating (and Capital) grants,
contributions and interest— grants
and contributions received from
other governments, organizations
and individuals that are restricted
in some manner; investment
earnings that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular
program.

General revenues are those

revenues that are not classified as

program revenues. All taxes, even

those that are levied for a specific

purpose, are considered general

revenues.

® Unrestricted grants and entitlements-
Revenue from grants and pass-
through monies administered by
the State of Ohio that are not
restricted on their use.

® Unrestricted interest- Monies earned
through the County Treasurer’s
investments of cash on hand not
needed for current period

services.

Expenses are the amounts
spent to provide services to

citizens.

Legislative and executive
expenses are the costs incurred for
the County’s administrative offices,
including the Auditor,
Commissioners, Treasurer,

Prosecutor, and Recorder.

Legislative and executive-
intergovernmental expenses are
Commissioner allocations made to

local governments.

Judicial expenses are the costs of
administrating justice through the
Fairfield County Courts system.

Public safety expenses are the
costs of the Coroner, Probation,
and Sheriff’s departments.

Public safety-
intergovernmental expenses are
the costs to assist in operating the
Fairfield-Hocking Major Crimes
Investigation Unit.

Public works expenses are the
costs incurred by the Engineer to
maintain county roads and bridges.

Health expenses include services
provided by the Developmental
Disabilities Board, Dog and Kennel,
and the Alcohol, Drug Addiction
and Mental Health Board.

Human services expenses are the
costs of operating the Job and
Family Services and Veteran

Services Commission departrnents.

Urban redevelopment and
housing expenses are the costs of

the urban improvement program.

Urban redevelopment and
housing-intergovernmental
expenses are costs to operate the
Community Development Block
Grant program on behalf of other

local governments.

Transportation expenses are costs
related to the Fairfield County
Airport.

Interest and fiscal charges
expenses are interest and principal
payments made for County debt.

Sewer and water expenses are
the costs to operate the County’s
business-type activity, providing
sewer and water services to ever
growing portions of the county.
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FINANCIAL ACTIVITY STATEMENT

The Changes in Net Assets Statement, traditionally known by many as the income statement, is designed to
provide a record of the money received and spent by the County during the past year.

Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010
Govern- Business- Total
mental type Primary
Activities Activities Government
REVENUES
Program Revenues
Charges for ServiCes.........cocuuiuiieiiieieiiieesieeeee $ 16,238,461 $ 5,944,836 $ 22,183,297
Operating grants, contributions, and interest........ 37,609,461 - 37,609,461
Capital grants, contributions, and interest............ 1,926,151 124,850 2,051,001
General Revenues
Taxes:
Property and other taxes.............ccccceeeeeeeennnn. 22,947,834 - 22,947,834
Real property transfer taxes............ccococeeveneenne 1,102,603 - 1,102,603
LOAQING tAX..1tteieeiiiiiiiee et e e 138,741 - 138,741
SalES tAXES. . eieiiiieiiiee et 16,403,143 - 16,403,143
Unrestricted grants and entitlements.................... 3,899,214 - 3,899,214
Unrestricted interest...........occveevieeiniiieeniiee e, 715,339 65,586 780,925
OFNEI et 616,545 36,505 653,050
Total REVENUES.......cceiiiiieiiiee et 101,597,492 6,171,777 107,769,269
EXPENSES
General government:
Legislative and executive............cccceevviivieeeeenn. 11,632,207 - 11,632,207
Intergovernmental...........ccccceeviiiiiiiee e 1,635,496 - 1,635,496
JUAiCial....eeoiiei 6,469,930 - 6,469,930
PUbIiC Safety......ccviiieiiiieic e 16,213,798 - 16,213,798
Intergovernmental...........ccccoocviiiiiiciiic i, 156,008 - 156,008
Public WOrKS. ......cccuiiiiiiiicie e 11,200,993 - 11,200,993
HEAIN. ... 24,015,477 - 24,015,477
HUMAN SEIVICES......coiieieieciitvvveveaeveaeaeaeaaes 21,510,978 - 21,510,978
Urban redevelopment and housing..............cccceeeue. 1,358,860 - 1,358,860
Intergovernmental............ccccceeiiiiiiiinc i, 269,026 - 269,026
TranSPOratioN.........couvviriieriiiee e 291,787 - 291,787
Interest and fiscal charges..........cccccoveviiieeeincinnen. 683,007 - 683,007
Business-type activities:
SEWE ...ttt ettt e eiee et e et ee et - 3,060,231 3,060,231
WALET. ...ttt - 2,948,260 2,948,260
Total EXPENSES. ..ccvviieiiiieiiiie et 95,437,567 6,008,491 101,446,058
Increase (decrease) in net assets..........cccceeeevvveeennn. 6,159,925 163,286 6,323,211
Net assets - beginning of year.............ccccceevviiieeenn. 218,673,617 41,621,109 260,294,726
Net assets - end of year.........cccccoevvvveveeeiiiciiieeeeee $ 224,833,542 $ 41,784,395 $ 266,617,937

Net assets for governmental activities increased by $6,159,925 in 2010 compared to a $153,648 decrease in 2009.
This is attributed mainly to increases in sales and property taxes and decreases in human services expenses that were
offset by decreases in state and federal grants for the human services program of providing public assistance to
general relief recipients in 2010. Net assets for business-type activities increased $163,286 in 2010 compared to a
$1,183,745 increase in 2009 due to capital contributions. In 2010, there were no donations of water and sewer
lines from developers. In 2009, $1,712,279 was donated by developers and $81,621 was donated by the City of
Pickerington.
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WHERE THE MONEY CAME FROM . . . . e e
Fairfield County Revenues for 2010
$107,769,269

Grants and
contributions

Taxes

Charges for Services

Water & Sewer

Unrestricted interest

Miscellaneous

$0 $10 $20 $30 $40 $50

Millions

Fairfield County revenues increased by $2,426,501 from 2009. This is mainly due to increases in taxes that are offset by
decreases in grants and contributions, water and sewer, and charges for services.

WHERE THE MONEY WAS SPENT . ... . e e
Fairfield County Expenses for 2010
$101,446,058

Fairfield County expenses decreased by $2,866,613 from 2009 mainly due to a decrease in human services that are offset
by increases in urban redevelopment and housing and legislative and executive expenses.

Health

Human Services

Public Safety

Legislative and Executive

Public Works
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Water and Sewer

Legislative and Executive-Intergovernmental
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REVENUES AND EXPENSES TREND ANALYSIS

Past Five Years

In Millions
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‘l Total Revenues m Total Expenses ‘

COUNTY PROGRAM ACTIVITIES

This chart compares direct expenses and program revenues for each major function of the County. Direct

expenses are specifically associated with a service, program, or department and therefore clearly identifiable to a
particular function. Program revenues include (1) charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services and (2)
grants, contributions, and interest that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a

particular program.

The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental
function is self-financing or else draws from the general revenues of the County. The County’s Public Safety,
Health, Legislative and Executive, and Human Services expenses accounted for the majority of costs not covered by
program revenues. The Health excess costs were funded with the County’s tax revenues and the Public Safety,
Legislative and Executive, and Human Services excess costs were funded with the County’s general revenues.

Direct Expenses and Program Revenues

(amounts in millions)
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$15 4
q = = L . mm

-
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Other
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FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT

The Statement of Net Assets, traditionally known by many as the balance sheet, is designed to provide a

picture of the major components of the primary government’s financial position at the end of the year.

Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 2010
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

Assets
CaSh..ceeie e $ 46,401,207 $ 10,042,163 $ 56,443,370
Receivables...... 48,306,874 694,679 49,001,553
Capital assets... 178,772,544 55,144,106 233,916,650
Other @sSSetS........ccvvvveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeaean 3,647,452 382,391 4,029,843

Total ASSELS...cvviiiieeiieeiieee e 277,128,077 66,263,339 343,391,416
Liabilities
Accrued wages and benefits...........ccccevveeenns 1,201,914 37,213 1,239,127
Payables..........ccccooiiiiiiiiiie 3,090,034 178,295 3,268,329
Due to other funds and governments 1,717,759 48,145 1,765,904
Notes, bonds, loans, leases payable,

and compensated absences 21,764,777 23,948,255 45,713,032
Other liabilities..............vvvvvevennnn. 24,520,051 267,036 24,787,087

Total LiabilitieS.......cccoevverierieeieie e, 52,294,535 24,478,944 76,773,479
Net Assets - excess of

Assets over Liabilities...........cccoevuvreneee $ 224833542 % 41,784,395 $ 266,617,937

Assets are those items owned by the County that
will provide a benefit in the future.

Liabilities are those items that the County owes to
individuals, companies, other governments, and
lenders.

Cash is the amount of physical cash held by the
County in checking accounts and on hand for
purposes of paying expenses.

Receivables represent the amounts that are owed
to the County and are expected to be paid over the

course of the next twelve months.

Capital assets represents furniture, equipment,
vehicles, land, buildings, water and sewer
equipment, and the County’s roads and bridges
infrastructure that provide for an economic benefit
to the County of more than one year.

Accrued wages and benefits are those payments
that the County owes to employees for salaries, the

associated benefits, and accrued leave.

Payables are those payments that the County owes
to companies or individuals who supply services or
goods to the County.

Due to other funds and governments are
primarily the amounts owed to other funds or
entities of the County from property taxes. The
remainder is amounts owed to other governments
outside the County for goods or services provided
by them to the County.

Notes, bonds, loans, leases payable, and
compensated absences are the amounts owed
for the issuance of debt and compensation of

absences on which the County still owes.
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THE COUNTY’S DEBT INSTRUMENTS
As of December 31, 2010
The County employs the use of several different types of debt instruments for short and long-term financing.

Fairfield County’s bond credit ratings are “double-A” which demonstrates the County’s very strong

creditworthiness relative to other United States municipal or tax-exempt issuers or issues.

Bond Anticipation Notes are short-term debt instruments due in one year or less and are issued to raise money
for County projects. These notes are converted into bonds after a short period of time.

General Obligation Bonds are long-term debt instruments that are repaid from the County’s general revenue
sources. They are backed by the full faith and credit of the County.

Recovery Zone Bonds are long-term debt instruments issued to pay for a portion of the cost of the utilities
department administration building. They are repaid from revenues derived by the County’s operation of the water
and sewer systems. They are backed by the full faith and credit of the County.

Special Assessment Bonds are issued to pay for improvements benefiting property owners. The property
owners repay the County over a period of years for the debt.

Long-Term Loans are debt instruments issued by the State of Ohio for various public works projects. The
County’s Sewer Fund will repay these balances.

Capital Leases are contracts made by the County’s departments for the acquisition of assets such as copiers, mail

machines, and so forth. The departments pay for these contracts from their annual budgets.

SUMMARY OF DEBT OBLIGATIONS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

SUMMARY
Balance at Balance at
12-31-2009 Additions Deletions 12-31-2010
Long-Term Bond Anticipation Notes..............ccceeeeunenne. $ 1,640,000 $ - $ 1,640,000 $ -
General Obligation Bonds...........ccociviiiiiiniiiiiiiieeeeenes 37,649,629 13,858,064 16,425,122 35,082,571
Recovery Zone Bonds.......... - 3,300,000 - 3,300,000
Special Assessment Bonds...........c...ccceu.ee. 1,788,039 - 308,536 1,479,503
Long-Term Loans.... 1,618,397 101,101 302,224 1,417,274
Capital LeasesS.......ouiuiiiiiiiie e 321,156 939,182 236,154 1,024,184
$ 43,017,221 $ 18,198,347 $ 18,912,036 $ 42,303,532
Allocation of County Debt Percent Amount
Governmental Funds 43.7% $ 18,503,487
Water and Sewer Funds (self-funded) 56.3% 23,800,045

_$ 42303532

DEBT OUTSTANDING TREND ANALYSIS

Past Five Years

In Millions
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Self-Funded Long-Term Debt are debt obligations whose principal and interest are payable from revenue sources for which the debt was
originally issued.
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THE COUNTY’S LONG-TERM DEBT

As of December 31, 2010

Total Long-Term Debt — $42,303,532

General Long-

Self-Funded Long-
Term Debt

Term Debt
$15,333,774 $26,969,758
0,
36.2% 63.8%

General Long-Term Debt — $15,333,774

Liberty Center County

Senices Complex $5,676,613

Job & Family Services

Building $4,626,213

Developmental

Disabilities Facility $1,801,451
Minimum Security Jail $1,052,057
Multl-CogntyJuvenlle $1,086,716

Detention Center

Capital leases- $1,005,976

Governmental funds

Laughlin Building -
Maintenance

Self Funded Long-Term Debt — $26,969,758

Sewer facilities J$13,505,898

Water facilities ]$10,275,939

Special assessment D$1,479,503
Airport hangars D$1,020,694
Title Office-Bureau of Motor Vehicles D$480,189

Chestnut Street-CSEA [|$189,327

Capital leases-Enterprise funds |$18,208
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TAX REVENUES

During 2010, the County’s governmental activities received $41.7 million in tax revenue and $101.6 million in
total revenues. Property taxes account for approximately $22.9 million or 22.6 percent, real property transfer
taxes approximately $1.1 million or 1.1 percent, and lodging taxes approximately $139,000 or 0.1 percent for
approximately $24.2 million, or 23.8 percent, of total governmental revenues. Sales taxes, which are received from
the state for vendor collections of the tax paid, provided approximately $16.4 million, or 16.2 percent, of total
governmental revenues. Motor Vehicle licenses provided approximately $1.1 million or 1.1 percent of total

governmental revenues.

Breakdown of Tax Collections in 2010
$41,698,307

Personal Property Other $175,737
$25,426 0.4% '
0.1% ’

Permissive Motor
Vehicle License

$1,105,986 Permissive Sales
2.7% $16,403,143
Property Transfer 39.3%
$1,102,603
2.6%

Real Estate
$22,885,412
54.9%

Ten Largest Taxpayers in County in 2010

Enterprise Nature of Business Value To Be Taxed
Rockies Express Pipeline Natural gas utility $96,905,570
Ohio Power Company Electric utility $33,480,120
Columbia Gas Transmission Natural gas utility $29,875,980
South Central Power Electric utility $22,347,200
Glimcher River Valley Mall LLC Developer $19,285,010
Anyi Apartments LLC Apartments $8,120,010
Texas Eastern Transmission Electric utility $7,446,550
Target Corporation Retail $6,413,890
Pickerington Apartments LLC Apartments $6,232,070
Regency Centers LP Developer $5,583,700
- 10 -
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PROPERTY VALUES AND TAX COLLECTIONS

Property Values for the Last Ten Years
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Tax collections for the years 2001 and 2002 are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting in which the
revenues must be available before they can be recognized. With the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34 in
2003, the tax collections for that year and all subsequent years are presented on the accrual basis of accounting
which recognizes revenue in the year for which the taxes are levied. Tangible personal property taxes are being
gradually phased out over the next several years. The property tax collections chart for all years has been restated to

reflect current tax collections.
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A BRIEF HISTORY OF FAIRFIELD COUNTY

The County of Fairfield was created by proclamation of the Northwest Territory on December 9,
1800. Resident’s named the county after the area’s “fair fields.” Located in the south-central
portion of Ohio, Fairfield County is adjacent to Licking, Perry, Hocking, Pickaway, and Franklin
Counties. The County is predominantly rural, with less than two percent of the County’s 506
square miles consisting of urban areas.

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

Number Percentage
of Total
of County
Employer Nature of Business Employees Rank Employment
Fairfield Medical Center Health Care-Hospital 1,714 1 2.28%
Anchor Hocking Manufacturer-Glassware 1,201 2 1.59%
Pickerington Schools Public Education 1,093 3 1.45%
Fairfield County Government 803 4 1.07%
Walmart Retail 792 5 1.05%
Lancaster City Schools Public Education 698 6 0.93%
Kroger Retail 631 7 0.84%
TS Trim Manufacturing 522 8 0.69%
Giant Eagle Retail 475 9 0.63%
City of Lancaster Government 438 10 0.58%
Total 8,367 11.11%
Total Employment Within County 75,300

12-
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COUNTY POPULATION

150,000

145,000

140,000

135,000

130,000 -
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The 2001 population figure is an estimate provided annually by the U.S. Census Bureau. The Ohio Department of
Development provided the estimates for 2002-2009. The year 2010 is an actual count from the U.S. Census Bureau.

COUNTY EMPLOYEE WORKFORCE

By Function of Government

225+
200+
175+
150+
125+
100

75+

50+

Ledis. | judigiar | PUPlC | PUblc s | Heatth | Uman
Exec. Safety | Works Services

m 2001 113 72 180 55 23 134 207
| 2005 97 88 169 59 25 153 199
0 2010 104 87 180 58 24 153 197

@ 2001 m 2005 O 2010

These employees are paid from revenues in the governmental funds and in the enterprise funds.
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MAJOR GOALS AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Manifold & Phalor, Inc., a machining, fabricating,
and machine building business, relocated to the
Canal Point Industrial Park on December 10, 2010

to a new 30,000 square foot facility. The new

The

company encompasses several business lines under

building will increase manufacturing space.

one roof. While it is a machine shop, it also serves
as a maintenance and repair facility for industrial
manufacturing equipment. The $3 million facility
created between 10 and 15 additional jobs in the
County.

T i il
| Fhb o dadt
PSRy o

Serigraphie Richford, Inc., (SRI) a Canadian glass
bottle decorating company opened in the Rock Mill
Industrial Park site in September 2010.  SRI has
spent between $8 million and $10 million to expand
an existing building from 60,000 to 80,000 square
feet. For more than three decades, SRI specializes in
printing and decorating glass containers. Over the
years SRI has partnered with some of the biggest
names in the industries, such as Estee Lauder, Avon,
L’Oreal, Pernod-Ricard,
Canandaigua, Vincor, and Sleeman and put their
The

company expects to create at least 100 new

Revlon, Diageo,
stamp on the biggest brands on the market.

manufacturing jobs by the end of 2012.

| AspenDental

RadioShack

Ety Pointe, located in the City of Lancaster, is

newest major retail

Fairfield County’s
development. A four-unit commercial building
2010 houses Dental

Management, Inc. which opened August 2010 and

completed  in Aspen

Penn Station and Radio Shack which opened in
September 2010 .

‘ Retail development
Itends to follow the
population. Fairfield

County was the fourth
fastest growing county

14

S - in Ohio from 2000-2010.
m Gw{:ﬁﬁ%ﬁ!‘% Developers and retailers
. Mmm"h“'_____ have  announced  major
projects to meet the

growing demands for goods

and  services.  Golden

Corral opened August 2, 2010 creating 160 jobs.
Tammi Jo’s Steak, Ribs and Pasta restaurant, Gran
Ranchero Mexican restaurant, Verizon Wireless,
Rue 21, and Dick’s Sporting Goods all opened in
2010.
announced plans to locate in Pickerington in 2011.

National retailers such as Big Lots have

In April 2009, the County was awarded a $1.5
million dollar federal grant from the Ohio
Department of  Development  for the
Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP). The
NSP supports homeownership in targeted areas in
the County by providing comprehensive rehab of
foreclosed vacant homes and down payment
assistance to qualified home buyers.
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HOW TO CONTACT US

Fairfield County Website

www.co.fairfield.oh.us

ELECTED OFFICIALS

Board of Commissioners

Mike Kiger................... (740) 652-7090
JonD. Myers ................ (740) 652-7090
Judith K. Shupe ....................... (740) 652-7090
Auditor
Jon A. Slater, Jr. ... (740) 652-7020
Clerk of Courts
Deborah Smalley...................... (740) 652-7360
Coroner
Dr. Thomas Vajen ................... (740) 687-6774
Engineer
Frank Anderson....................... (740) 687-7050
Prosecutor
David L. Landefeld ................... (740) 652-7560
Recorder
Gene Wood........oooiiiiiiiinin... (740) 652-7100
Sheriff
Dave Phalen.................c.con. (740) 652-7900
Treasurer
Brian S. Kuhn, CPA. ................ (740) 652-7140
Court of Common Pleas:

General
]udge Richard Berens ................ (740) 652-7422
Judge Chris A. Martin ............... (740) 652-7423

Court of Common Pleas:
Probate and Juvenile
Judge Steven O. Williams........... (740) 652-7460

Court of Common Pleas:
Domestic Relations
]udge Kathy Mowry.................. (740) 652-7440

PRINCIPAL APPOINTED OFFICIALS
AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

Clerk of County Commissioners
Scott Zody........o.ooooii (740) 652-7090

Human Resources Director
Aundrea Cordle ............cocoiil, (740) 652-7890

Board of Elections Director
Susan L. Bloom ..........c.ooooiiiinin, (740) 652-7000

Buildings and Grounds Superintendent
Tony Vogel ................. (740) 652-7940

Dog Shelter Warden
Michael Miller ...l (740) 652-7180

Sanitary Engineer
Tony Vogel ... (740) 652-7120

Department of Job and Family Services
Director
Michael Orlando ..............ocooeiinil, (740) 652-7889

Alcohol, Drug Addiction and
Mental Health Board Director

OrmanHall ...............oo, (740) 654-0829
Developmental Disabilities Board
Superintendent

John Pekar..........coooviiiiiiiiil, (740) 652-7220
Emergency Management Director

Jon Kochis .......c.ooovii (740) 652-7960
Economic Development Director

Shane Farnsworth .................... ... (740) 652-7160
Data Processing Administrator

Randy Carter....................... (740) 652-7075
Geographical Information Systems
Administrator

David Burgei ...................o (740) 652-7055
Veteran Services Director

Eddie Mohler ...............ooooiiinn, (740) 652-7920
Fairfield County Airport Authority President
David Scheffler ................l (740) 746-9330
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